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Financial Highlights of the Interpump Group

Consolidated net revenues
Foreign sales

EBITDA

EBITDA %

EBIT (Operating profit)

EBIT %

Consolidated net profit

Free cash flow

Net debt

Consolidated shareholders' equity
Indebtedness/EBITDA

Net capital investment (Capex)
Average headcount

ROE

ROCE

EPS-€

Dividend per share - €

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

31/12/201331/12/201% 31/12/201 %

(€/000) (€/000)

894,928 671,999

85% 86%
180,258 136,106
20.1% 20.3%
136,896 104,367
15.3% 15.5%

118,306 57,742
85,246 38,290
278,196  226,0449
622,628 466,550

1.54 1.66
28,863 34,142
4,830 3,575
19% 12.4%
15.2% 15.1%
1.101 0.541

0.190** 0.180

ROE: Consolidated net profit / Consolidated shaldgrs' equity

(€/000)

556,513
86%
105,173
18.9%
79,334
14.3%
44,087
34,282
121,384°)
432,949
1.15
29,278
2,998
10.2%
14.3%
0.413
0.170

ROCE: Consolidated operating profit / (Consolidagbedreholder's equity + Net debt)

In 2007 the denominator included the extraordirividend payable of €/000 16,594.

Dividends refer to the year of formation of thetdimited profit.

* 0.230 of which extraordinary

b to be authorized at the Shareholders' Meeting

@) Following application of the amendment to IAS ft% data has been restated.
(®) Continuing operations.
© Inclusive of the debt arising from the acquisitaf investments.

(€/000)

527,176
86%
105,876
20.1%
84,049
15.9%
53,226
38,598
102,5529
396,876
0.97
15,839
2,685
13.4%
16.8%
0.556
0.170

(€/000)

471,619
84%
94,614
20.1%
75,650
16.0%
42,585
28,800
145,9759
315,160
1.54
12,153
2,436
13.5%
16.4%
0.439
0.120



Consolidated net revenues
Foreign sales

EBITDA

EBITDA %

EBIT (Operating profit)

EBIT %

Consolidated net profit

Free cash flow

Net debt

Consolidated shareholders' equity
Indebtedness/EBITDA

Net capital investment (Capex)
Average headcount

ROE

ROCE

EPS-€

Dividend per share - €

31/12/2010 31/12/2009

31/12/2008 31/12/2007

31/12/2006

(€/000) (€/000)

424,925 342,924

80% 79%
74,100 46,856
17.4% 13.7%
54,689 29,194
12.9% 8.5%

27,381 13,980
56,997 63,136
147,759  201,8339
291,459 242,796

1.99 4.31
8,478 8,950
2,492 2,427
9.4% 5.8%
12.5% 6.6%
0.284 0.187
0.110 -

(€/000)

424,513
80%
86,986
20.5%
75,666
17.8%
40,161
22,132
228,264
177,951
2.62
16,577
2,036
22.6%
18.6%
0.545

(€/000)

432,195
79%
94,255
21.8%
82,231
19.0%
42,913
31,951
186,173
147,131
1.86
11,944
1,882
29.2%
23.5%
0.567
0.4306

(€/000)

364,876
76%
79,144
21.7%
69,715
19.1%
41,592
26,733
137,464
155,888
1.74
11,706
1,617
26.6%
23.8%
0.542
0.180






KEY EVENTS OF 2015

Performance in 2015 was marked by a considerablease in sales, EBITDA and net profit,
with the achievement by the Interpump Group of récesults once again.

Sales were up by 33.2% compared to 2014 (+8.9%ftkdike and +1.3% net of exchange
differences). The business sector analysis sho#$.406 increase in sales in the Hydraulic
Sector (+5.0% like for like and -1.0% net of excpamlifferences) and a 21.3% growth of sales
in the Water Jetting Sector (+14.6% like for likedar4.7% net of exchange differences).

In geographical terms, growth in Europe includingly was 33.7%, with 35.2% in North
America, 37.3% in the Far East and Oceania and%22r® the Rest of the World. The
geographical breakdown shows like for like growti®% in Europe (including Italy), 18.0%
in North America, 4.8% in the Far East and Oceanih6.8% in the Rest of the World.

EBITDA reached €180.3m, equivalent to 20.1% of sala 2014, EBITDA was €136.1m
(20.3% of sales). The year on year growth of EBITIDAS amounts to 32.4%. EBITDA was
10.6% higher like for like, reaching €150.5m or@2@.of sales, up by 0.3 percentage points.

Free cash flow more than doubled to €85.2m (€38132014).
Net profit of €118.3m was more than double the BSifrecorded in 2014.

Minority interests in Hydrocontrol S.p.A. and IMMyHraulics S.p.A. were acquired in 2015.
On 27 April Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. acquiree ttemaining 16% stake in Hydrocontrol
S.p.A., further to the exercise of the related guttons by its minority shareholders. On 4 June
Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. acquired the remain#@9o stake in IMM Hydraulics S.p.A.,
further to the exercise of the related put optioyshe minority shareholder of IMM Hydraulics
S.p.A. These two transactions generated finanoéame of €32.0m, due to the lower price paid
with respect to the recorded liability for the aisifion of equity investments, which reflected
measurement of the put options granted to thersell&is income arose because the put options
had been measured on the basis of projectionsli® &0d 2020, being the dates from which the
put options could be exercised, and consequentlisaged the growth of EBITDA and higher
cash generation. The early exercise of the two ritinput options is accelerating the release of
synergies within the Group and considerable singgaliions, resulting in appreciable cost
savings.

In this regard, operations in India and South Affrace currently being rationalized. In addition,
the business in Brazil based on the merger ofdheviing four companies become operational
during the year: Interpump Hydraulics do Brasilkdida Industria e Comercio, Walvoil Fluid

do Brasil and Osper, with this last company hawegn acquired on 28 August 2015. The four
companies have been concentrated into a singlé&yawiith the release of significant synergies

in industrial, logistic and administrative terms)dathe reorganization of all operations. In
addition, Interpump Hydraulics Brasil (the compdoymed through the merger) is now the
Brazilian leader in the power take-offs sector,dftimg also from access to the Group's wide
range of products in the Hydraulic Sector. The pssf rationalization of the Group's structure
and exploitation of potential commercial synergiat proceed over the coming years also in
the other countries in which we operate.

2015 saw the first-time consolidation of the Walv@roup (Hydraulic Sector) acquired on 15
January 2015, Inoxihp (Water Jetting Sector) aeguon 17 March 2015, but consolidated for



the full year due to its modest size, Bertoli S{Water Jetting Sector), acquired on 22 May
2015 and consolidated for eight months, and Odpgdraulic Sector), acquired on 28 August
2015 and consolidated for four months.

The Walvoil Group is one of the key internationdhyers in the production and sale of
hydraulic valves and directional controls. The 2%8ks of the Walvoil Group totaled €145.2m,
with a consolidated EBITDA of €24.1m and net indgltess of €15.1m. The final contractual
price agreed for the purchase of 100% of the WhiSobup was €116.1m. Payment was made
in two tranches during 2015, with €70.3m settleddsh and the balance by the assignment of
4,004,341 listed shares in Interpump Group S.p.A.

Inoxihp S.r.l.,, based in Nova Milanese (MB), prodsichigh pressure and very high pressure
water installations, with a leadership positionajpplications for the steel industry. The 2015
sales of Inoxihp amounted to €10.8m, with EBITDAexcess of 31% of sales and liquidity of
€1.4m. The price agreed for a 52.72% interest oxihp was €8.6m, of which €6.5m was
settled in cash and the balance by the assignnfidi60160 shares in Interpump Group S.p.A.
The minority quotaholder of Inoxihp is entitledgell the remaining 47.28% as follows: 10% at
any time and 37.28% subsequent to approval of @& Znancial statements, at a price based
on the average of the results reported in the wval financial statements prior to the date of
exercising the put option.

Bertoli S.r.l., based in the province of Parmag isorld leader in the design and construction of
high pressure homogenizers with piston pumps, piiynéor the food sector, but also for the
chemicals and cosmetics sectors. The 2015 salBsrtdli amounted to €12.5m, with EBITDA
of €3.3m and liquidity of €1.9m. The price paid the 100% interest in Bertoli was €7.3m.

Osper, based in Caxia do Sul (Brazil), is one & thading Brazilian companies in the
production and commercialization of power take-@iifgl hydraulic cylinders. The price agreed
for the purchase of 100% of Osper was BRL 21.7mpr@pmately €5.4m). The amount paid at
the closing date was BRL 10.5m (around €2.6m). fEngaining BRL 11.2m (about €2.8m) will
be paid as follows: BRL 1.2m in 60 monthly instadimis of BRL 20k, while BRL 10m
constitute the guarantee as an indemnity againstnpal liabilities that may arise in the
acquired company and will be paid, net of any indi&yramounts, within 15 August 2021.

Once again, the Interpump Group confirmed its distaéd growth strategy during 2015,
combining internal expansion with a targeted M&#£astgy in order to accelerate growth and
create value for the shareholders.
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group monitors operations using various peréoee indicators that may not be

comparable with similar parameters adopted by ajheups. Group management believes that
these indicators measure performance on a compatssis, with reference to normalized

operational factors, thus facilitating the idemwgfiion of operating trends and the making of
decisions about spending, the allocation of ressmuand other operational matters.

The performance indicators used by the Group diratkas follows:

= Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) Net sales plus Other operating income less
Operating costs (Cost of sales, Selling, generdl @iministrative expenses, and Other
operating costs);

= Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and anmization (EBITDA) : EBIT plus
depreciation, amortization and provisions;

= Net indebtedness Loans obtained plus Bank borrowing less Liquichds and cash
equivalents;

= Capital investment (CAPEX). the sum of investment in property, plant and pognt
and intangible assets, net of retirements;

= Return on capital employed (ROCE) EBIT / Capital employed;

= Return on equity (ROE): Profit for the period / Shareholders' equity.

The Group's income statement is prepared by fumztiareas (also called the "cost of sales"
method), this form being considered more repretigatéthan presentation by type of expense,

this information being specified in the notes te #mnual financial report. The chosen form, in
fact, complies with the internal reporting and bess management methods.

The cash flow statement was prepared with theégtlimethod.
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Consolidated income statement for the year

(€/000) 2015 2014
Net sales 894,928 671,999
Cost of products sold (577,310) (426,585)
Gross industrial margin 317,618 245,414
% on net sales 35.5% 36.5%
Other operating revenues 13,133 12,563
Distribution costs (84,321) (68,074)
General and administrative expenses (105,670) (80,517)
Other operating costs (3,864) (5,019)
EBIT 136,896 104,367
% on net sales 15.3% 15.5%
Financial income 42,416 8,144
Financial expenses (15,688) (19,504)
Adjustment of the value of investments carried afityq (262) 102
Profit for the period before taxes 163,362 93,109
Income taxes (45,056) (35,367)
Consolidated net profit for the year 118,306 57,742
% on net sales 13.2% 8.6%
Due to:

Parent company's shareholders 117,639 56,936
Subsidiaries' minority shareholders 667 806
Consolidated profit for the period 118,306 57,742
EBITDA 180,258 136,106
% on net sales 20.1% 20.3%
Shareholders' equity 622,628 466,550
Net debt 254,987 151,969
Payables for the acquisition of investments 23,209 74,075
Capital employed 900,824 692,594
ROCE 15.2% 15.1%
ROE 19.0% 12.4%

Basic earnings per share 1.101 0.541
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NET SALES

Net sales in 2015 totaled €894.9m, up by 33.2% #6@2.0m in 2014 (+8.9% like for like and
+1.3% net of exchange differences). Breakdown t#sshy business sector and geographical
area:

Rest of North Far East an Rest of the
(€/000) Italy  Europe America Oceania  World Total
2015
Hydraulic Sector 105,509 194,815 151,083 40,004 68,860 560,271
Water Jetting Sector 30,400 91,688 142,303 44954 25,312 334,657
Total 135,909 286,503 293,386 84,958 94,172 894,928
2014
Hydraulic Sector 72,619 145,709 98,602 21,869 57,405 396,204
Water Jetting Sector 19,159 78,554 118,436 39,993 19,653 275,795
Total 91,778 224,263 217,038 61,862 77,058 671,999
2015/2014 percentage changes
Hydraulic Sector +45.3% +33.7% +53.2% +82.9% +20.0% +41.4%
Water Jetting Sector +58.7% +16.7% +20.2% +12.4% +28.8% +21.3%
Total +48.1% +27.8% +35.2% +37.3% +22.2% +33.2%
2015/2014 like for like changes (%)
Hydraulic Sector +9.1% -3.2% +16.8% -1.4%  +2.6%  +5.0%
Water Jetting Sector +13.2% +10.4% +19.0% +8.3% +19.1% +14.6%
Total +10.0%  +1.6% +18.0% +4.8%  +6.8%  +8.9%

The like-for-like analysis net of exchange differea shows a decline of 1.0% in the Hydraulic
Sector and 4.7% growth in the Water Jetting Sector.

PROFITABILITY

The cost of sales accounted for 64.5% of turno@8r5% in 2014). Production costs, which
totaled €234.8m (€169.1m in 2014, which did notlude the costs of the Walvoil Group,
Inoxihp, Bertoli and Osper), accounted for 26.2%safles (25.2% in 2014). The purchase cost
of raw materials and components sourced on theeharicluding changes in inventories, was
€342.6m (€257.5m in 2014, which however did nolude the costs of the Walvoil Group,
Inoxihp, Bertoli and Osper). The incidence of parsh costs, including changes in inventories,
was 38.3%, as in 2014.

On a like-for-like basis, the percentage incidenoeproduction costs and purchase costs in
2015 were respectively 24.5% and 38.7% (down oldral 0.3 percentage points). The
percentage increase in the cost of sales from 68152614 to 64.5% in 2015 is primarily due to
a product mix effect related to the newly consdakdacompanies.

Like-for-like selling expenses were 7.9% highernthem 2014 (-0.1% net of exchange
differences), while the incidence on sales fell(b% percentage points with respect to 2014.
With the inclusion of Walvoil, Inoxihp, Bertoli an@sper the incidence fell by 0.7 percentage
points.
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Like-for-like general and administrative expensesend.6% higher than in 2014 (+3.6% net of
exchange differences), with a 0.1 percentage parease in the incidence on sales with
respect to 2014. With the inclusion of Walvaoil, xittp, Bertoli and Osper the incidence fell by
0.2 percentage points with respect to 2014.

Total payroll costs were €218.2m (€157.7m in 2QdHich however did not include the Walvail

Group, Inoxihp, Bertoli and Osper). Like for likeypoll costs rose by 8.5% (+2.8% net of
exchange differences) due to a 6.3% per capita pusease (+0.7% net of exchange
differences) and a rise of 75 in the average haadcdhe total number of Group employees in
2015 averaged 4,830 (3,650 like for like) compamed,575 in 2014. The like for like increase
in the average headcount in 2015 breaks down kvl 5 in Europe, 40 in the US and 30 in
the Rest of the World (Brazil, China, India, Chifaystralia, South Korea, South Africa and the
UAE).

EBITDA totaled €180.3m (20.1% of sales) compare&186.1m in 2014, which represented
20.3% of sales, reflecting a 32.4% increds&e for like EBITDA was up by 10.6% to
€150.5m or 20.6% of sales, increasing margins Byp@rcentage point3he following
table shows EBITDA for each business sector:

% on % on
2015 total 2014 total Growth/
€/000 sales* €/000 sales* Contraction
Hydraulic Sector 96,605 17.2% 69,366 17.5% +39.3%
Water Jetting Sector 83,671 24.9% 66,701 24.1% +25.4%
Other Revenues Sector (18) n.s. 39 n.s. n.s.
Total 180,258 20.1% 136,106 20.3% +32.4%

* = Total sales also include sales to other Groompmanies, while the sales analyzed previously actusively those
external to the group (see Note 5 to the Annuahfaial Report at 31 December 2015). ThereforetHermpurposes of
comparability the percentage is calculated on &d#ds rather than the sales shown earlier.

Like for like Hydraulic Sector EBITDA was up by 44l (17.4% of net sales). Like for like
Water Jetting Sector EBITDA was up by 17.4% (2400net sales).

EBIT stood at €136.9m (15.3% of sales) compareth ®it04.4m in 2014 (15.5% of sales),
reflecting an increase of 31.2&®BIT was 11.3% higher like for like, reaching €126. or
15.9% of sales, with an increase of 0.4 percernpaggs.

Financial management generated net income of €2¢nAnfinancial charges of €11.4m in

2014). 2015 saw the generation of income due téotlier payments made with respect to debts
for commitments to acquire residual stakes in glibges in the amount of €32.0m, as

described at the beginning of this report. Thefmetncial expenses incurred in 2014, on the
other hand, included €8.2m relating to the adjustnod payables following the purchase of
equity investments and the related interest.

The Group's acquisition strategy is to purchaseoritgj interests, while signing purchase
commitments for the residual stakes at prices bandfie results that the companies concerned
are able to achieve in the subsequent years. Asudtychanges in the estimated liability from
one period to the next, with an effect on the inestatement, are neither rare or exceptional;
however, the the income of €32.0m recognized irb2@dst be recognized as a non-recurring
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amount, since it is unusual for put options to kereised prior to the first contractually-agreed
date.

The effective tax rate was 27.6% (38.0% in 20146-2% net of the non-deductible financial
charges totaling €8.2m mentioned above). The coswailis influenced by the inclusion, in
2015 only, of income on the adjustment of the etgobalebt for commitments to acquire
residual stakes in subsidiaries as discussed alooiggnating exclusively in the consolidated
financial statements and hence not taxable. Intiaddideferred tax assets and liabilities were
adjusted in 2015 to reflect the change in the IR&® from 2017, as specified in the 2016
stability law. Net of the above effects, the 20a% tate would have been 33.9%. The reduction
with respect to 2014 was mainly due to changestahah legislation concerning the total
deductibility of payroll costs from the IRAP taxdsga which led to a tax saving of €2.0m.

Net profit of €118.3m was more than double the améar 2014 (€57.7m). A similar trend was
followed by basic earnings per share, which rosm{®.541 euro in 2014 to 1.101 euro in 2015.

In compliance with CONSOB Communication no. 60642938 July 2006, we draw your
attention to the fact that no atypical and/or ulistansactions were carried out in 2015.

CASH FLOW
The change in net financial indebtedness can bdeshrdown as follows:
2015 2014
€/000 €/000
Opening net financial position (151,969) (88,684)
Adjustment: opening net cash position of compan@sconsolidated
line by line at the end of the prior year (a) 435 158
Adjusted opening net financial position (151,534) (88,842)
Cash flow from operations 120,158 95,813
Cash flow generated (absorbed) by the managemeonoiercial working capital (213,279) (21,519)
Cash flow generated (absorbed) by other currentsaasd liabilities 6,725 (2,236)
Capital expenditure on tangible fixed assets (27,653) (32,654)
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets 1,594 1,512
Increase in other intangible fixed assets (2,804) (3,000)
Received financial income 714 637
Other 209 263
Free cash flow 85,246 38,290
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2015 2014
€/000 €/000
Free cash flow 85,246 38,290
Acquisition of investments, including received debt
and net of treasury stock assigned (145,243) (53,266)
Receipts for the sale of investments and lines efrtass 746 796
Dividends paid (20,390) (18,166)
Outlays for the purchase of treasury stock (32,709) (38,299)
Proceeds from the sale of treasury stock to banéfe of stock options 8,166 4,626
Change in other financial assets (2) 1,017
Loan repayments from (disbursals to) non-consdaidiauibsidiaries - 21
Cash flow generated (used) (104,185) (64,981)
Exchange rate differences 732 1,854
Net financial position at year end (254,987) (151,969)

(a) = in 2015 this concerns Hammelmann Bombaster8as Ltda and Interpump Hydraulics Middle East ©Z4Gee Note
1 to the Financial Statements and notes at 31 Deee015). Conversely, in 2014 the subjects werdPEi®ta Africa
PtY Ltd and Galtech Canada Inc.

Net liquidity generated by operations totaled €280(€95.8m in 2014), reflecting an increase
of 25.4%. There was a considerable increase indasé flow during 2015 to €85.2m, which
was more than double the figure recorded 2014 8&38.

Net indebtedness, excluding the payables and caomanis illustrated below, is analyzed as
follows:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014 01/01/2014
€/000 €/000 €/000

Cash and cash equivalents 135,130 87,159 105,312
Bank payables (advances and STC amounts) (5,735p7,770)  (20,932)
Interest-bearing financial payables (current paitio (83,833) (64,298) (61,371)
Interest-bearing financial payables (non-curremtipo) (300,549) (147,060) (111,693)
Total (254,987) (151.969) (88.684)

The Group also has contractual commitments forphechase of residual shareholdings in
subsidiaries totaling €23.2 million (€74.1 millian 31 December 2014). €4.9m of the foregoing
amounts concerns the acquisition of equity investmg¢€7.4m at 31 December 2014) and
€18.3m is related to contractual agreements for dbguisition of residual interests in

subsidiaries (€66.6m at 31 December 2014). Thegehavith respect to the prior period was
due, on the one hand, to the exercise of Hydroobatrd IMM Hydraulics options and, on the

other hand, to the new put option related to tlgpiesttion of Inoxihp.

GROUP BALANCE SHEET

Capital employed increased from €692.6m at 31 Dbeer2014 to €900.8m at 31 December
2015. The rise in capital employed is mainly duethte consolidation of Walvoil, Inoxihp,
Bertoli and Osper, which produced a €185.8m in@easd the effect of revaluation of foreign
currencies against the euro, which led to an irsered €18.8m. ROCE stood at 15.2% (15.1%
in 2014). ROE was 19.0% (12.4% in 2014).
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The statement of financial position is analyzedieh terms of the sources and applications of
funds:

31/12/2015 %  31/12/2014 %

(€/000) (€/000)
Trade receivables 178,129 135,634
Net inventories 238,637 182,463
Other current assets 22,172 17,784
Trade payables (94,022) (80,273)
Short-term tax payables (19,904) (11,665)
Short-term portion for provisions for risks and es (4,423) (4,162)
Other short-term liabilities (45,357) (34,195)
Net working capital 275,232 30.6 205,586 29.7
Net intangible and tangible fixed assets 319,259 233,722
Goodwill 347,388 279,373
Other financial fixed assets 1,025 1,740
Other non-current assets 28,333 25,125
Liabilities for employee benefits (17,264) (14,940)
Medium/long-term portion for provisions for riskscicharges (2,683) (1,949)
Other medium/long-term liabilities (50,466) (36,063)
Total net fixed assets 625,592 69.4 487,008 70.3
Total capital employed 900,824 100 692,594 100
Financed by:
Group shareholders' equity 617,157 460,695
Minority interests 5,471 5,855
Total shareholders' equity 622,628 69.1 466,550 67.4
Cash and cash equivalents (135,130) (87,159)
Payables to banks 5,735 27,770
Short-term interest-bearing financial payables 83,8 64,298
Short-term payable for purchase of investments 8,56 4,097
Total short term financial payables (cash) (42,002) -4.7 9,006 1.3
Medium/long-term interest-bearing financial payable 300,549 147,060
Medium/long-term payable for the acquisition of iagu 19,649 69,978
investments
Total medium/long-term financial payables 320,198 35.6 217,038 31.3
Total sources of financing 900,824 100.0 692,594 100.0

Interpump Group's equity structure is balancedh vait leverage index of 0.45 (0.48 at 31
December 2014). The leverage index is calculatedthas ratio between the short and
medium/long-term financial payables and sharehsl@yuity inclusive of minority interests.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Expenditure on property, plant and equipment tdtsi412.4m, of which €73.9m for the
acquisition of equity investments (€81.2m in 20d&,which €39.8m for the acquisition of
equity investments). It should be noted that theganies belonging to the Very-High Pressure
Systems business segment classify the increaseaahinery manufactured and hired out to
customers under tangible fixed assets (€11.2m &ekFmber 2015 and €7.2m at 31 December
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2014). Net of these latter amounts and the invastwia acquisitions, capital expenditure in the
strictest sense amounted to €27.3m in 2015 (€3/22014) and mainly refers to the normal
renewal and modernization of plant, machinery agdipment, with the exception of €2.3m,
related in 2015 to the construction of new plamtBulgaria, Romania and India and to the
expansion of a building owned by the Group Par&€if0©m in 2014 related mainly to
completion of the Hammelmann building). The diffeze with respect to the expenditure
recorded in the cash flow statement is due to yimaughic of payments.

The increases in intangible assets totaled €15amyhich €12.4m from the acquisition of

equity investments (€6.2m in 2014, of which €2.8anf the acquisition of equity investments)
and refer mainly to the allocation of the priceagfjuisitions to trademarks (€11.7m in 2015)
and to investment for the development of new prtsduc

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Interpump Engineering S.r.l. (Research and Designt&) was absorbed by Interpump Group
S.p.A. during 2015, with a view to simplifying th@roup structure. The team, which is
unchanged, is currently working on the design amdetbpment of new high pressure pumps
and the related accessories. The five new progestgpleted during 2015 related to a new pump
and three new valves for the Water Jetting Seetod, a new double-effect cylinder for the
Hyraulic Sector. There are also several projeatseatly under way for new high and very-high
pressure pumps, valves for the Water Jetting Sectbpumps and other hydraulic components.
Research and development work was also carriedtoftalvoil and Interpump Hydraulics for
the Hydraulic Sector and at Hammelmann for the wégi pressure Pumps Division.

Group strategy over the next few years is to comtiwith high levels of expenditure in the area
of research and development in order to assurevexhénpetus to structured growth. Research
costs have been capitalized in accordance witlr tmeilti-annual usefulness. The product
development costs capitalized in 2015 amounted@0C€E1,279 (€/000 1,936 in 2014), while

the costs charged to the income statement amotm&@00 16,083 (€/000 10,751 in 2014).

ENVIRONMENT

The Interpump Group is engaged exclusively in meah engineering and components
assembly activities that are not accompanied bythission of pollutants into the environment.
The production process is performed in complianite statutory legislation.

EXPOSURE TO RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group is exposed to the normal risks and uaictigés of any business activity. The
markets in which the Group operates are world nictegkets in many cases, with limited
dimensions and few significant competitors. Thdsgracteristics constitute a significant barrier
to the entry of new competitors, due to significacbnomy of scale effects against the backdrop
of somewhat uncertain economic returns for potemteav entrants. The Interpump Group
enjoys a position of world leadership in the fielafshigh and very-high pressure pumps and
power take-offs: these positions accentuate thke dad uncertainties of the business venture.

The financial risk factors are described in not# the Annual Financial Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In relation to corporate governance, Interpump @i®wmodel is based on the provisions of the
Code of Corporate Governance promoted by Borsemi@lS.p.A., published in July 2015, to

which Interpump Group has adhered. The above-meedigeport can be consulted on the
Group websitevww.interpumpgroup.itn the Corporate Governance section

The following table provides information on the rien of shares held by the directors and
statutory auditors, as required by art. 79 of CONSResolution n0.11971/1999 (“Issuers'
Regulation”):

Numbe Numbe
of shares of shares
held Number held

atendo of share Numbe atend o
Company of the year purchasec of shares of the year
Name issue  prior perioc subscriber solc yeal

Fulvio Montipo

Held directly Interpum 420,200 1,430,224(1,215,191) 635,233
Group S.p.A
Paolo Marinsek
. Interpumg ) )
Held directly Group S.p.A 80,000 (80,000)

Changes in the year relate to the exercise of siptkns.

The shareholders of Gruppo IPG Holding S.p.A. pesiy signed a Shareholders' Agreement
governing the entire equity interest in Gruppo IRGding S.p.A. This Agreement contained
constraints and limitations on the transfer of mald and the purchase of shares, as well as
agreements for the exercise of voting rights in@pa PG Holding S.p.A. and in Interpump
Group S.p.A. The Agreement was effective until #&mber 2015.

Fulvio Montipo, a shareholder of Gruppo IPG Holdiag.A., as well as Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Interpump Group S.p.A., exser 1,215,191 options on 21/12/2015 and
received the same number of shares in Interpumpisgop.A., which he then sold to Gruppo
IPG Holding S.p.A. On the same date, Gruppo IPGdiigl S.p.A. transferred a total of
7,197,417 shares in Interpump Group S.p.A. to M&IB.A. (controlled by Isabella Seragnoli),
in the context of a transaction that resulted iat ttompany ceasing to be a shareholder of
Gruppo IPG Holding S.p.A. On completion of the saction, Gruppo IPG Holding S.p.A. held
about 20.23% of the share capital of Interpump @r&ip.A. Consequent to the entire
transaction, the sole owners of Gruppo IPG Hol@ngA. are the Montipo family and Tamburi
Investment Partners.

STOCK OPTION PLANS

With the aim of motivating Group management andvmating participation in the goal of value
creation for shareholders, there are currentlyetisteck option plans in existence, one approved
by the Shareholders' Meeting of 20 April 20080@2/2009 plan), one approved by the
Shareholders' Meeting of 21 April 201®2006/2012 plan), and one approved by the
Shareholders' Meeting of 30 April 2013)(13/20150lan).
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The 2006/2009plan is addressed to a number of directors andpgemployees and involved
the assignment of up to 4,000,000 options, to leeated over the following 4 years, using the
company's treasury stock at an exercise price @équbk greater of the current market value at
the time of allocation or the book value. Assigningaepended on share prices reaching pre-
established stock market quotations and/or theesaehient of specific financial parameters and
personal targets. The assignments have now beepletath. The options can only be exercised
three years after the date of allocation. At 31ddelger 2015 the situation of the plan was as
follows:

Number of rights assign 2,999,229
Number of shares purcha: (2,500,296
Total number of options not yet exerci 499.,00(

The beneficiaries of the options were:

Number
Number of of
Number rights  Number .
Price per of rights maturedin of shares OptIOﬂS
share for the assigned the year purchased exercisa
exercise at startof in the ble at
of options Vesting period year year year end
Director of the Parent Company
€7.2884 01.05.2010-31.05.2015 215,033 - (215,033)
. . €5.4047 01.05.2011-31.05.2016 215,191 - (215,191) -
Q Fulvio Montipo
€3.7524 01.11.2012-31.05.2017 80,000 - - 80,000
€ 3.7524 01.05.2010-31.12.2017 300,000 - - 300,000
o €7.2884 01.05.2010-31.05.2015 108,000 - (108,000) -
Other beneficiaries
(employees) €5.4047 01.05.2011-31.05.2016 83,000 - (14,000) 69,000
€ 3.7524 01.07.2010-31.12.2017 72,500 - (22,500) 50,000
Total 1,073,724 - (574,724) 499,000

The Shareholders' Meeting of 21 April 2010 approtiesel adoption of a new incentive plan
designated”Interpump 2010/2012 Incentive Plah. The plan, which is based on the free
assignment of options that grant the beneficiattesright, on the achievement of specified
objectives, to (i) purchase or subscribe the Comigashares up to the maximum number of
3,000,000 or, (ii) at the discretion of the Boartl irectors, receive the payment of a
differential equivalent to any increase in the nearkalue of the Compahy ordinary shares.
Beneficiaries of the plan can be employees or tiremf the Company and/or its subsidiaries,
identified among the subjects with significant sot& functions. The exercise price has been set
at € 3.75 per share. The options can be exercisteeebn 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2016.
The conditions for the exercise of the optionscmenected to the arrival at specific parameters
related to the financial statements and performandeterpump Group shares. Since the targets
of the plan were accomplished the 2,860,000 optamsigned have matured, as resolved by the
Board of directors’ meetings held on 15 March 28dd 24 April 2012.
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At 31 December 2015 the situation of the plan waf®khows:

Number of rights assign 2,860,00!
Number of shares purcha: (2,700,000
Total number of options not yet exerci 160,00(

The beneficiaries of the options were:

Number
Number of of
Number rights .
Price per of rights  maturedin Number optlo_ns
share for the assigned the year  of shares EXErcisa
exercise at startof purchased  ble at
of options Vesting period year in the year year end
Directors of the Parent Company
Q  Fulvio Montipo €3.75 01.07.2013-31.12.20161,000,000 - (1,000,000)
Q Paolo Marinsek € 3.7501.07.2013-31.12.2016 100,000 - (80,000) 20,000
Other beneficiaries
(employees) € 3.75 01.07.2013-31.12.2016 257,000 - (117,000) 140,000
Total 1,357,000 - (1,197,000) 160,000

The Shareholders' Meeting of 30 April 2013 approtieel adoption of a new incentive plan
designated”Interpump 2013/2015Incentive Plah. The plan, which is based on the free
assignment of options that grant the beneficiattesright, on the achievement of specified
objectives, to (i) purchase or subscribe the Cowigashares up to the maximum number of
2,000,000 or, (i) at the discretion of the Boarfl Qirectors, receive the payment of a
differential equivalent to any increase in the nearkalue of the Compahy ordinary shares.
Beneficiaries of the plan can be employees or ttiremf the Company and/or its subsidiaries,
identified among the subjects with significant sot& functions. The exercise price has been set
at € 6.00 per share. The options can be exerceseebn 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2019.
The next meeting of the Board of Directors, held30nApril 2013, set a figure of 2,000,000 for
the number of options to be assigned, divided lgytthial number of options in each tranche
(500,000 for the first tranche, 700,000 for theosectranche and 800,000 for the third tranche)
and established the terms for the exercise of tpgoms, which are connected to the
achievement of specific accounting parameters hagérformance of Interpump Group stock.
The same Board of Director's meeting assigned 10000options to Interpump Group S.p.A.
director Fulvio Montipo and 320,000 options to dim¥ Paolo Marinsek, the exercise of which
is subject to the fulfilment of the above conditso Moreover, the same Board of Directors
meeting conferred on the Chairman and the Depusgir@ian of Interpump Group, separately,
the power to specify the beneficiaries of the fert680,000 options. 550,000 options were
assigned to the other beneficiaries on 29 Octol®d32 Accordingly, a total of 1,870,000
options have been assigned.

RELATIONS WITH GROUP COMPANIES AND TRANSACTIONS WIT H
RELATED PARTIES

With regard to transactions entered into with eglgparties, including intra-group transactions,
we point out that they cannot be defined as eiditypical or unusual, inasmuch as they form
part of the normal course of activities of the Graewmpanies. These transactions are regulated
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at arm's length conditions, taking into account ¢haracteristics of the assets transferred and
services rendered.

Information on relations with related parties, urdihg the information required by CONSOB
communication of 28 July 2006, is given in Notet@6he Annual Financial Report.

The Board of Directors of Interpump Group S.p.As bpproved the Procedure for Transactions
with Related Parties, in application of the newidkgion issued to transpose the relevant
European Council Directive and the related ConseguRation. For more details, we invite you
to refer to the report on corporate governanceth@awnership structure, which is available on
the websitevww.interpumpgroup.itn the Corporate Governance section

TREASURY STOCK

Information on treasury stock is given in Note 23h@ Annual Financial Report.

RECONCILIATION WITH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE
PARENT COMPANY

Reconciliation of consolidated net equity and neifip ascribable to the Parent company's
shareholders with those relative to the individirzncial statements of the Parent company is
as follows:

Shareholder: Shareholder:
equity Net profit equity
at 31/12/2015 as 2015 at 31/12/2014
Parent Company's financial statements 294,927 28,529 247,020
Difference between the book value of consolidateésitments
and their valuation according to the net equigthod 324,093 89,896 214,752
Greater book value of a building owned by the Pa@amhpany 199 3 196
Elimination of Parent Company's intra-group income (2,062) 789 (1,273)
Total consolidation adjustments 322,230 89,110 213,675
Shareholders equity and result ascribable to therPa
Company's 617,157 117,639 460,695

Shareholders

GROUP COMPANIES

At 31 December 2015 the Interpump Group is led ftgrpump Group S.p.A., which holds
direct and indirect controlling interests in 54 ganies (one in liquidation) operating in two
business segments (known as the Hydraulic SectbthenWater Jetting Sector).

The Parent company, with registered offices in ‘8anb d’Enza, mainly produces high and
very high pressure plunger pumps for water, as wasllhigh pressure cleaners, which are
classified in the Water Jetting Sector.

The main data of the consolidated subsidiariesésgnted in the table below, whereas for the
Parent Company this can be taken from the finaistaaéments attached hereto.
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Share %

capital held at
Companies consolidated line by line (€/000) 31/12/15 Head office
Bertoli S.r.l. 50 100.00% Reggio Emilia

General Pump Inc.

Hammelmann GmbH

Hammelmann Australia Pty Ltd
Hammelmann Corporation Inc.
Hammelmann S. L. (1)

Hammelmann Pumps Systems Co Ltd
Hammelmann Bombas e Sistemas Ltda
Inoxihp S.r.l.

NLB Corporation Inc.

SIT S.p.A.

Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A.

HS Penta S.p.A.

HS Penta Africa Pty Ltd

Hpress Africa Pty Ltd

Interpump Hydraulics Middle East FZCO

Oleodinamica Panni S.r.l.
Contarini Leopoldo S.r.l.
Unidro S.a.r.l.

Copa Hydrosystem Ood

1,854 100.00%
25 100.00%
472 100.00%
39 100.00%
500 100.00%
871 90.00%
739 100.00%
119 52.72%
12 100.00%
105 65.00%
2,632 100.00%
4,244  100.00%
- 100.00%

796  100.00%

326 100.00%

2,000 100.00%
47  100.00%
8 100.00%

3 95.00%

Minneapolis— USA
Oelde— Germany

Melbourne— Australia

Miamisburg - USA
Zaragoza - Spain
Tianjin — China
San Paolo - Brazil
Nova Milanese (MI)

Detroit— USA

S.llario d'Enza (RE)

Calderara di Reno (BO)

Faenza (RA)
Johannesburg - South

Africa

Boksburg - South
Africa

Dubai - United Arab
Emirates

Tezze sul Brenta (VI)
Lugo (RA)

Barby - France

Troyan - Bulgaria

Main activity

Systems and pumps for homogenizers
(Water Jetting Sector)

Distributor of high pressure pumps
(Water Jetting Sector)
High pressure systems and pumps
(Water Jetting Sector)
Sale of high pressure systems and pumps
(Water Jetting Sector)

Sale of high pressure systemspamdps
(Water Jetting Sector)

Sale of high pressure systempuangs
(Water Jetting Sector)
Sale of high pressure systems and pumps
(Water Jetting Sector)

Sale of high pressure systerdgpamps
(Water Jetting Sector)

High pressure systems and pumps
(Water Jetting Sector)
High pressure systems and pumps
(Water Jetting Sector)

Sheet metal drawing, blankary pressing
(Water Jetting Sector)

Power take-offs and hydeguilimps

(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraulic cisd
(Hydraulic Sector)
Production and sale of hydraulic cylinders
(Hydraulic Sector)
Sale of hydraulic hoses and fittings
(Hydraulic Sector)

Sale of ancillary products for industrial vehicles,
hydraulic pumps and power takeoffs (Hydraulic
Sector)

Production and sale of hyticazylinders
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraulic cylinsler
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraulitncdrs
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraajiinders
(Hydraulic Sector)
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Sales Sales
€/million €/million
31/12/2015  31/12/2014
7.9 -
475 42.1
94.1 83.1
9.6 8.2
29.1 20.2
2.6 24
74 6.7
1.0 -
10.8 -
83.4 67.4
4.3 4.0
434 44.0
29.6 304
3.5 3.6
22 2.2
29 -
38.4 35.8
19.9 20.0
3.6 3.7
4.8 5.0

Average
number of
employees

2015

31
60

322
21

32

16

29
233
22
204
111
17

29

192
98
11

102

Average
number of
employees

2014

58
316
19

29

16

226
22
206
121
16

28

189
100
11

79
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Share %

capital held at
Companies consolidated line by line (€/000) 31/12/15 Head office
AVI S.r.l. 10 100.00% Varedo (MB)
Hydrocar Chile S.A. 129 90.00% Santiago— Chile
Hydroven S.r.l. 200 100.00% Tezze sul Brenta (VI)
Interpump Hydraulics France S.a.r.l. 76 99.77% Ennery— France
Interpump Hydraulics India Private Ltd 682 100.00% {osur— India
Interpump Hydraulics Brasil Ltda 12,899 100.00% Caxia do Sul - Brazil
Muncie Power Prod. Inc. 784 100.00% Muncie - USA
American Mobile Power Inc. 3,410 80.00% rairmount— USA
Wuxi Interpump Weifu Hydraulics 2,095 65.00% Wuxi - China
Company Ltd
Hydrocontrol S.p.A. 1,350 100.00% Osteria Grande (BO)
Hydrocontrol Inc. 763 100.00% Minneapolis— USA
HC Hydraulic Technologies (P) Ltd 4,120 100.00% Bangalore— India
Aperlai HK Ltd 77 100.00% Hong Kong
HTIL 98 85.00% Hong Kong
Guangzhou Bushi Hydraulic 3,720 100.00% Guangzhou - China

Technology Ltd
Galtech Canada Inc. 76 100.00% Terrebonne Quebee
Canada

IMM Hydraulics S.p.A. 520 100.00% Atessa (Switzerland)
Hypress S.r.l. 50 100.00% Atessa (Switzerland)
IMM Hydraulics Ltd 1 100.00%

Halesowen— United
Kingdom

Main activity

Sale of ancillary products for induatnehicles,
hydraulic pumps and power takeoffs (Hydraulic
Sector)
Sale of hydraulic pumps and power takeoffs
(Hydraulic Sector)

Sale of ancillary productsifaustrial vehicles,
hydraulic pumps and power takeoffs (Hydraulic
Sector)

Sale of hydraulic pumps and power takeoffs
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of power takeoffs and hydraulic

pumps (Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of pota&eoffs, hydraulic
pumps and cylinders (Hydraulic Sector)

Power take-offs and hydraulic pumps
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraulic cylinders
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraulic purapd power
take-offs (Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydrawdlves and
directional controls (Hydraulic Sector)

Sale of hydraulic valves and directional controls
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraulic valves and
directional controls (Hydraulic Sector)

Holding company for Hydrocontrol in China
(Hydraulic Sector)

Sub-holding company for Hydrocontrol ihiga
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraalices and
directional controls (Hydraulic Sector)

Sale of hydraulic valves and directional controls
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydtddses and fittings
(Hydraulic Sector)

Rental of line of business
(Hydraulic Sector)

Sale of hydraulic hoses and fittings
(Hydraulic Sector)
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Sales Sales

€/million €/million
31/12/2015  31/12/2014
5.1 5.2

7.0 8.7

12.9 10.9

4.2 4.4

9.7 7.3

4.5 6.3

95.7 82.9
12.4 10.2
17.7 16.2
65.1 67.8
10.2 8.3

7.7 5.2

7.5 6.1

2.8 2.7

47.7 48.9
13.0 13.4

Average
number of
employees

2015
13

54

35
17
78
87
343
65
96
410
17

66

77

11

230

46

Average
number of
employees

2014
14

62

35
19
73
82
319
65
96
419
14

56

73

10

238

51



9¢

*

Share %
capital held at

Companies consolidated line by line (€/000) 31/12/15 Head office
Hypress Hydraulik GmbH 52  100.00% Meinerzhagen -

Germany
Hypress France S.a.r.l. 3,616 100.00% Strasbourg— France
IMM Hydro Est 3,155 100.00% Catcau Cluj Napoca-

Romania
Dyna Flux S.r.l. 40 51.00% Bolzaneto (GE)
Walvoil S.p.A. 5,000 100.00% Reggio Emilia
Walvoil Fluid Power Corp. 41 100.00% 1,1sa— USA
Walvoil Fluid Power Shanghai Co. Ltd 1,872 100.00% Shanghai~ China
Walvoil Fluid Power (India) Pvt Ltd 683  100.00% Bangalore— India
Walvoil Fluid Power Korea 453  100.00% Pyeongtaek - South

Korea
Walvoil Fluid Power France S.a.r.l. 10 100.00% Vritz - France
Walvoil Fluid Power Australasia 7 100.00% Melbourne— Australia
Teknova S.r.l. (in liquidation) 28 100.00% Reggio Emilia
Companies not consolidated line by line
General Pump China 111 100% Ningbo - China
Interpump Hydraulics UK Ltd 13 100%  Birmingham—

UK
Interpump Hydraulics Peru 319 90% Lima

Main activity

Sale of hydraulic hoses and fittings
(Hydraulic Sector)

Sale of hydraulic hoses and fittings
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraulic hoses and fittings
(Hydraulic Sector)

Sale of hydraulic hoses and fittings
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraulic eahand
directional controls (Hydraulic Sector)

Sale of hydraulic valves and directional controls
(Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraulic valves and
directional controls (Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraulic valves and
directional controls (Hydraulic Sector)

Production and sale of hydraulic valves and
directional controls (Hydraulic Sector)

Agent for the sale of hydraulic vedvand directional
controls (Hydraulic Sector)

Agent for the sale of hydraulic valves and direadio
controls (Hydraulic Sector)

Inoperative (Other Revenues Sector)

Marketing of components
(Water Jetting Sector)

Sale of hydraulic pumps and power takeoffs
(Hydraulic Sector)

Sale of hydraulic pumps and power takeoffs
(Hydraulic Sector)

Sales Sales
€/million €/million
31/12/2015  31/12/2014
6.1 6.0

2.2 3.6

74 6.5

0.6 0.6
117.7 -
321 -

52 -

111 -
10.0 -

Average
number of
employees

2015

16

87

768
45
36

216

41

Average
number of
employees

2014

15

14

79

= Sales and the average number of employeesld gflate to Takarada Industria e Comercio Ltdaymerating company that was absorbed in 2015 leydotmp Hydraulics do Brasil Partecipacoes Ltdahthiding
company, which then became known as Interpump HyidsaBrasil Ltda.



EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE END OF THE YEAR AND BUSI NESS
OUTLOOK

The entire equity interest in Endeavour (Hydralokrol), based in Bath, England, was acquired
on 22 January 2016. This company manufactures maghand systems for joining hydraulic

pipes. The purchase is part of a program to sthemgiand rationalize Interpump's direct

commercial presence in the various internationatketa. Possession of a company that
manufactures crimping systems enables Interpumpmnigtto sell them, but also to equip all

international branches with the equipment necessagpmmercialize joined hydraulic pipes,

which is an important after sales service.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, Endeavourrtepcales of about GBP 1.9m (about
€2.5m), with an EBITDA of about 16% of sales. VidM Hydraulics UK, Interpump paid GBP
1m for Endeavour, including cash of GBP 200k. Tgrise may be adjusted by a maximum of
GBP 300k with reference to EBITDA at 31 March 2016.

Considering the short time span since 31 Decemb#b,2the adverse economic situation in
world markets and the short period of time histalljccovered by the order portfolio, we do not
yet have sufficient information to make a reliafdeecast of trends in 2016, for which positive
results are anyway predicted in terms of salespaofitability.

FURTHER INFORMATION

Pursuant to the regulatory requirements for listhrag concern subsidiaries formed in or subject
to the laws of non-EU states, Walvoil Fluid Powargdration (USA) and Walvoil Fluid Power
Pvt Ltd (India) have been included since 31 Deceribé4 among the companies of significant
importance to the consolidated financial statemedot®wing their inclusion in the audit plan,
even though they have not individually exceededithiés established in art. 151 of the Issuers'
Regulation.

The Interpump Group comprises a large number ofpemies, some of which are small, and
has direct presence in 15 countries. This genenaflgns that the audit plan must be added to
each year with companies that, although they damvidually exceed the limits set down in
art. 151 of the Issuers' Regulation, must anywayinotuded in order to comply with the
cumulative limits prescribed in the same article.

It should be noted that the Parent Company is nbjest to activities of management or
coordination. The resolution of the Interpump Gr&p.A. Board of Directors of 12 June 2008
acknowledges that "Interpump Group S.p.A." is ndijsct to the management or coordination
of the shareholder "Gruppo IPG Holding S.r.l." hes=

« the shareholder has no means or facilities foretkecution of such activities, having no
employees or other personnel capable of providingpart for the activities of the board of
directors;

e that the shareholder does not prepare the budgdissiness plans of Interpump Group
S.p.A,;

e it does not issue any directives or instructionstdosubsidiary, nor does it require to be
informed beforehand or to approve either its maghicant transactions or its routine
administration;

e there are no formal or informal committees or watoups in existence, formed of
representatives of Gruppo IPG Holding and represmet of the subsidiary.

At the date of this report no changes had occurreelation to conditions stated above.
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Interpump Group S.p.A. belongs to a domestic taougrtogether with Teknova S.r.l. and
Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. In addition, IMM Hydilas S.p.A. and Hypress S.r.l. are
members of a different domestic tax group.

Pursuant to the terms of art. 3 of Consob Resalutim. 18079 of 20 January 2012, Interpump
Group S.p.A. chose to adhere to the opt-out regirogided for by art. 70, par. 8, and art. 71,
par. 1-bis, of Consob Reg. no. 11971/99 (as amgndleds making use of the faculty of
derogation from the obligation to publish the imhative documents prescribed at the time of
significant operations of mergers, break-ups, ehpiicreases by means of the conferment of
assets in kind, acquisitions and divestments.

Sant’llario d’Enza (RE), 18 March 2016
For the Board of Directors

Fulvio Montipo
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Consolidated Financial Statements at 31/12/2015

INTERPUMP GROUP

Interpump Group S.p.A. and subsidiaries
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Consolidated balance sheet
(€/000)
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Inventories

Tax receivables

Derivative financial instruments
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Other financial assets

Tax receivables

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Assets held for sale

Total assets

30

Notes 31/12/201 31/12/201.

7 135,130 87,159
8,31 178,129 135,634
9 238,637 182,463

14,361 10,477
10, 31 2 -
12,31 7,809 6,855
574,068 422,588
13 286,066 209,073
14 347,388 279,373
15 33,193 24,649
16, 31 1,025 994
1,934 2,456
17 25,190 22,035
1,209 1,380
696,005 539,960
11 - 615
1,270,073 963,163




(€/000)
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Payables to banks

Interest-bearing financial payables (current paitio
Derivative financial instruments

Tax payables

Other current liabilities

Provisions for risks and charges

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing financial payables
Liabilities for employee benefits
Deferred tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities
Provisions for risks and charges
Total non-current liabilities
Liabilities held for sale

Total liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital
Legal reserve
Share premium reserve

Reserve for the measurement of hedging derivatives

at fair value
Reserve for restatement of defined benefit plans
Translation provision
Other reserves
Group shareholders' equity
Minority interests
Total shareholders' equity
Total shareholders' equity and liabilities

31

Notes 31/12/201:  31/12/201
8,31 94,022 80,273
18, 31 5,735 27,770
18,31 83,833 64,298
10, 31 77 169
19,904 11,665
19,31 48,840 38,123
20 4,423 4,162
256,834 226,460
18,31 300,549 147,060
21 17,264 14,940
17 48,098 33,436
22 22,017 72,605
20 2,683 1,949
390,611 269,990
11 - 163
647,445 496,613
23 56,032 53,871
24 11,323 11,323
23 138,955 101,237
24 (13) (19)
3,500) (5,273)
24 22,657 3,809
24 391,704 295,747
617,157 460,695
25 5471 5,855
622,628 466,550
1,2708 963,163




Consolidated income statement for the year

(€/000) Notes 2015 2014
Net sales 894,928 671,999
Cost of products sold 27 (577,310) (426,585)
Gross industrial margin 317,618 245,414
Other net revenues 26 13,133 12,563
Distribution costs 27 (84,321) (68,074)
General and administrative expenses 27,2805,670) (80,517)
Other operating costs 27 (3,864) (5,019)
Ordinary profit before financial expenses 136,896 104,367
Financial income 29 42,416 8,144
Financial expenses 29 (15,688) (19,504)
Adjustment of the value of investments

carried at equity (262) 102
Profit for the period before taxes 163,362 93,109
Income taxes 30 (45,056)  (35,367)
Consolidated net profit for the period 118,306 57,742
Due to:
Parent company's shareholders 117,639 56,936
Subsidiaries' minority shareholders 667 806
Consolidated profit for the period 118,306 57,742
Basic earnings per share 31 1.101 0.541
Diluted earnings per share 31 1.086 0.531
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Comprehensive consolidated income statements fordlyear

(€/000) 2015 2014
Consolidated profit for the year (A) 118,306 57,742
Other comprehensive profit (loss) that will be subsquently

reclassified in consolidated profit for the peria
Accounting for interest rate hedging derivatives

using the cash flow hedge method:
- Profit (Loss) on derivative financial instrumeffits the period - -
- Minus: Adjustment for reclassification of profii®sses) to the income
statement - -
- Minus: Adjustment for recognition of fair value teserves in the prior year _ 50
Total - 50
Accounting for exchange risk hedging derivatives

using the cash flow hedge method:
- Profit (Loss) on derivative financial instrumefits the period (19) (27)
- Minus: Adjustment for reclassification of profifi®sses) to the income
statement 27 (14)
- Minus: Adjustment for recognition of fair value teserves in the prior year _ -
Total 8 (42)
Profits (Losses) arising from the translation ta@wof the financial statements
of foreign companies 18,985 23,275
Profits (Losses) of companies carried at equity ) (16 68
Related taxes (2) @)
Total other profit (loss) that will be subsequently

reclassified in consolidated profit for the peria, net of the

tax effect (B) 18,975 23,351
Other comprehensive profit (loss) that will not besubsequently

reclassified in consolidated profit for the peria
Profit (loss) deriving from the restatement of defl benefit plans 2,479 (2,640)
Related taxes (683) 726
Total Other comprehensive profit (loss) that will rot be subsequently

reclassified in consolidated profit for the year,

net of tax effect (C) 1,796 (1,914)
Comprehensive consolidated profit for the year (A} (B) + (C) 139,077 79,179
Due to:
Parent company's shareholders 138,256 77,960
Subsidiaries' minority shareholders 821 1,219
Comprehensive consolidated profit for the period 18,077 79,179
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Consolidated cash flow statement

(€/000) 2015 2014
Cash flow from operating activities
Pre-tax profit 163,362 93,109
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Capital losses (Capital gains) from the sale of fiassets (3,076) (1,519)
Capital losses (Capital gains) from the sale of lssirdivisions and equity investments - (406)
Amortization and depreciation, loss and reinstateréassets 41,886 30,085
Costs ascribed to the income statement relativiotk ®ptions that do not involve

monetary outflows for the Group 1,370 1,370
Loss (Profit) from investments 262 (202)
Net change in risk provisions and provisions foptayee benefits (973) (147)
Outlays for tangible fixed assets destined for hire (11,201) (7,180)
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets grantekifer 7,643 3,792
Net financial charges (26,728) 11,360

172,545 130,362

(Increase) decrease in trade receivables and ciinemt assets 1,546 (5,503)
(Increase) decrease in inventories 3,412 (14,145)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables and othemttiabilities (11,512) (4,107)
Interest paid (5,838) (5,823)
Currency exchange gains realized 2,110 1,185
Taxes paid (48,659) (29,911)
Net cash from operating activities 113,604 72,058

Cash flows from investing activities
Outlay for the acquisition of investments, netedeived cash

and including treasury stock assigned (176,227) (47,784)
Disposal of investments including transferred cash 746 796
Capital expenditure in property, plant and equipment (27,502) (32,575)
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets 1,594 1,512
Increase in intangible fixed assets (2,804) (3,000)
Received financial income 714 637
Other 290 883
Net liquidity used in investing activities (203,189) (79,531)
Cash flows of financing activity

Disbursal (repayment) of loans 145,847 28,325
Dividends paid (20,390) (18,166)
Outlays for purchase of treasury stock (32,709) (38,299)
Sale of treasury stock for the acquisition of egjinivestments 60,891 7,026
Proceeds from the sale of treasury stock to baaefe of stock options 8,166 4,626
Repayment (disbursal) of loans by/to non-consolifiatédsidiaries - 21
Change in other financial assets (409) 1,017
Disbursal (repayment) of loans from (to) sharehalde Q) (248)
Payment of financial leasing installments (printipartion) (3,368) (4,306)
Net liquidity generated (used by) financing activites 158,027 (20,004)
Net increase (decrease) of cash and cash equivakent 68,442 (27,477)
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(€/000) 2015 2014

Net increase (decrease) of cash and cash equivakent 68,442 (27,477)
Opening cash and cash equivalents of companieslkdated

line by line for the first time 1,129 41
Exchange differences from the translation of cdstompanies in areas outside the EU 435 2,445
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the ye 59,389 84,380
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 129,395 59,389

For reconciliation of cash on hand refer to note 34
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Statement of changes in consolidated shareholdeejuity

Balances at 31 December 2013

Recognition in the income statement of the faiugal
of stock options assigned and exercisable

Purchase of treasury stock

Sale of treasury stock to the beneficiaries oflstmations

Sale of treasury stock for payment of equity inwestts

Dividends paid

Purchase of residual interests in subsidiaries

Effect of Hydrocar Chile-Syscam combination

Copa-Golf merger effect

Acquisition of IMM

Comprehensive Profit (loss) for 2014

Balances at 31 December 2014

Recognition in the income statement of the faiugal
of stock options assigned and exercisable

Purchase of treasury stock

Sale of treasury stock to the beneficiaries oflsttions

Sale of treasury stock for payment of equity inwestts

Dividends paid

Purchase of residual interests in subsidiaries

Comprehensive Profit (loss) for 2015

Balances at 31 December 2015

Reserve for

Reserve for

valuation of  restatement
Share hedging of defined Group

Share Legal premium derivatives at benefit plans Translation Other shareholde Minority
capital reserve reserve fair value provision reserves rs'equity interests Total
55,003 11,323 125,039 (27) (3,396) (19,084) 257,828 426,686 6,263 432,949
- - 1,370 - - - - 1,370 - 1,370
(1,986) - (35,970) - - - (343) (38,299) - (38,299)
482 - 4,144 - - - 4,626 - 4,626
372 - 6,654 - - - - 7,026 - 7,026
- - - - - - (18,108)  (18,108) (58) (18,166)
- - - - - - (542) (542) (1,871) (2,413)
- - - - - - (82) (82) 289 207
- - - - - - 58 58 (58) -
- - - - - - - - 71 71
- - - 8 (1,877) 22,893 56,936 77,960 1,219 79,179
53,871 11,323 101,237 (19) (5,273) 3,809 295,747 460,695 5,855 466,550
- - 1,370 - - - - 1,370 - 1,370
(1,322) - (32,709) - - - 1,322 (32,709) - (32,709)
921 - 8,166 - - - (921) 8,166 - 8,166
2,562 - 60,891 - - - (2,562) 60,891 - 60,891
- - - - - - (19,321)  (19,321) (925) (20,246)
- - - - - - (191) (191) (280) (471)
- - - 6 1,772 18,848 117,630 138,256 821 139,077
56,032 11,323 138,955 (13) (3,501) 22,657 391,704 617,157 5471 622,628




Notes to the annual financial report
1. General information

Interpump Group S.p.A. is a company domiciled imt$ario d'Enza (RE) and incorporated
under Italian law. The company is listed on theadistock exchange in the STAR segment.

The Group manufactures and markets high and vely piessure plunger pumps, very high
pressure systems (Water Jetting Sector), powerdté&e gear pumps, hydraulic cylinders,
directional controls, valves, hydraulic hoses aitin§s and other hydraulic components
(Hydraulic Sector). The Group has production féiedi in Italy, the US, Germany, China, India,
Brazil, Bulgaria, Romania and South Korea.

The consolidated financial statements at 31 Decer@b&5 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 18 March 2016.

2. Scope of the consolidation

The 2015 consolidation basis includes the Paremhpgaoy and the following subsidiaries
consolidated on a line-by-line basis (with the mifation required on the basis of

DEM/6064293 of 28/07/2006):

Shareholde

Share rs' Profit %

capital Equity 2015 stake

Company Head office €/000 €/000 €/000 at31/12/15
Bertoli S.r.l. Reggio Emilia 50 5,979 1,116 100.00%
General Pump Inc. Minneapolis (USA) 1,854 19,469 4,062 100.00%
Hammelmann GmbH Oelde (Germany) 25 118,126 20,285  100.00%
Hammelmann Australia Pty Ltd (1) Melbourne (Ausgagl 472 5,768 659 100.00%
Hammelmann Corporation Inc (1) Miamisburg (USA) 39 15,098 4,901 100.00%
Hammelmann S. L. (1) Zaragoza (Spain) 500 1,635 403 100.00%
Hammelmann Pumps Systems Co Ltd (1) Tianjin (China) 871 5,266 1,278 90.00%
Hammelmann Bombas e Sistemas Ltda (1) San Padazi(Br 739 106 (102) 100.00%
Inoxihp S.r.l. Nova Milanese (MI) 119 5410 2,214 52.72%
NLB Corporation Inc. Detroit (USA) 12 90,093 5,938 100.00%
SIT S.p.A. S.llario d'Enza (RE) 105 1,143 35 65.00%
Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. Calderara di Reno (BO) 2,632 141,339 15,870 100.00%
HS Penta S.p.A (2) Faenza (RA) 4,244 10,348 808 100.00%
HS Penta Africa Pty Ltd (10) Johannesburg (SoutiicAf - 851 158 100.00%
Interpump Hydraulics Middle East FZCO (2) and (9)  ub@i (UAE) 326 543 119 100.00%
Oleodinamica Panni S.r.l. (2) Tezze sul Brenta (VI) 2,000 20,056 4,592 100.00%
Contarini Leopoldo S.r.l. (2) Lugo (RA) a7 6,968 1,988 100.00%
Unidro S.a.r.l. (3) Barby (France) 8 2477 370 100.00%
Copa Hydrosystem Ood (3) Troyan (Bulgaria) 3 4,256 192 95.00%
AVIS.rl. (2) Varedo (MB) 10 1,763 327 100.00%
Hydrocar Chile S.A. (2) Santiago (Chile) 129 5,078 283 90.00%
Hydroven S.r.l. (2) Tezze sul Brenta (VI) 200 3,514 1,003 100.00%
Interpump Hydraulics France S.a.r.l. (2) Ennery(iee) 76 1,648 271 99.77%
Interpump Hydraulics India Private Ltd (2) Hoslndia) 682 9,141 672 100.00%
Interpump Hydraulics Brasil Ltda (2) Caxia do SBidzil) 12,899 10,183  (843) 100.00%
Muncie Power Prod. Inc. (2) Muncie (USA) 784 68,165 12,372  100.00%

37



Shareholde

Share rs' Profit %

capital Equity 2015 stake
Company Head office €/000 €/000 €/000 at31/12/15
American Mobile Power Inc. (4) Fairmount (USA) M1 8,061 1,474 80.00%
Wuxi Interpump Weifu Hydraulics Company Ltd (2) Wichina) 2,095 9,793 1,621 65.00%
Hydrocontrol S.p.A. (2) Osteria Grande (BO) 1,350 29,712 2,097 100.00%
Hydrocontrol Inc. (5) Minneapolis (USA) 763 1,357 667 100.00%
HC Hydraulics Technologies(P) Ltd (5) Bangalorel{&) 4,120 5,591 688 100.00%
Aperlai HK Ltd (5) Hong Kong 77 74 3) 100.00%
HTIL (6) Hong Kong 98 4522 2,386 85.00%
Guangzhou Bushi Hydraulic Technology Ltd (7) Gudrae (China) 3,720 6,856 1,473 100.00%
Galtech Canada Inc. (5) Terrebonne, Quebec (Canada) 76 1,143 275 100.00%
IMM Hydraulics S.p.A. (2) Atessa (Switzerland) 520 22,157 1,183 100.00%
Hypress S.r.l. (8) Atessa (Switzerland) 50 4) (81) 100.00%
IMM Hydraulics Ltd (8) Halesowen (UK) 1 3,830 763 100.00%
Hypress Hydraulik GmbH (8) Meinerzhagen (Germany) 2 5 1875 69 100.00%
Hypress France S.a.r.l. (8) Strasbourg (France) 163,6  (837) (1,505) 100.00%
IMM Hydro Est (8) Catcau Cluj Napoca (Romania) 515 6,689 1,166 100.00%
Hypress Africa Pty Ltd (9) Boksburg (South Africa) 796 671 (85) 100.00%
Dyna Flux S.r.l. (8) Bolzaneto (GE) 40 141 20 51.00%
Walvoil S.p.A. Reggio Emilia 5,000 62,868 9,540 100.00%
Walvoil Fluid Power Corp. (10) Tulsa (USA) 41 7,514 1,396 100.00%
Walvoil Fluid Power Shanghai Co. Ltd (10) Shand(@tina) 1,872 4,928 452 100.00%
Walvoil Fluid Power Pvt Ltd (10) Bangalore (India) 683 10,006 887 100.00%
Walvoil Fluid Power Korea (10) Pyeongtaek (Souttrd&) 453 4547 1,061 100.00%
Walvoil Fluid Power France S.a.r.l. (10) Vritz (Rce) 10 131 22 100.00%
Walvoil Fluid Power Australasia (10) Melbourne (Avadia) 7 38 26 100.00%
Teknova S.r.l. (in liquidation) Reggio Emilia 28 27 (340) 100.00%
(1) = controllata da Hammelmann GmbH (6) = cdigta da Aperlai HK Ltd
(2) = controlled by Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. ) €&controlled by HTIL
(3) = controlled by Contarini Leopoldo S.r.l. 8xontrolled by IMM Hydraulics S.p.A.
(4) = controlled by Muncie Power Inc. (9) = conteal by HS Penta S.p.A.
(5) = controlled by Hydrocontrol S.p.A. (10) = cooited by Walvoil S.p.A.

The other companies are controlled directly byrimienp Group S.p.A.

The Walvoil Group, Inoxihp, Bertoli and Osper (medginto Interpump Hydraulics Brasil
together with Takarada and Walvoil Fluid Power dadi) have been consolidated for the first
time.

Despite their modest size, in consideration of treent plans for the coming years also
Hammelmann Bombas e Sistemas Ltda and Interpumpadlds Middle East FZCO were
consolidated line-by-line for the first time. Thigeet on 2015 is not significant.

The minority shareholders of American Mobile Powaee obliged to sell their holdings (and
Muncie is obliged to purchase them) in April 201Garice to be determined on the basis of
the company's results as reported in the last imam€ial statements for the years closed prior to
that date. The minority shareholder of InoxihplSis.entitled to dispose of its holdings starting
from the approval of the 2025 financial statememgo the 2035 financial statements, on the
basis of the average results of the company inasietwo financial statements for the years
ended before the exercise of the option.
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In compliance with the requirements of IFRS 10 #A&S 3, American Mobile Power and
Inoxihp have been consolidated in full, recordingpayable representing an estimate of the
current value of the exercise price of the optidatermined with reference to a business plan
for each company. Any changes in the payable reptiesg) the present value of the exercise
price that occur within 12 months of the date afuasition, as a result of additional or better
information, will be recorded as an adjustment @bdwill, while any changes after 12 months
from the date of acquisition will be recognizedhe income statement.

3. Accounting standards adopted

3.1 Reference accounting principles

The annual financial report at 31 December 2015 wd@dted in compliance with the
International Financial Reporting Standarté-RS’) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board'[ASB”) and approved by the European UnibiERS’ also means the
International Accounting Standard$IAS™) currently in force and all the interpretative
documents issued by the IFRS Interpretations Cotaitpreviously denominated the
International Financial Reporting Interpretationen@nittee {IFRIC”) and still earlier
known as the Standing Interpretations Committ&q’).

The consolidated financial statements are draftedhibusands of euro. The financial
statements are drafted according to the cost metidtth the exception of financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value.

Preparation of financial statements in complianceh WFRS (International Financial
Reporting Standards) calls for judgments, estimated assumptions that have an effect on
assets, liabilities, costs and revenues. The fieslilts may differ from the results obtained
using estimates of this type. The captions of thenkcial statements that call for more
subjective appraisal by the directors when pregaestimates and for which a change in the
conditions underlying the assumptions utilized ddudve a significant effect on the financial
statements are: goodwill, amortization and deptiecieof fixed assets, deferred tax assets
and liabilities, the allowance for doubtful accairdnd the allowance for inventories,
provisions for risks and charges, defined bendéihp for employees, and liabilities for the
acquisition of investments included under othdriliges.

3.1.1 Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios in force from 1 January
2015

As from 2015 the Group has applied the followingvreeccounting standards, amendments

and interpretations, reviewed by IASB:

. On 12 December 2012, the IASB issued a collectibrarnendments to IAS/IFRS
standards“(Annual Improvements to the 262D13 Cycl8). The amendments resulted
in changes: (i) to IFRS 3, specifying that the dtad is not applicable to measure the
accounting effects related to the formation of etjowenture or joint operation (as
defined by IFRS 11) in the financial statementshef joint venture or joint operation;
(i) to IFRS 13, explaining that the provision 8RS 13 on the basis of which the fair
value of a group of financial assets and liabditman be measured on a net basis, is
applicable to all contracts (including non-finan@antracts) falling within the scope of
IAS 39 or IFRS 9; (iii) to IAS 40, explaining that establish when the acquisition of a
property constitutes a business combination, raéerenust be made to the provisions
of IFRS 3.
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3.1.2 Accounting principles, amendments and interpretatios taking effect as from 1
January 2015 but not relevant for the Group

e IFRIC 21 Levies The IASB published this interpretation on 20 M2G13. IFRIC 21
states that an entity shall recognize a liabiliby kevies no earlier than the time of
occurrence of the event to which the payment igelil) in compliance with the
applicable law. For payments that become due ornhenwa specified minimum
threshold is exceeded, the liability is booked owlyen said minimum threshold is
reached. Retrospective application is requiredR&IC 21.

3.1.3 New accounting standards and amendments noetyapplicable and not adopted
early by the Group

. IFRS 9— Financial instrumentsOn 12 November 2009, the IASB published the
following standard, which was subsequently amerae@8 October 2010 in a further
amendment in mid-December 2011. The new standahnithwis applicable from 1
January 2018, constitutes the first part of a gede stages aimed at replacing IAS 39
and introduces new criteria for the classificateord measurement of financial assets
and liabilities, and for the derecognition of ficgal assets from the financial
statements. Specifically, the new standard useimglesapproach to financial assets
based on the methods of management of financialimgnts and on the characteristics
of the contractual cash flows of financial assaeteider to establish the measurement
criterion, replacing the various rules containedlA$ 39. In contrast, for financial
liabilities the main change concerns the accountiegtment for changes in the fair
value of a financial liability designated as a finel liability measured at fair value in
profit and loss, in the event wherein such chargesiue to changes in the credit rating
of the liabilities in question. In accordance witle new standard, such changes must be
recorded in the comprehensive income statementamabot thereafter be derecognised
in profit and loss.

*  On 30 January 2014, the IASB published IFRR&gulatory Deferral Accountahich
Is an interim standard related to tRate-regulated activitieproject. IFRS 14 allows
exclusively first-time adopters of IFRS to contimeeognizing amounts associated with
rate regulation in compliance with the accountigigies previously adopted. In order
to improve comparability with entities that areealdy applying the IFRS standards and
that do not therefore disclose these amounts, tHhrelard requires the rate regulation
effect to be presented separately from other cagtio

. On 12 December 2012, the IASB issued a collectibrmarnendments to IAS/IFRS
standardsAnnual Improvements to IFRSs 262012 CycleThe amendments resulted
in changes: (i) to IFRS 2, clarifying the definitioof “vesting conditioh and
introducing the definitions of the service and parfance conditions; (ii) to IFRS 3,
clarifying that the obligations to pay a contingesgnsideration other than those
included in the definition of equity instrumentean be measured at fair value at each
reporting date, with the changes recognized ininlieme statement; (iii) to IFRS 8,
requiring an entity to disclose the judgments mhgemanagement in applying the
aggregation criteria to the operating segments;ritiisg the segments that have been
aggregated and the economic indicators that wesesasd to determine that the
aggregated segments have similar economic chastit®r (iv) to IAS 16 and IAS 38,
clarifying the method of determining the carryinmaunt of assets, in the case of
revaluation further to the application of the resdion model; (v) to IAS 24,
establishing the information to be supplied wheare¢his a third-party entity that
supplies services related to the administratiorkef management personnel of the
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reporting entity. These amendments will be effector reporting periods starting after
1 February 2015. Early adoption is however perhitte

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee benefitsOn 21 November 2013, the IASB
published an amendment to IAS 19 limited to contidns to defined benefit plans for
employees. The changes are aimed at simplifyingatfo®unting of contributions that
are unrelated to years of seniority, such as dmutidns calculated on the basis of a
fixed percentage of salary. This amendment will difective for reporting periods
starting after 1 February 2015. Early adoptiondeéver permitted.

IFRS 15— Recognition of revenue from contracts with cust@r@n 28 May 2014, the
IASB and the FASB jointly issued IFRS 15 designediriprove the disclosure of
revenues and the global comparability of finanstatements in order to harmonize the
recognition of economically similar transactiondieTstandard is effective for IFRS
users from reporting periods starting after 1 Jan@@17 (early adoption is permitted).
Amendment to IFRS 150n 11 September 2015, the IASB released an amendmen
whereby the application of the standard is defemgdne year, i.e. to 1 January 2018.
Early adoption is however permitted.

Amendment of IFRS 27Separate financial statementdn 12 August 2014, the IASB
published an amendment to the standard that Willvadntities to use the equity method
to recognize investments in subsidiaries, jointtwms and associates in separate
financial statements. The amendment is effectivenft January 2016.

Annual improvements to IFRS 262914 cycle- On 15 December 2015, the European
Union issued regulation 2015/2343 adopting the ahimaprovements to IFRS 2012-
2014 cycle, which was issued by the IASB on 25 &mper 2014 and relates to a
number of amendments to the IAS/IFRS. The aim efadhnual improvements is to
address necessary matters related to inconsissefiociad in IFRSs or for clarifications
of terminology, which are not of an urgent natuog Which reflect issues discussed by
the IASB during the project cycle. Among the amehstandards, IFRS 5, in relation to
which a clarification has been introduced concerniases in which the method of
disposal of an asset is changed from held fortsabeld for distribution; IFRS 7, with a
clarification to establish if and when a residualalvement in a transferred financial
asset exists in the presence of an associatedcsecontract, thus determining the
required level of disclosure; IAS 19, which clag#fithat the currency of securities used
as a benchmark to estimate the discount rate, beudte same as the currency in which
the benefits will be paid; and IAS 34 in which tmeaning of "elsewhere" is clarified
for the inclusion of information by cross-reference

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS-28ivestment entities: applying the
consolidation exceptior©On 18 December 2014, the IASB published the amentsrin
question concerning the problems deriving from igatibn of the consolidation
exception granted to investment entities. The fgplication date introduced by the
IASB is for annual periods beginning on or aftedahuary 2016. Early application is
permitted.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: sale or contdbudf assets between an investor
and its associate or joint ventureOn 11 September 2014, the IASB published the
amendments in question, which are designed to rentbe conflict between the
requirements of IAS 28 and those of IFRS 10 andifgldéhat in a transaction that
involves an associate or a joint venture the extemthich it is possible to recognize a
profit or a loss depends on whether the asset&uojsale or contribution is a business.
In December 2015 the IASB issued an amendmentdifars the entry into force of
these amendments for an indefinite period.
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< Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41: agriculture - deplants— On 23 November 2015
the European Union issued regulation 2015/2113 tamppghese amendments. The
amendments, which do not concern the Interpump il be applicable to financial
periods starting on or after 1 January 2016.

« Amendments to IFRS 11: accounting for acquisitioinmiterests in joint operations
On 24 November 2015 the European Union issued aggnl2015/2173 adopting these
amendments, which provide guidance on the accayftinacquisitions of interests in
joint operations that comprise a business activitye amendments apply to financial
periods starting on or after 1 January 2016.

* Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: property, pladtegjuipment and intangible assets
— On 2 December 2015 the European Union issued meguld015/2231 specifying
that a method of depreciation based on the revemgeserated by the asset is
inappropriate because it reflects solely the reediaw generated by the asset and does
not reflect the methods of consumption of the pecsipe future economic benefits
embodied in the asset. The amendments apply, #tdet, to financial periods starting
on or after 1 January 2016. It is deemed that amopif the standard will have no
significant effects on the Group's financial stateis.

< Amendments to IAS 1. presentation of financialestants - disclosure initiative On
18 December 2015 the European Union issued regnl@015/2406 adopting these
amendments that seek to improve the effectivenésdiszlosures and encourage
companies to use professional judgment when deterquithe information to be
reported in the financial statements pursuant t8 A The amendments apply, at the
latest, to financial periods starting on or aftélahuary 2016.

At today's date the competent bodies of the Eumopé@ion have completed the approval
process related to the new standards and amendrapplisable to financial statements
starting as from 1 January 2016, while the apprpwatess required for adoption of the other
standards and amendments is still under way. Omakes of analysis currently in progress
no significant impacts are predicted from the 2@#i6ption of the applicable new standards
and amendments.

3.2 Consolidation principles

(i) Subsidiaries

Companies are subsidiaries when the Parent Conipaxposed to or is entitled to variable
returns deriving from its investment relationshiplaat the same time, is able to influence
such returns by exercising its power over the yotincerned.
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Specifically, the Group controls an investmenarid only if, the Group has:

- power over the entity in which the investment ikli{ee. holds valid rights granting
the real ability to direct the significant acties of that entity);

- exposure to or rights to variable returns derivitagn its investment relationship with
the entity concerned;

- the ability to exercise its power over the entibjmcerned in order to influence the
amounts of its returns.

Generally, ownership of the majority of voting righs presumed to result in control. In
support of this presumption and when the Groupshtads than the majority of voting rights
(or similar), the Group considers all significaattis and circumstances in order to determine
whether or not it controls the entity concerned|uding:

- Contractual agreements with other owners of vatigigts;
- Rights deriving from contractual agreements;

- Voting rights and potential voting rights held ImetGroup that are not freely
exercisable or convertible.

The Group reviews whether or not it controls aritgnf the facts and circumstances indicate
changes in one or more of the three elements thatignificant for the definition of control.
Said potential voting rights are not consideredtfier purposes of the consolidation process at
the time of attribution to minority interests ofetreconomic result and the portion of
shareholders' equity pertaining to them. The firgrgtatements of several subsidiaries were
not consolidated in consideration of their limitgignificance; these investments are carried
in accordance with the principles illustrated inend.10.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are canfesteld starting from the date on which the
Group acquires control, and deconsolidated frond#te on which control is relinquished.

Acquisitions of stakes in subsidiary companiesraoerded in accordance with the purchase
account method. The acquisition cost correspondset@urrent value of the acquired assets,
shares issued, or liabilities assumed at the dadedquisition. Ancillary expenses associated
with the acquisition are generally recognized i itcome statement when they are incurred.
The excess of the acquisition cost with respet¢héoamount of pertinence to the Group of
the current value of the net assets acquired isgrézed under balance sheet assets as
goodwill. For all business combinations, the Gralgrides whether to measure the non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity at faalue, or in proportion to its interest in the
identifiable net assets of the entity concernedy Aergative goodwill is recorded in the
income statement at the date of acquisition.

If the business combination is achieved in sevenalses, the equity interest previously held
is measured at fair value at the acquisition datkaay profits or losses are recognized in the
income statement.

The fair value of any contingent consideration figras recognized by the purchaser at the
acquisition date. Changes in the fair value of iog@int consideration classified as an asset or
a liability, as a financial instrument governed & 39 Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement, are recognized in the incomenstateor in the statement of other
comprehensive income. Any contingent considerationfalling within the scope of IAS 39

is measured in accordance with the appropriate IHR&e contingent consideration is
classified in equity, its value is not remeasured thhe effect of subsequent settlement is also
recognized in equity.
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After the Group has obtained control of an ensiyhsequent acquisitions of interests in said
entity that result in an increase or decrease quiaition cost with respect to the amount
attributable to the Group are recognized as edratysactions.

For the purposes of consolidation of subsidiaties,method of global integration is adopted,
i.e. assuming the entire amount of equity asseddiahilities and all the costs and revenues
irrespective of the percentage of control. The anting value of consolidated equity
investments is therefore eliminated against thatedl interest in their shareholders' equity.
The portions of shareholders' equity and profitsnafority interests are shown respectively
in a specific caption under shareholders' equity an a separate line of the consolidated
income statement. When the losses ascribable torityinshareholders in a consolidated
subsidiary exceed the minority interests, the excasd all further losses attributable to
minority shareholders are ascribed to the Paremigany's shareholders, with the exception
of the part for which the minority shareholders éav binding obligation to cover the loss
with additional expenditure and are capable of gaio. If the subsidiary subsequently makes
a profit, such profits are attributable to the Pa@ompany shareholders up to the amount of
the losses of the minority shareholders that weggipusly covered.

If the Group losses control over a subsidiary, thlated assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, non-controlling interests and othengmonents of equity are deconsolidated, while
any profits or losses are recognized in the incetatement. Any equity interest retained is
recognized at fair value.

(ii) Associates

Associates are companies over which the Groupipgagisant influence, without exercising
control over their operations. The consideratiomglenin order to determine the existence of
significant interest or joint control are similar those made to determine the existence of
control over subsidiaries. The Group's investmentgassociates are measured using the
equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an astods initially measured at cost. The
carrying amount of the investment is increasedemrehsed to recognize the interest of the
investor in the profits and losses earned by thigyesubsequent to the acquisition date. Any
goodwill for an associate is included in its camgyiamount and is not subject to separate
impairment testing.

The income statement reflects the Group's inténetbte results for the year of the associate.
All changes in the other comprehensive income tegdsy associates are recognized as part
of the other comprehensive income of the Groupaddition, if an associate recognizes a
change directly in equity, the Group also recoghizes share of that change, where
applicable, in the statement of changes in shadehsll equity. Any unrealized profits and
losses deriving from transactions between the Graog associates are eliminated in
proportion to the interests held in them.

The total interest of the Group in the results tfeg year of associates is classified in the
income statement below the operating results Iigs interest represents their results after
taxation and the portion attributable to the othwners of the associate.

The financial statements of associates are predrée same reporting date as that used by
the Group. Where necessary, they are adjustedleztré¢he accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

Subsequent to application of the equity method, Gneup considers if it is necessary to
recognize any impairment in the value of its intésein associates. On each reporting date,
the Group determines if there is any objective enad that the carrying amount of associates
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might be impaired. If so, the Group calculates thes as the difference between the
recoverable value of the associate and its carrgingunt, and charges it to the "interest in
the results of associates" caption of the incomtestent.

When significant interest over an associate is, liiid Group measures and recognizes the
residual investment at its fair value. The diffarerbetween the carrying amount of an
investment on the date when significant influeredost, and the fair value of the residual
investment plus the consideration received, isgeized in the income statement.

(i) Investments in other companies

Investments in other companies constituting finalnassets held for sale are measured at
their fair value, if this can be established, amel gains and losses deriving from the change
in fair value are recognized directly in equity ibimvestments are divested or have suffered
a value impairment; at that time, the overall gaingosses previously recognized in equity
are recognized in the income statement for the.yeaestments in other companies for
which the fair value is not available are recor@éccost after deducting any impairment
losses.

(iv) Transactions eliminated in the consolidaticngess

Intra-group balances and gains and losses arigang ihtra-group transactions are omitted in
the consolidated financial statements. Intra-grg#ins deriving from transactions with
associated companies are omitted in the valuatfothe investment with the net equity
method. Intra-group losses are only omitted inghesence of evidence that they have not
been incurred in relation to third parties.

3.3 Business sector information

The business sectors in which the Group operagedetermined on the basis of the reporting
utilized by Group top management to make decisiand, they have been identified as the
Water Jetting Sector, which basically includes hagl very-high pressure pumps, very high
pressure systems and homogenizers, and the OibrSedhich includes power take-offs,
hydraulic cylinders, directional controls and hydia valves, hydraulic hoses and fittings,
and other hydraulic components. With the aim ofvgimg more comprehensive disclosure,
information is provided for the geographical areewhich the Group operates, namely ltaly,
the Rest of Europe (including non-EU European ades)t, North America, the Far East and
Oceania, and the Rest of the World.

3.4 Treatment of foreign currency transactions

(i) Foreign currency transactions

The functional and presentation currency adoptedhsy Interpump Group is the euro.
Foreign exchange transactions are translated umm @n the basis of the exchange rates in
force on the date that the related transactionse wamried out. Monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the exchange rate in force orb#t@nce sheet reference date. Foreign
exchange differences arising from the translatiom recognized in the income statement.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured &brigal cost are translated at the exchange
rates in force on the date of the related transastiMonetary assets and liabilities stated at
fair value are translated to euro at the exchaagein force on the date in respect of which
the relative fair value was determined.

(ii) Translation to euro of financial statementsfareign currencies

Assets and liabilities of companies residing inrddes other than EU countries, including
adjustments deriving from the consolidation proaesstive to goodwill and adjustments to
fair value generated by the acquisition of a fanetigmpany outside the EU, are translated at
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the exchange rates in force on the reporting dRégenues and costs of the same companies
are translated at the average exchange rate ie farche year, which approximates the
exchange rates in force on the dates on whichntli@idual transactions were carried out.
Foreign exchange differences arising from transfatare allocated to a specific equity
reserve designated Translation Reserve. At the dingiisposal of a foreign economic entity,
accumulated exchange differences reported in thaslation Reserve will be recognized in
the income statement.

The exchange rates used for the translation to etitbe amounts booked to the income
statements and balance sheets of companies wittidaal currency other than the euro are
as follows:

2015 At 31 December 2015 2014 At 31 December 2014
averages averages

UsS Dollar 1.109 1.089 1.329 1.214
Australian Dollar 1.478 1.490 1.472 1.483
UK Pound 0.726 0.734 0.806 0.779
Brazilian Real 3.700 4,312 3.121 3.221
Indian Rupee 71.196 72.021 81.041 76.719
Chilean Peso 726.406 772.713 756.933 737.297
Chinese Yuan 6.973 7.061 8.186 7.536
Canadian Dollar 1.418 1.512 1.466 1.406
Romanian Leu 4.445 4.524 4.444 4.483
South African Rand 14.172 16.953 14.404 14.035
Hong Kong Dollar 8.601 8.438 10.302 9.417
Bulgarian Lev 1.956 1.956 1.956 1.956
UAE Dirham 4.073 3.997 - -

South Korean Won 1,256.544 1,280.780 - -

Peruvian Sol 3.532 3.708 - -

3.5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinuedberations

Non-current assets held for sale and any assetsiailities pertaining to lines of business
destined for sale are valued at the lower of theiok value at the time these items were
classified as held for sale, and their fair valnet of the costs of sale. Any impairments
recorded in application of said principle are rélear in the income statement, both in the
event of write-downs for adaptation to the fairueabnd also in the case of profits and losses
deriving from future changes of the fair value.

Company complexes which represent a large portfaie Group's assets are classified as
discontinued operations at the time of their digpas when they fit the description of assets
held for sale, if said requirements existed presiypu

3.6 Property, plant and equipment

(i) Own assets

Property, plant and equipment are measured at thietoric cost and reported net of
accumulated depreciation (see next poimitand impairment losses (see heading 3.9). The
cost of goods produced internally includes the adstaw materials, directly related labor
costs, and a portion of indirect production codise cost of assets, whether purchased
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externally or produced internally, includes theibewy costs that are directly attributable and
necessary for use of the asset and, when theygmiéicant and in the presence of contractual
obligations, the current value of the cost estimhdte the dismantling and removal of the
related assets.

Financial charges relative to loans utilized foe thurchase of tangible fixed assets are
recorded in the income statement on an accruals thdkey are not specifically allocated to
the purchase or construction of the asset, otherthisy are capitalized.

Assets held for sale are valued at the lower ofdirevalue net of ancillary sales charges and
their book value.

(ii) Assets held through financial leasing

Assets held through financial leasing agreements, which the Group has assumed
practically all the risks and benefits associatéth vnembership, are recognized as Group
assets. These assets are valued at the lower fdithealue and the discounted value of the
leasing installments at the time of signing of #gegeement, net of accumulated depreciation
(see following pointiv) and the impairment value (see section 3.9). Ttvesponding
liability in relation to the lessor is recordedthe financial statements under financial debts,
reduced on the basis of the plan for repaymentefprincipal amounts. Financial leasing
installments are booked in accordance with the atktutlined in section 3.22.

(iii) Subsequent costs

The replacement costs of certain parts of assetgapitalized when it is expected that said
costs will result in future economic benefits ahdyt can be measured in a reliable manner.
All other costs, including maintenance and repasts, are ascribed to the income statement
when they arise.

(iv) Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statemen& @traight-line basis in relation to the
estimated residual useful life of the associatesbtad and is not depreciated. The estimated
useful life of assets is as follows:

- Property 20-25 years

- Plant and machinery 12.5 years

- Industrial and commercial equipment  3-6 years

- Other assets 3-8 years

The estimated useful life of the assets is revieare@n annual basis, and any changes in the
rates of depreciation are applied where necessafyture depreciation charges.

For assets purchased and/or that became operatiotia¢ year, depreciation is calculated
utilizing annual rates reduced by 50%. Historicathis method has been representative of the
effective utilization of the assets concerned.

Any profits/losses emerging on the retirement amgecbgnition of assets (being the
difference between their carrying amount and thecoasideration obtained) is recorded in
the income statement.

3.7 Goodwill

For acquisitions made after 1 January 2004, gobdefiresents the excess amount of the
purchase cost with respect to the Group portiaefair value of current and potential assets
and liabilities at the date of purchase.

Goodwill is recorded at cost, net of impairmensks
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Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unitghe financial flows and is no longer
amortized as from 1 January 2004 (date of tramsitidFRS). The book value is measured in
order to assess the absence of impairment (se@rseg®). Goodwill related to non-
consolidated subsidiaries and associates is indlirdihe value of the investment.

Any negative goodwill originating from acquisitioris entered directly in the income
statement.

If the goodwill was allocated to a cash generating and the entity retires part of that unit's

activities, the goodwill associated with the redir@ssets is added to their carrying amount
when determining the profit or loss on retiremélrtte goodwill associated with the retired

activity is determined with reference to the vabfghe retired assets with respect to those
retained by the cash generating unit.

3.8 Other intangible assets

(i) Research and development costs
Research costs for the acquisition of new techricaw-how are ascribed to the income
statement when they arise.

Development costs relating to the creation of newadpcts/accessories or new production
processes are capitalized if the Group's compaaieprove:

- the technical feasibility and intention of comphgtithe intangible asset in such a way that
it is available for use or for sale;

- their ability to use or sell the asset;

- the forecast volumes and realization values indicttat the costs incurred for
development activities will generate future ecormb@énefits;

- said costs are measurable in a reliable manner;

- and the resources exist to complete the developprejgct.

The capitalized cost includes the cost of raw nmterdirectly related labor costs and a
portion of indirect costs. Capitalized developmewsts are valued at cost, net of accumulated
amortization, (see next poiwt and impairment (see section 3.9). Other developrests are
ascribed to the income statement when they arise.

(ii) Loan ancillary costs

Loan ancillary costs are treated as outlined irtice.16. Ancillary costs relating to loans
still to be paid out are recorded as current assedsdeducted from the loan amounts after
payment has been received.

(iii) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets, all having a defined udiéé, are valued at cost and recorded net of
accumulated amortization (see next pejriind impairment (see section 3.9).

Trademarks and patents, which constitute almosetitieety of this caption, are amortized as
follows: the Hammelmann trademark and NLB tradensarét patents, the Inoxihp trademark
and the American Mobile trademark are amortized da%eyears, this period being considered
representative of the expected useful life, in @wration of their positions as world leaders
in their respective niche markets. The Walvoil ahgtrocontrol trademarks are amortized
over 10 years, in consideration of their leadergiopitions in highly competitive markets.
The trademarks of companies in the Cylinders Davisbn the other hand, are amortized over
7 years due to their different competitive strengthe IMM trademark is amortized over 5
years in view of the specific characteristics @& tharket for hoses and fittings.
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Software licenses are amortized over their perfagibzation (3-5 years).

The costs incurred internally for the creationraflemarks or goodwill are recognized in the
income statement when they are incurred.

(iv) Subsequent costs

Costs incurred subsequently relative to intangfided assets are capitalized only if they
increase the future economic benefits of the sjoecHipitalized asset, otherwise they are
entered in the income statement when they areisadta

(v) Amortization/depreciation

Amortization amounts are recorded in the incomdestant on a straight-line basis in
accordance with the estimated useful life of thpiteized assets to which they refer. The
estimated useful life of assets is as follows:

- Patents and trade marks 5-15 years
- Development costs 5 years
- Granting of software and other licenses 3&rye

The useful life is reviewed on an annual basis amg changes in the rates are made, where
necessary, for future amounts.

3.9 Impairment of assets

The book values of assets, with the exceptionwdniories (see section 3.14), financial assets
regulated by IAS 39, deferred tax assets (seeose8til8), and non-current assets held for
sale regulated by IFRS 5, are subject to measureateghe balance sheet reference date in
order to identify the existence of possible indicatof impairment. If the valuation process
identifies the presence of such indicators, thesypreed recoverable value of the asset is
calculated using the methods indicated in the ¥atg point ().

The presumed recovery value of goodwill and inthlegassets that have not yet been used is
estimated at intervals of no longer than once a gemore frequently if specific events occur
that point to the possible existence of impairment.

If the estimated recoverable value of the assésarash generating ung lower than its net
book value, the asset to which it refers is consatiy adjusted for impairment loss with entry
into the income statement.

Adjustments for impairment losses made in relatithe cash generating units are allocated
initially to goodwill, and, for the remainder, téher assets on a proportional basis.

Goodwill is tested for impairment on a yearly basien if there are no indicators of potential
impairment.

(i) Calculation of presumed impairment loss

The presumed recovery value of securities heldaturity and financial receivables recorded

with the criterion of the amortized cost is equérdl to the discounted value of estimated
future cash flows; the discounted rate is equivdai@ithe interest rate envisaged at the time of
issue of the security or the emergence of the vab&. Short-term receivables are not

discounted to current value.

The presumed recovery value of other assets id égtiae higher of their net sale price and

their value in use. The value in use is equivalerthe projected future cash flows, discounted
to present value at a rate, including tax, thadésadccount of the market value, of interest rates
and specific risks of the asset to which the presuinealization value refers. For assets that
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do not give rise to independent cash flows theymnesl realization value is determined with
reference to the cash generating unit to whicraset belongs.

(i) Reinstatement of impairment losses

An impairment relative to securities held to maguand financial assets recorded with the
criterion of the amortized cost is reinstated whiem subsequent increase in the presumed
recovery value can be objectively related to ametieat occurred in a period following the
period in which the impairment loss was recorded.

An impairment relative to other assets is reinstatea change has occurred in the estimate
used to determine the presumed recovery value.

Impairment is reinstated to the extent of the agpoading book value that would have been
determined, net of depreciation/amortization, ifimpairment loss had ever been recognized.

Impairment relative to goodwill can never be redesdl.

3.10 Investments

Investments in associated companies are valuedthétmet equity method as specified by
IAS 28.

Investments in other companies are classified anfimagcial instruments available for sale
in accordance with the requirements of IAS 39, eWahe Group has not manifested any
intention of divesting the relative holdings.

Investments in other companies, including investsiansubsidiaries, which, because of their
negligible significance have not been consolidateed entered at their fair value.

Should any impairment of value arise at the balaha®t reference date in comparison to the
value determined according to the above methodinthestment in question will be written
down.

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hanl,dahpost office deposits, and securities
having original maturity date of less than threenthe. Current account overdrafts and
advances with recourse are deducted from cash fomlthe purposes of the cash-flow
statement.

50



3.12 Current financial assets, Receivables and Other cuent assets

Current financial assets, trade receivables aneérotiirrent assets (excluding derivative
financial instruments) are recorded, at the timethair initial entry, on the basis of the
purchase cost inclusive of ancillary costs (faluedor the initial entry).

Subsequently, available for sale financial assetsasessed at their fair value (market value).
Gains or losses deriving from the valuation aregeized in equity up to the moment in
which the financial asset is sold, at which time tjains or losses are recorded in the income
statement. If the market value of the financialkésgannot be reliably determined, they are
entered at their purchase cost.

Accounts receivable, with due date within normahaotercial terms or that accrue interest at
market rates, are not discounted to current vahdeaae entered at amortized cost net of a bad
debt provision booked as a direct deduction from riceivables in question to bring the
valuation to the presumed realizable value (setose8.9). Accounts receivable with due
dates beyond normal commercial terms are initiadlytered at their fair value and
subsequently at the amortized cost using the efeeatterest rate method, net of the related
value impairments.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, part dinancial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized (i.e. removednfibe Group's statement of financial
position) when:

- the right to receive cash flows deriving from tlset has expired, or

- the Group has transferred the right to receive ¢msts deriving from the asset to a
third party, or has accepted a contractual oblgeto pay them over in full and without
delay and (a) has transferred substantially allridies and benefits of ownership of the
financial asset, or (b) has not transferred orimeth substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership of the financial asset, tag transferred control over it.

3.13 Derivative financial instruments

It is Group policy to avoid subscribing speculatierivative financial instruments, although,
when derivative financial instruments fail to mebe requirements set down for the
accounting of hedging derivatives (hedge accoupim@AS 39, changes to the fair value of
such instruments are booked to the income stateasdiitiancial charges and/or income.

Derivative financial instruments are brought to aott using hedge accounting methods
when:

- formal designation and documentation of the heégmion is present at the start of the
hedge;

- the hedge is expected to be highly effective;

- effectiveness can be reliably measured and theeheddighly effective during the
periods of designation.

The methods used to recognize derivative finano&tuments depend on whether or not the
conditions and requirements of 1AS 39 are fulfill&gpecifically:

51



(i) Cash flow hedges

In the case of a derivative financial instrumemtvidich formal documentation is provided of
the hedging relation of the variations in cash 8awiginating from an asset or liability of a
future transaction (underlying hedged variablensidered to be highly probable and that
could impact on the income statement, the effectigglge portion deriving from the
adaptation of the derivative financial instrumemfdir value is recognized directly in equity.
When the underlying hedged item is delivered ortlesbt the relative provision is
derecognized from equity and attributed at thenging value of the underlying element. The
ineffective portion, if present, of the change @lue of the hedging instrument is immediately
ascribed to the income statement under financia¢eses and/or income.

When a hedging financial instrument expires, isdsderminated, or exercised, or the
company changes the relationship with the undeglyiariable, and the forecast transaction
has not yet occurred although it is still considelikely, the relative gains or losses deriving
from adjustment of the financial instrument to fa@&lue are still retained in equity and are
recognized in the income statement when the tréinsatakes place in accordance with the
situation described above. If the forecast trafsactlated to the underlying risk is no longer
expected to occur, the relative gains or losseébefierivative contract, originally deferred in
equity, must be taken to the income statement inatelg.

(i) Hedges of monetary assets and liabilities (Railue hedges)

When a derivative financial instrument is used édde changes in value of a monetary asset
or liability already recorded in the financial saents that can impact on the income
statement, the gains and losses relative to thagesain the fair value of the derivative
instrument are taken to the income statement imabelgi Likewise, the gains and losses
relative to the hedged item modify the book valdiesaid item and are recognized in the
income statement.

3.14 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of purchase @od the presumed realization value. Cost
is determined on a weighted-average basis anddesl@ll costs incurred to purchase the
materials and transform them into their state amtition at the reporting date. The cost of
semi-finished goods and finished products inclualgmrtion of indirect costs determined on
the basis of normal production capacity. Write dgwavisions are calculated for materials,

semi-finished goods and finished products consaiévebe obsolete or slow moving, taking

account of their expected future usefulness anit thalization value. The net realization

value is estimated taking account of the marketepduring the course of normal business
activities, from which the costs of completion adts of sale are subsequently deducted.

3.15 Share capital and Treasury stock

In the case of purchase of treasury stock, thesgréd, inclusive of any directly attributable
ancillary costs, is deducted from share capitatferportion concerning the nominal value of
shares and from shareholders' equity for the ssirpbrtion. When said treasury shares are
resold or reissued, the price collected, net ofdimgctly attributable ancillary charges and the
relative tax effect, is recorded as share capiatife portion concerning the nominal value of
shares and as shareholders' equity for the surplus.
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3.16 Interest-bearing financial payables

Interest-bearing financial payables are initialjcorded at their fair value, net of ancillary
charges. After the original entry, interest-bearfitancial payables are valued with the
amortized cost criterion; the difference betweanrgsulting value and the discharge value is
entered in the income statement during the tertih@filoan on the basis of the amortization
plan.

A financial liability is derecognized when the urlglang obligation expires or is canceled or
settled. If an existing financial liability is regged by another from the same lender, on
substantially different conditions, or if the cotoins of an existing financial liability are
amended substantially, this exchange or amendrsemcbgnized by canceling the original
liability and recording the new liability, with thecognition in the income statement of any
difference between their carrying amounts.

3.17 Liabilities for employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined pension plank witblic administration or private plans on
a compulsory, contractual, or voluntary basis. Hayment of contributions fulfills the
Group's obligations towards its employees. Therdmrtions therefore constitute costs of the
period in which they are due.

(ii) Defined benefit plans

Defined benefits for employees disbursed on tertitinaf their employment with the Group
or thereafter, and which include severance indgmoiititalian companies, are calculated
separately for each plan, using actuarial techrsidoeestimate the amount employees have
accrued in the year and in previous years. Thdtimeguenefit is discounted to present value
and recorded net of the fair value of any relategbts. The discount rate at the balance sheet
reference date is calculated as required by IASVill9 reference to the market yield of high
quality corporate bonds. Only the securities ofpooate issuers with a "AA" rating are
considered, on the assumption that this classifaEnt high rating level in the context of
"Investment Grade" securities, with the exclusidinerefore, of higher risk securities.
Considering that IAS 19 makes no explicit referetaca specific product sector, we opted for
a composite market curve that summarizes the maredlitions existing at the date of
valuation of the securities issued by companiesatipg in various sectors including utilities,
telecommunications, finance, banking and industdal31 December 2015, the above rate
curve for* AA” securities has shifted upwards with respect tséme curve at 31 December
2014, which was used for the previous actuarialiat&bn. This was due to an increase in
market volatility caused by the Greek crisis and itstability of the Chinese market. The
calculation is performed on an annual basis byndependent actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

In the event increases in the benefits of the pglamportion of the increase pertaining to the
previous period of employment is entered in thevine statement on a straight line basis in
the period in which the relative rights will be adgd. If the rights are acquired immediately,
the increase is immediately recorded in the incetagement.

Actuarial profits and losses are recognized inexgie equity reserve on an accrual basis.

Until 31 December 2006 the severance indemnityipiav (TFR) of Italian companies was
considered to be a defined benefits plan. The desrning the provision were amended by
Law no. 296 of 27 December 20062007 Finance A&) and by subsequent Decrees and
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Regulations enacted in the initial months of 20D¥ the light of these changes, and in
particular with reference to companies with at 1€88 employees, the TFR severance
indemnity should now be classified as a definedelitnplan exclusively for the portions
accrued prior to 1 January 2007 (and not yet patcdabthe date of the financial statements),
while after that date TFR should be considereddefiaed contributions plan.

(iiif) Stock options

On the basis of the stock option plan currentlgxstence, certain employees and directors
are entitled to purchase the treasury shares efpump Group S.p.A. The options are
measured at their fair value, which is chargechihcome statement as an increase in the
cost of personnel and directors, with a matchirgyeio the share premium reserve for share-
based payment transactions. Fair value is measairdte grant date of the option and
recorded in the income statement in the period tima¢ between said date and the date on
which the options become exercisable (vesting ggriafter the conditions relating to the
achievement of objectives and/or the provision efviees have been met. The costs
accumulated in relation to these transactions ah eaporting date through maturity are
apportioned with reference to the vesting dates thad best estimate of the number of
participating instruments that will actually ve$tie cost or income reported in the income
statement reflects the change in the accumulatets d®tween the start and the end of the
year.

No costs are recognized for rights that do not,vestept in the case of rights whose
assignment is dependent on market conditions anavasting condition. These are treated as
if vested, regardless of whether or not the mackeiditions or other non-vesting conditions
have been satisfied, without prejudice to the that all other performance and/or service
conditions must still be satisfied. If the plan ddions are amended, the minimum cost
recognized is that which would have been incurrdéthout the plan amendment. A cost is
also recognized for each amendment that increbsawtal fair value of the payment plan, or
that is in any case favorable for employees; tlust ass measured with reference to the
amendment date.

The dilution effect of unexercised options is reffein the calculation of diluted earnings per
share.

The fair value of the option is determined using #pplicable options measurement method
(specifically, the binomial lattice model), takiagcount the terms and conditions at which the
options were granted.

3.18 Income taxes

Income taxes disclosed in the income statementidiecturrent and deferred taxes. Income
taxes are generally disclosed in the income stateragcept when they refer to types of items
that are recorded directly under shareholders'tequn this case, the income taxes are also
recognized directly in equity.

Current taxes are taxes that are expected to becdimulated by applying to the taxable
income the tax rate in force at the balance slefetance date and the adjustments to taxes of
prior years.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liabiligtinod on the timing differences between the
amount of assets and liabilities in the consoliddil@ancial statements and the corresponding
values recognized for tax purposes. Deferred t@biliiies are recognized in relation to all
taxable temporary differences, except for:

54



- the deferred tax liabilities deriving from the ialtrecognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that does not represent a business icatidn and, at the time of the
transaction, does not affect the reported resultaxable income;

— reversals of taxable temporary differences, astatiwith investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, that can be coedrelhd that are unlikely to occur in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized in relationlltaemuctible temporary differences, tax
credits and unused tax losses carried forwardaaktent that future taxable income is likely
to be sufficient to allow the recovery of the detihle temporary differences, tax credits and
tax losses carried forward, except for:

— the deferred tax assets linked to deductible teergodifferences that derive from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in eahsaction that does not represent a business
combination and, at the time of the transactioresdnot affect the reported results or
taxable income;

— the deferred tax assets linked to deductible teargodifferences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jantwes, which are only recognized if
they are likely to reverse in the foreseeable futand there will be sufficient taxable
income for the recovery of such temporary diffeemc

Deferred taxes are calculated in accordance wihetivisaged method of transfer of timing
differences, using the tax rate in force at theenezice date of years in which the timing
differences arose.

Deferred tax assets are recognized exclusiveljeénetvent that it is probable that in future
years sufficient taxable incomes will be generdtadthe realization of said deferred taxes.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is vedeat each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that future taxable income is no londgety to be sufficient to allow the recovery
of such assets, in whole or in part. Any unrecogghideferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and recognized to the extent thlaast become is probable that future taxable
income will be sufficient to allow their recovery.

3.19 Provisions for risks and charges

In cases where the Group has a legal or substafigiation resulting from a past event, and
when it is probable that the loss of economic bengfust be sustained in order to fulfill such
an obligation, a specific provision for risks arfdhges is created. If the temporal factor of the
envisaged loss of benefits is significant, the amad the future cash outflows is discounted
to present values at a rate, gross of taxes, #ifkastaccount of the market interest rates and
the specific risk of the liability referred to.

(i) Product warranty provision

Liabilities for warranty repairs are allocated be tspecific product warranty provision at the
time of sale of the products. The provision is dateed on the basis of historic data
describing the cost of warranty repairs.

(i) Restructuring provision

A restructuring provision is formed exclusively tile event that the Group has approved a
formal and detailed restructuring plan and hastedfato implement it or has published it
before the balance sheet reference date. In ofisesscthe future costs are not set aside.

(iif) Onerous contracts
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When the forecast future benefits of a contractiess than the non-eliminable costs relative
to it, a specific provision is created equivalenttite difference.

3.20 Current financial payables, Trade payables and Othedebts

Trade payables and other debts, the relative dteeafavhich is within normal commercial
terms, are not discounted to present value andrdeged at the amortized cost representative
of their discharge value.

Current financial liabilities include the short rerportions of financial debts, inclusive of
debts for cash advances and other financial liadsli Financial liabilities are measured at
their amortized cost according to the effectiveliast method.

Financial assets hedged by derivative financidgtumsents taken out to hedge the interest rate
risk are valued at their current value in accoréanith the methods specified for hedge
accounting.

3.21 Revenues

(i) Revenues from the sale of goods and services

Revenues from the sale of goods are entered inntteene statement when the risks and
benefits connected to the ownership of the gooelsalostantially transferred to the purchaser.
Revenues for services rendered are recognizedeiinttome statement on the basis of the
percentage of completion at the balance sheeeraferdate.

(i) State grants

State grants are recorded as deferred revenue atidarliabilities at the time in which there
exists a reasonable certainty that they will bdulised and in which the Group has fulfilled
all the necessary conditions to obtain them. Graateived against costs sustained are
recorded in the income statement systematicallth@é same periods in which the relative
costs are incurred.

56



3.22 Costs

(i) Rental and leasing installments
Rental and operating leasing installments are detbin the income statement on an accrual
basis.

(ii) Financial leasing installments
Financial leasing installments are entered, inafmeunt of the capital portion, in reduction of
the financial debt, while the interest portion msexed in the income statement.

(iif) Financial income and charges

Financial revenues and charges are recorded orc@mah basis in accordance with the

interest matured on the net value of the relatinanicial assets and liabilities, using the

effective interest rate. Financial charges and nmezonclude currency exchange gains and
losses and gains and losses on derivative instrisnterbe charged to the income statement
(see section 3.13).

4. Financial risk management

The business of the Group is exposed to varioumnéiial risks: market risk (including the
exchange rate risk and interest rate risk), cméskt liquidity risk, price risk and cash flow risk
The risk management programme is based on the dinfakility of financial markets and it
aims to minimize any negative impact on the grofipancial performance. Interpump Group
utilizes derivative financial instruments to hedgehange and interest rate risks. The Group
does not take out derivative financial instrumenith speculative aims, in compliance with the
rulings established by the procedure approved lgy Board of Directors. Based on this
procedure, financial risk hedging is managed bgrtral department in the parent company in
cooperation with individual operating units.

(@) Market risks

(i) Exchange rate risk
The Group has subsidiaries in 17 countries andidvédsnslate financial statements
denominated in 15 currencies other than the EurccoAlingly, the Group is
primarily exposed to the risk deriving from the nighation of those financial
statements.

The Group operates internationally and mostly mactufes in the countries of the
destination markets. As such, the majority of locatrency revenues are naturally
absorbed by costs incurred in the same local ceyrerhe Group is however exposed
to a residual exchange-rate risk, deriving fromosxpe to the US dollar and the
Australian dollar in relation to transactions witlosts and revenues in different
currencies.

In order to manage exchange rate risk generatefriegasts of future commercial
transactions stated in a currency other than theu@s functional currency (euro),
Group companies use plain vanilla forward contramtspurchase options, when
deemed appropriate. The counterparts of these amstiare primary international
financial institutions with high ratings.

In particular, the Group's US dollar exposure pgally derives from the sales made
to US subsidiaries and, to a lesser extent, tod4barty customers, while its
Australian dollar exposure derives from the saleslento a subsidiary. Group policy
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(b)

(€)

(d)

is monitor exchange-rate trends and to hedge sibléhg rates are deemed favorable
with reference to a matrix of values establishefiedand by top management. This
approach locks in the favorable conditions for gebidf time that varies from three to
six months. Although the exchange rate reachedeaed exceeded the established
values considered favorable during 2015, top mamagé decided not to start
hedging, except for isolated, individual transat$ioin order to benefit from the
weakness of the euro.

The Group also has limited exposures in Chineseirgs, Brazilian reals, Indian
rupees and UK pounds as a result of commercialsactions between Group
companies. It was decided not to hedge these ergxsither.

In relation to financial exposures, loans of €1.8mre collected during 2015 in

currencies other than those utilized by the debtonpanies. At 31 December 2015,
loans totaling €4.1m are still outstanding in codies other than those utilized by the
debtor companies (€2.5m as of 31 December 201%.iddrease over the year was
entirely due to the first-time consolidation of tbempanies acquired during 2015.
Once again in 2015, the Group decided not to hdudgexposure.

Considering the strategic importance of these didrses, the assets of which are not
expected to be realized in the short term, it wexsdird that hedge contracts were not
necessary in this case.

(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk derives from medium/long-ternans granted at floating rates.
Current Group policy is to monitor the gradientlod interest-rate curves, in order to
assess possible hedging opportunities.

Credit risk

The Group does not have any significant credit eatrations. It is Group policy to sell to
customers only after their credit potential hasnbeleecked and hence within predefined
credit limits. Historically, the group has not imeed any major losses for bad debts.

Liquidity risk

Prudent management of liquidity risk involves tledention of an appropriate level of
cash on hand and sufficient access to lines ofitci@eicause of the dynamic nature of the
Group's business, which results in frequent tatheisuisitions, it is Group policy to
have access to revolving lines of stand-by créuwdit tan be utilized at short notice.

Price and cash flow risk

The group is subject to constant changes in meteég especially brass, aluminium,
steel, stainless steel and cast iron. Group patidp hedge this risk where possible by
way of medium-term commitments with suppliers, ymheans of stocking policies when

prices are low, or by entering into agreements witstomers to transfer the risk to them.

The Group invests a significant part of its avd#aliquidity in restricted bank deposits

and deposit accounts, in order to optimize findneianagement. The Group does not
hold listed securities that would be subject taktmarket fluctuations. Despite the high
level of cash investment carried out by the Grdbp,revenues and cash flows of Group
operating activities are only marginally influencegl changes in interest generating
assets.

Further quantitative information on the financiaks to which the Group is exposed is given in
Note 33 "Information on financial risks".
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5. Business sector information

Business sector information is supplied with refieeeto the operating sectors. We also present
the information required by IFRS by geographicataarThe information provided about
business sectors reflects the Group's internaktiegastructure.

The value of components and products transferréwdas sectors is generally the effective
sales price between Group companies and correspotigs best customer sale prices.

Sector information includes directly attributablests and costs allocated on the basis of
reasonable estimates. The holding costs, i.e. rematian of directors, statutory auditors and
functions of the Group's financial management, mnand internal auditing, and also
consultancy costs and other related costs, werkeolo the sectors on the basis of sales.

The Group is composed of the following businessossc

Water Jetting Sector.his sector is mainly composed of high and verhipgessure pumps and
pumping systems used in a wide range of industgators for the conveyance of fluids. High
pressure plunger pumps are the main componentoéégsional high pressure cleaners. These
pumps are also employed for a broad range of indusipplications including car wash
installations, forced lubrication systems for maehtiools, and inverse osmosis systems for
seawater desalination plants. Very high pressurapguand systems are used for cleaning
surfaces, ship hulls, various types of hoses, dsulfar removing machining burr, cutting and
removing cement, asphalt, and paint coatings frtones cement and metal surfaces, and for
cutting solid materials. The Sector also includghhpressure homogenizers with piston pumps
that are mainly used by the food processing ingiusiit also in the chemicals and cosmetics
sector.

Hydraulic Sector.This sector includes the production and sale of gyoiake-offs, hydraulic
cylinders, pumps, directional controls, valves, daytdic hoses and fittings and other hydraulic
components. Power take-offs are mechanical deuvite=sgned to transmit drive from an
industrial vehicle engine or transmission to poveerange of ancillary services through
hydraulic components. These products, combined witter hydraulic components (spool
valves, controls, etc.) allow the execution of sglefunctions such as lifting tipping bodies,
operating truck-mounted cranes, operating mixarktdrums, and so forth. Hydraulic cylinders
are components of the hydraulic system of varictiole types employed in a wide range of
applications depending on the type. Front-end amderbody cylinders (single acting) are
utilized mainly on industrial vehicles in the canstion sector, while double acting cylinders
are utilized in a range of applications: earthmgvmachinery, agricultural machinery, cranes
and truck cranes, waste compactors, etc. Hydréaoks and fittings are used in a vast range of
hydraulic equipment and are also employed in végl pressure water systems.
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Interpump Group business sector information

(Amounts shown in €/000)

Progressive accounts at 31 December (twelve

months)

Net sales external the Group
Sales between sectors

Total net sales

Cost of products sold

Gross industrial margin

% on net sales

Other net revenues

Distribution costs

General and administrative expenses
Other operating costs

Ordinary profit before financial expenses
% on net sales

Financial income

Financial expenses

Dividends

Adjustment of investments
carried at equity

Profit for the period before taxes

Income taxes
Consolidated profit for the period

Due to:

Parent company's shareholders
Subsidiaries' minority shareholders
Consolidated profit for the period

Further information required by IFRS 8
Amortization, depreciation and write-downs
Other non-monetary costs

Hydraulic Sector Water Jetting Sector Other Elimination entries Interpump Group
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
560,271 396,204 334,657 275,795 - - - - 894,928 671,999
235 187 1,588 1,162 - 2,777 (1,823) (4,126) - -
560,506 396,391 336,245 276,957 - 2,777 (1,823) (4,126) 894,928 671,999
(384,098) (267,173)  (194,927)  (160,766) - (1,739) 1,715 3,093  (577,310) (426,585)
176,408 129,218 141,318 116,191 - 1,038 (108) (1,033) 317,618 245,414
31.5% 32.6% 42.0% 42.0% - n.s. 35.5% 36.5%
9,431 9,446 3,735 3,385 - 38 (33) (306) 13,133 12,563
(48,130)  (38,226) (36,195) (29,856) - - 4 8 (84,321) (68,074)
(66,953) (48,802) (38,836) (32,001) (18) (1,045) 137 1,331  (105,670) (80,517)
(3,163)  (2,169) (701) (2,850) - - - - (3,864) (5,019)
67,593 49,467 69,321 54,869 (18) 31 - - 136,896 104,367
12.1% 12.5% 20.6% 19.8% n.s. n.s. 15.3% 15.5%
40,300 4,562 4,195 5,550 - 1 (2,079) (1,969) 42,416 8,144
(11,600) (15,391) (6,162) (6,075) (5) (7) 2,079 1,969 (15,688) (19,504)

- - 14,000 8,500 - - (14,000) (8,500) - -

(253) 92 9) 10 - - - - (262) 102
96,040 38,730 81,345 62,854 (23) 25 (14,000) (8,500) 163,362 93,109
(22,632)  (17,345) (22,107) (17,894) (317) (128) - - (45,056) (35,367)
73,408 21,385 59,238 44,960 (340) (103) (14,000) (8,500) 118,306 57,742
72,880 20,632 59,099 44,907 (340) (103) (14,000) (8,500) 117,639 56,936

528 753 139 53 - - - - 667 806
73,408 21,385 59,238 44,960 (340) (103) (14,000) (8,500) 118,306 57,742
28,635 18,905 13,251 11,172 - 8 - - 41,886 30,085
2,504 2,641 2,986 3,250 - - - - 5,490 5,891
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Financial position
(Amounts shown in €/000)

Hydraulic Sector Water Jetting Sector Other Revenues Sector Elimination entries Interpump Group
31 December31 December 31 December31 December 31 December31 December 31 December31 December 31 December31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Assets by sector 725,674 522,500 566,031 452,719 577 1,739 (157,339)  (101,569) 1,134,943 875,389
Assets held for sale - 615 - - - - - - - 615
Subtotal of assets of the sector (A) 725,674 523,115 566,031 452,719 577 1,739 (157,339) (101,569) 1,134,943 876,004
Cash and cash equivalents 135,130 87,159
Total assets 1,270,073 963,163
Liabilities of the sector 308,674 214,213 82,187 68,778 597 1,825 (157,339)  (101,569) 234,119 183,247
Liabilities held for sale - 163 - - - - - - - 163
Subtotal of liabilities of the sector (B) 308,674 214,376 82,187 68,778 597 1,825 (157,339)  (101,569) 234,119 183,410
Debts for the payment of investments 23,209 74,075
Payables to banks 5,735 27,770
Interest-bearing financial payables 384,382 211,358
Total liabilities 647,445 496,613
Total assets, net (A-B) 417,000 308,739 483,844 383,941 (20) (86) - - 900,824 692,594

Further information required by IFRS 8
Investments carried at

carried at equity 106 76 283 463 - - - - 389 539
Non-current assets other than

financial assets and deferred tax assets 415,225 300,806 254,565 215,950 - 175 - - 669,790 516,931




The sectors are compared as follows, like for like:

Hydraulic Sector Water Jetting Sector
(amounts shown in €/000) 201t 201« 2015 201¢
Net sales external to the Gr¢ 415,92( 396,20 316,103 275,79!
Sales between sectors 23t 187 1,454 1,16
Total net sales 416,15! 396,39: 317,557 276,95
Cost of products sold (278755 (267,173 (185,254) (160,766
Gross industrial margin 137,40( 129,21¢ 132,303 116,19:
% on net sales 33.0% 32.6% 41.7% 42.0%
Other net revenues 8,37: 9,44¢ 3,374 3,38t
Distribution costs (39,301 (38,226 (34,145) (29856
General and administrative expenses (51,892 (48,802 (36,445) (32,001
Other operating costs (2,828 (2,169 (609) (2,850
Ordinary profit before financial expenses 51,75: 49,46° 64,478 54,86¢
% on net sales 12.4% 12.5% 20.3% 19.86
Financial income 37,03: 4,56: 4,152 5,55(
Financial expenses (7,513 (15,391 (5,540) (6,075
Dividends - - 14,000 8,50(
Adjustment of the value of investments carriedcptity (253 92 (9) 1C
Profit for the period before taxes 81,01° 38,73( 77,081 62,85¢
Income taxes (19,180 (17,345 (20,608) (17,894
Consolidated profit for the period 61,83" 21,38t 56,473 44,96(
Due to:
Parent company's shareholders 61,30¢ 20,63: 56,334 48907
Subsidiaries' minority shareholders 52¢ 753 139 53
Consolidated profit for the period 61,83" 21,38t 56,473 44,96(

Cash flows for the year by business sector arelkmsvs:

€/000 Sector Sector Sector
Hydr. Water Other Total

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Cash flows from:
Operating activities 58,618 43,369 55,194 28,543 (208) 146 113,604 72,058
Investing activities (52,141) (61,181) (151,048) (18,397) - 47 (203,189) (79,531)
Financing activities 25,755 19,379 132,102 (38,881) 170 (502) 158,027 (20,004)
Total 32,232 1,567 36.248 (28,735) 38 (309) 68,442 (27.477)

Hydraulic Sector investing activities in 2015 imbhad €34,696k related to the acquisition of
equity interests (€47,267k in 2014), while Watettidg Sector investing activities included
€141,531k related to the acquisition of Walvoilpsihp, and Bertoli and of residual interests in
existing subsidiaries (€517k for the acquisitioreqtiity investments in 2014).

Financing activities for 2015 included net disbissaf intercompany loans from the Water
Jetting Sector to the Hydraulic Sector in the amair€57,348k (€28,646k in 2014) and from
the Water Jetting Sector to the Other RevenuesoSéattthe amount of €170k (no amount
recorded in 2014). Moreover, the cash flows of Wagtting Sector financing activities in 2015
included outlays for the purchase of treasury sharehe amount of €32,709k (€38,299k in
2014), proceeds from the sale of treasury shardhetdbeneficiaries of stock options in the
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amount of €8,166k (€4,626k in 2014), and €60,8%lkted to the value of treasury stock
assigned for the acquisition of equity investmef@g,026k in 2014), and the payment of
dividends for €19,396k (€18,108k in 2014).

Geographical sectors

The Group's sector-based operations are divided fiae geographical areas, even though
management is conducted on a global level.

A breakdown of sales by geographical area is pem/taklow:

2015 2014

(€/000) % (€/000) % Growth
Italy 135,909 15 91,778 14 +48.1%
Rest of Europe 286,503 32 224,263 33 +27.8%
North America 293,386 33 217,038 32 +35.2%
Far East and Oceania 84,958 9 61,862 9 +37.3%
Rest of the World 94,172 11 77,058 12 +22.2%
Total 894,928 100 671,999 100 +33.2%

Data by geographical sector on the basis of thatilme of non-concurrent assets other than
financial assets and deferred tax assets arelaw$ol

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

(€/000) (€/000)
Italy 446,089 324,445
Rest of Europe 96,788 96,229
North America 97,433 82,581
Far East and Oceania 8,248 4,450
Rest of the World 21,232 9,226
Total 669,790 516,931

The geographical areas operations are assignedpends on the nationality of the company
performing them. No companies have operations irertitan one area.
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6. Acquisition of investments

Walvoil Group

The amounts are expressed in euro thousands (thermye rates adopted for conversion of the
financial statements of subsidiaries in the USjdn€hina, South Korea and Australia were
1,214 US dollars/1 euro, 7,536 Chinese renminhiftb,e76,719 Indian rupees/1 euro, 3.221
Brazilian Real/l euro, 1,483 AUS dollars/1 eurod a@n324.8 South Korean Won/1 euro,

corresponding to the exchange rates in force oddke of acquisition).

Amount Carrying values
S Adjustments in the acquiring
€/000 acquired to fair value company
Cash and cash equivalents 3,676 - 3,676
Trade receivables 32,721 - 32,721
Inventories 42,170 - 42,170
Tax receivables 5,267 - 5,267
Other current assets 1,172 - 1,172
Property, plant and equipment 49,523 20,341 69,864
Other intangible assets 536 9,300 9,836
Financial assets 2 - 2
Non-current tax receivables 2 - 2
Deferred tax assets 4,819 - 4,819
Other non-current assets 627 - 627
Trade payables (20,975) - (20,975)
Payables to banks (8,006) - (8,006)
Financial payables to banks - loans (current poytio (10,099) - (10,099)
Leasing payables (current portion) (1,491) - (1,491)
Derivative financial instruments (63) - (63)
Tax payables (3,592) - (3,592)
Other current liabilities (10,118) - (10,118)
Provisions for risks and charges (current portion) (150) (150)
Financial payables to banks - loans
(medium-/long-term portion) (6,341) - (6,341)
Leasing payables (medium-/long-term portion) (9)581 - (9,581)
Liabilities for employee benefits (severance indiynn
provision) (4,693) - (4,693)
Deferred tax liabilities (6,005) (9,307) (15,312)
Other non-current liabilities (254) - (254)
Net assets acquired 59,147 20,334 79,481
Goodwill related to the acquisition 37,896
Total net assets acquired 117,377
Total amount paid in treasury stock 47,038
Total amount paid in cash 70,339
Total acquisition cost (A) 117,377
Acquired net financial indebtedness (B) 31,842
Total amount paid in cash 70,339
Total change in the net financial position includiny
changes in debt for the acquisition of investmeast 102,181
Capital employed (A) + (B) 149,219

The fair value of property, plant and equipment #mal brand, booked under intangible fixed
assets, was measured by independent valuers.
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The acquisition cost differs from the contract grdue to the different valuation of the treasury
shares assigned, in compliance with the requiresrarinternational accounting standards.

Inoxihp S.r.l.
Amount Carrying values
S Adjustments in the acquiring
€/000 acquired to fair value company
Cash and cash equivalents 1,843 1,843
Trade receivables 3,313 - 3,313
Inventories 2,536 - 2,536
Tax receivables 837 - 837
Other current assets 24 - 24
Property, plant and equipment 643 - 643
Other intangible assets 23 1,825 1,848
Deferred tax assets 269 - 269
Other non-current assets 49 - 49
Trade payables (2,670) - (2,670)
Payables to banks (34) - (34)
Financial payables to banks - loans (current poytio (674) - (674)
Tax payables (1,416) - (1,416)
Other current liabilities (484) - (484)
Financial payables to banks - loans
(medium-/long-term portion) (789) - (789)
Liabilities for employee benefits (severance indiéynn
provision) (326) - (326)
Deferred tax liabilities - 573 (573)
Net assets acquired 3,144 1,252 4,396
Goodwill related to the acquisition 21,963
Total net assets acquired 26,359
Total amount paid in treasury stock 2,139
Total amount paid in cash 6,471
Amount due in medium/long-term 17,749
Total acquisition cost (A) 26,359
Net financial indebtedness (cash) (e)
acquired (e) (B) (346)
Total amount paid in cash 6,471
Payable for commitment to acquire minority intesest 17,749
Total change in the net financial position includiry
changes in debt for the acquisition of investmest 23,874
Capital employed (A) + (B) 26,013

The value of the trade mark was measured by mdaarsiaternal appraisal. Fixed assets do not
include any other significant valuation surpluses.

The acquisition cost differs from the contract eritue to the different valuation of the treasury
shares assigned, in compliance with the requiresnarinternational accounting standards.
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Bertoli S.r.l.

€/000

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables

Inventories

Tax receivables

Other current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Other intangible assets

Other financial assets

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Trade payables

Financial payables to banks - loans (current paytio
Leasing payables (current portion)

Tax payables

Other current liabilities

Provisions for risks and charges (current portion)
Leasing payables (medium-/long-term portion)
Liabilities for employee benefits (severance indiynn
provision)

Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets acquired

Goodwill related to the acquisition

Total net assets acquired

Total amount paid in cash
Total acquisition cost (A)

Net financial indebtedness (cash) (e)
acquired (e) (B)

Total amount paid in cash

Total change in net financial position

E:apital employed (A) + (B)
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Amount Carrying values
S Adjustments in the acquiring
acquired to fair value company
1,724 - 1,724
3,207 - 3,207
3,742 - 3,742
178 - 178
103 - 103
1,663 - 1,663
45 - 45
22 22
305 - 305
12 - 12
(2,574) - (2,574)
(212) - (212)
(281) - (281)
(540) - (540)
(1,003) - (1,003)
(118) - (118)
(428) - (428)
(915) (915)
(178) B (178)
4,752 - 4,752
2,549
£.301
7,301
7.301
(803)
7,301
6.498
6,498



Osper
The amounts are shown in euro/thousands (the egehaste used for translation of the
financial statements is BRL 4,0171 / 1 euro, cqoesling to the exchange rate in force on the

day of the acquisition).

Amount Carrying values
S Adjustments in the acquiring
€/000 acquired to fair value company
Cash and cash equivalents 22 22
Trade receivables 408 408
Inventories 364 364
Tax receivables 24 24
Other current assets 75 - 75
Property, plant and equipment 1,244 452 1,696
Other intangible assets 3 618 621
Other financial assets 15 15
Trade payables (344) (344)
Financial payables to banks - loans (current poytio (10) (10)
Tax payables (22) (21)
Other current liabilities (215) - (215)
Net assets acquired 1,565 1,070 2,635
Goodwill related to the acquisition 1,418
Total net assets acquired 4,053
Total amount paid in cash 2,614
Total discounted amount due in medium/long-term 1,439
Total acquisition cost (A) 4,053
Net financial indebtedness (cash) (e)
acquired (e) (B) (12)
Total amount paid in cash 2,614
Debt discounted for extended payment of equity itniests 1,439
Total change in net financial position 4,041
Capital employed (A) + (B) 4,041

The fair value of property, plant and equipment #mel brand, booked under intangible fixed

assets, was measured by independent valuers.

7. Cash and cash equivalents

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

(€/000) (€/000)
Cash flow 109 158
Repurchase agreements - 505
Bank deposits 135,021 86,496
Total 135,130 87,159

Bank deposits include €/000 33,699 in US dollar®d8 36,687), €/000 7,801 in Chinese
renminbi (CNY/000 55,078), €/000 1,978 in Britigtounds (£/000 1,452), €/000 971 in
Australian dollars (AUD/000 1,446), €/000 1,988lmdian rupees (INR 143,172), €/000 1,044
in Brazilian reals (BRL/000 4,503), €/000 386 inuBo African rand (ZAR/000 6,545) and
€/000 1,644 in other minor currencies.
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At 31 December 2015, the total nominal value ofkbdeposits was €5.2m at an average fixed
rate of 0.98%.

Throughout 2015 the Group proceeded with its potityptimization of finance management
by investing surplus cash in bank deposits resttidbr up to three months, as well as in
unrestricted deposit accounts. The careful polagpéed by the Group during 2015 resulted in
an average yield from the investment of liquidify(46%. This was lower than the 0.69%
achieved in 2014 due, in the main, to the lowarrret offered by financial institutions.

8. Trade receivables

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

(€/000) (€/000)
Trade receivables, gross 185,584 141,719
Bad debt provision (7,455) (6,085)
Trade receivables, net 178,129 135,634
Changes in the bad debt provision were as follows:
2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)
Opening balances 6,085 4,673
Exchange rate difference 28 83
Change to consolidation basis 1,648 398
Provisions in the year 1,197 1,492
Decreases in the year due to surpluses (100) )
Drawdowns in the year (1,403) (560)
Closing balance 7,455 6,085

Provisions in the year are booked under other ¢ipgraosts.

Receivables due beyond 12 months total €/000 1hilewade payables are all due within 12
months.

9. Inventories

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

(€/000) (€/000)
Raw materials and components 59,982 42,201
Semi-finished products 78,377 60,322
Finished products 100,278 79,940
Total inventories 238,637 182,463
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Inventories are net of the depreciation provistwat thanged as indicated below:

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Opening balances 17,936 15,238
Exchange rate difference 655 558
Change to consolidation basis 8,601 627
Provisions for the year 2,525 2,513
Drawdowns in the year (2,563) (1,000)
Reversal of provisions due to surpluses - -
Closing balance 27,154 17,936

10. Derivative financial instruments

Interest rate hedging

The Group adopts a procedure, approved by the Bo#arDirectors, which identifies the
derivative financial instruments to be used to teedgainst the risk of interest rate fluctuations.
These instruments are as follovisterest Rate Swaps (IRS), Forward Rate Agreen{EfRs)
and options on interest rates (Caps & Floors).

Current Group policy is to assess the opportunibésred by the market in relation to the
possibility to arrange interest rate swaps on ectcaly advantageous conditions. However,
considering the limited average duration of mediang-term loans, it was not deemed
necessary to hedge interest-rate risks during 2015.

Hydrocontrol, which was acquired at the start ofyM2®13, had arranged six hedges in prior

years for a total amount of €11.8m. The residualgke outstanding at 31 December 2015

amount to €3.7m. The instruments arranged, InteRede Swaps (IRS) and Interest Rate

Collars, have not been recognized in the cons@dlfihancial statements as hedges, since they
do not comply with all the requirements for hedgomgtracts set down in IAS 39.

The fair values of the derivatives hedging interase risk at the end of the year are:

31/12/201*% 31/12/201531/12/201531/12/2012 31/12/201431/12/2014
Notional  Positive Negative Notional Positive Negative
fair value fair value fair value fair value

(€/000)  (€/000)  (€/000)  (€/000)  (€/000)  (€/000)

Interest rate collars for hedging

of loans 3,000 43 3,000 - 120
IRS hedges on loans __ 685 - 6 1,686 - 21
Total 3,685 - 49 4,686 - 141
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Depending on the method of accounting adoptedfdainevalue of rate risk hedges is allocated
as follows:

31/12/201%31/12/201531/12/201531/12/201 31/12/201431/12/2014
Notional  Positive Negative Notional Positive Negative
fair value fair value fair value fair value

(€/000) (€/000) (€£/000)  (€/000) (€/000)  (€/000)

Derivatives that do not comply with the

conditions
required by IAS 39 to qualify as 3,685 - 49 4,686 - 141
hedges

Total derivative financial instruments
hedging interest-rate risks 3,685 - 49 4,686 - 141

Exchange rate risk hedging
The Group is principally exposed to:
* the US dollar for sales made in USD of:
- high pressure pumps;
- very high pressure systems and pumps;
- directional controls and valves;
various hydraulic components;
« the Australian dollar for sales of very high presssystems and pumps made in AUD.

The hedges arranged in 2015 solely related todhledf high pressure pumps to third parties
and all took the form of plain vanilla forward coants

The fair values of exchange rate risk derivativegas at the close of the year were as follows:

31/12/201%31/12/201531/12/201531/12/201« 31/12/201431/12/2014
Notional  Positive Negative Notional Positive Negative
fair value fair value fair value fair value

($/000)  (€/000)  (€/000)  ($/000)  (€/000)  (€/000)

Plain vanilla forwards to hedge
the sales of high pressure

pumps 1,482 2 28 696 - 28
Total derivative financial instruments
to hedge against the USD exchange rate 1,482 2 28 696 - 28

risk

The plain vanilla forwards used to hedge exchaageisks were all recognized using the cash
flow hedge method. At the time of drafting of thmaihcial statements no situations of
overhedging were identified.

Cash flow hedges
The net effects recognized in the income statenmesiide €/000 9 in losses relating to
management of the exchange-rate risk.

The Interpump Group exchange risk management pategives the hedging of future sales

and customer purchase orders when deemed appeodrie maximum time span in which it is
predicted that the cash flows will originate is 6nths. It is therefore reasonable to assume that
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the related hedge effect deferred to the fair vakserve will be recognized in the income
statement in the following year.

During 2015 the Group released previously defepredits from equity to the income statement
totaling €/000 20, net of the theoretical tax effdhis amount was booked as an increase in net
sales of €/000 27 and as an adjustment to defearadion of €/000 7.

The ineffective element of cash flow hedging tratisas in 2015 and 2014 was negligible.

Fair value hedges

The profits and losses deriving from the measurémémerivative financial instruments in
compliance fair value hedge rules and the profits lasses ascribable to the associated hedged
elements are shown in the following table:

2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)
Net profits (losses) on derivative instruments usedhedge against a7) -
exchange risks
Change in fair value of the underlying elements _) (2 -
Net profits (losses) (19) -
Fair values

The net profit recognized in the income statemeainf derivative instruments that do not
comply with the parameters of IAS 39 amounted G9€/155 (€/000 61 in 2014), mainly due to
a reduction in the notionals and the close-out erfvdtives on maturity. The total comprises
€/000 92 in relation to the management of interat-risks and €/000 63 regarding exchange-
rate risks.

The main methods and assumptions made in the eistintd fair value are outlined below.

Derivatives

The fair value of derivative financial instrumerg<alculated considering market parameters at
the date of these financial statements and usingsarement models widely adopted in the
financial sector. Specifically:

- the fair value of plain vanilla forwards is caldeld considering the exchange rate and
interest rates of the two currencies at 31 Decerflastr available trading day);

- the fair value of the interest rate swaps is caked utilizing the discounted cash flow
model: the input data used by this model comptisesnterest rate curves at 31 December
and the current interest rate fixings;

- the fair value of interest rate collars is calogthtitilizing an option pricing model (Black &
Scholes): the input data used by this model coregrike interest rate curves, the current
interest rate fixings and the implied volatilityrface calculated with reference to listed caps
and floors at 31 December.

In application of IFRS 13, the fair value measuretm& the instruments is performed taking
account of the counterparty risk and, in particulay calculating a credit value adjustment
(CVA) in the case of derivatives with positive faalue, or a debit value adjustment (DVA) in
the case of derivatives with negative fair value.

Investments in other companies
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The fair value is essentially represented by the, @aritten down if necessary to take account of
any value impairments.

Interest-bearing financial payables
The fair value is based on the predicted cash flowthe principal amount and interest.

Financial leasing payables
The fair value is represented by the discountedevalf future cash flows generated by the
payment of installments; the interest rate utilimethe market rate for similar transactions.

Receivables/Payables

For receivables and payables due within twelve hmttie carrying value is assumed as the fair
value. The fair value of other receivables and pkgis the discounted nominal value if the
temporal factor and notional value are significant.

Interest rates utilized to obtain the fair value
To establish the fair value, the Group utilitiee tinterest rate curve at 31 December plus a
suitable spread. The interest rates utilized afelksvs:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
% %
Derivative financial instruments (euro) -0,13/1,59 0,14/1,52
Derivative financial instruments (USD) 0,27/2,63 0,08/2,71
Interest bearing financial payables in euro Euridor0/1.80 Euribor+1.10/2.00
Financial leasing agreements 3.3 4.5
Financial assets 1.1 1.9
Payables 2.2 5.0

At 31 December 2015, cash on hand totaling €5.2% ledd at fixed interest rates, while the
remainder was held at floating rates. Except f&.24, loans and bank debt all bear interest at
floating rates.

In relation to financial instruments recorded irr f@zalue in the balance sheet, international
accounting principles require that said values|bsstfied on the basis of a hierarchy of levels
that reflects the significance of the inputs uéitizto establish the fair value and subdivided on
the basis of the recurrence in their measuremetgrnational accounting standards identify the
following levels:

- Levell guotations recorded on an active marketagsets and liabilities subject to
measurement;

- Level2 inputs other than the price quotations meed in the above point, which are
directly (prices) or indirectly (price derivativeshpservable in the market;

- Level 3 inputs that are not based on empirical eiadkta.
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The following table shows the financial instrumenteasured at fair value at 31 December
2015, broken down by level:

(€/000) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Active derivatives:
- Plain vanilla forwards - 2 - 2
Other financial assets available

for sale 32€ - 32 35¢
Total assets 326 2 32 360

Derivatives payable:

- Plain vanilla forwards - 28 - 28
- Interest rate swaps - 6 - 6
- Interest rate collars - 43 - 43
Total liabilities - 77 - 77

No transfers between levels were carried out irb201

All fair value measurements shown in the aboveetalyte to be considered as recurrent; the
Group did not perform any non-recurrent fair vatueasurements in 2015.

11. Assets and liabilities held for sale

The assets held for sale at 31 December 2014 cseapen industrial building, with related
installations, for which a preliminary sale contrémad already been signed. The sale was
completed in February 2015, with a capital gainéé®00 163.

The liabilities held for sale at 31 December 20dfflected the deferred tax liabilities recorded in
relation to the assets held for sale.

12. Other current assets

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

(€/000) (€/000)
Accrued income and prepayments 3,632 3,189
Short-term receivables from the sale of equity atveents 746 746
Other receivables 2,276 1,855
Other current assets 1,155 1,065
Total other current assets 7,809 6,855
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13. Property, plant and equipment

At 31 December 2013
Cost

Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Changes in 201

Opening net book value

Exchange rate differences

Changeto consolidation bas

Additions

Disposal

Reclassified

Reclassification from assets
held for sale

Depreiiation capitalize

Amortization and depreciation

Closing net book valt

At 31 December 2014
Cost
Accumulated amortization

Net book value

Changes in 2015

Opening net book value
Exchange rate differenc
Change to consolidation basis
Additions

Disposals

Reclassified

Depreciation capitalized
Write-downs

Amortization and depreciation
Closing net book valt

At 31 December 2015
Cost

Accumulated amortizatic
Net book value

The cost of assets under construction, includetiemet book values disclosed in the previous

table, is as follows:

At 1 January 2013
At 31 December 2014
At 31 December 2015

Land and Plant and Other
buildings machinery Equipment assets Total
(€/000) (€/000) (€/000) (€/000) (€/000)
68,812 181,287 53,370 44,454 347,923
(20,025) (104,660) (44,980) (27,590) (197,255)
48,787 76,627 8,390 16,864 150,668
48,787 76,627 8,390 16,864 150,668
781 2,410 359 2,096 5,646
23,90 14,97¢ 39z 50z 39,77¢
11,189 17,876 3,884 8,459 41,408
(5) (1,411 (294 (1,975 (3,685
3 220 (525) 294 (8)
(594) (20) Q) - (615)
- (24) (3) (5) (32)
(1,992) (15,040) (3,356) (3.696) (24.,084)
82,07: 95,61¢ 8,84¢ 22,53¢ 209,07:
104,767 222,569 58,033 55,298 440,667
(22,695) (126,953) (49,187) (32,759) (231,594)
82,072 95,616 8,846 22,539 209,073
82,072 95,616 8,846 22,539 209,073
717 1,93¢ 50¢ 2,04¢ 5,207
32,367 36,278 3,653 1,640 73,938
4,19: 16,49¢ 4,50¢ 13,25¢ 38,45¢
an (1,652) (245) (3,815) (5,729)
2 (445) 501 (40) 18
- 9) - - 9)
- (193 - - (193)
(3,132) (20,621) (4,975) (5,970) (34.698)
116,20: 127 ,41. 12,79¢ 29,65¢ 286,06t
151,728 290,655 86,640 74,264 603,287
(35,527 (163244 (73,845 (44,605 (317,221
116,201 127,411 12,795 29,659 286,066

Land and Plant and Other
buildings machinery Equipment assets Total
(€/000) (€/000) (€/000) (€/000) (€/000)
5,798 1,032 530 72 7,432
138 1,758 719 51 2,666
1,736 3,742 519 82 6,079
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The following value, included in the net book vabfeassets disclosed above, is associated with
financial leasing agreements:

Land and Plant and Other
buildings machinery Equipment assets Total
(€/000) (€/000) (€/000) (€/000) (€/000)
At 1 January 2013 4,331 6,513 108 284 11,236
At 31 December 2014 2,250 10,392 145 540 13,327
At 31 December 2015 14,358 18,976 78 456 33,868

Depreciation of €/000 30,526 was charged to theafosales (€/000 20,948 in 2014), €/000 704
to distribution costs (€/000 621 in 2014) and €/@0069 for general and administrative costs
(€/000 2,515 in 2014).

At 31 December 2015 the Group had contractual comemts for the purchase of tangible
fixed assets totaling €/000 4,217 (€/000 287 at32014).

14. Goodwill

The changes in goodwill in 2015 were as follows:

Increases Changes due

Balance at (Decreases foreign exchang Balance at
Company: 31/12/2014 in the year differences 31/12/2015
Water Jetting Sector 130,456 24,512 4,290 159,258
Hydraulic Sector 148,917 39,035 178 188,130
Total goodwill 279,373 63,547 4,468 347,388

The increases in 2015 refer to:
- €/000 37,896 for the Walvoil Group acquisition (Hgdlic Sector);

- €/000 21,963 for the acquisition of Inoxihp (Waldetting Sector), inclusive of the debt for
the associated put options;

- €/000 2,549 for the acquisition of Bertoli (Watettihg Sector);
- €/000 1,418 for the acquisition of Osper (Hydradgctor).

The decreases are referred to recalculation ofddte for adjustment of the acquisition of
minority stakes in Interpump Hydraulics Internaabr{Hydraulic Sector) in the amount of
€/000 279.

The impairment test was conducted using the Dideoli€ash Flow method (DCF) net of
taxation. Expected cash flows utilized in the ckltan of DCF were determined on the basis of
5-year business plans that take account of th@wsrnieference scenarios and on the basis of
growth forecasts in the various markets. In paldiclextreme uncertainty persists in several of
the Group's reference markets (primarily in Asiat, &lso in Europe), which are only showing
weak signs of economic recovery or even negatamds. Despite this, the Group considers that
the sales policies adopted, with ever greater ratemn between its production and distribution
networks, will make it possible to offset the acbeemacroeconomic effects and increase sales
by 3-4% in the Water Jetting Sector and by 5-6%heHydraulic Sector. The faster growth of
the Hydraulic Sector, with respect to the WatetidgtSector, was due to the increased
manufacturing and commercial integration of theous entities in the Hydraulic Sector. This
process is expected to release significant prooluand distribution synergies, thus ensuring
percentage growth that more rapid than the expandithe individual markets concerned. For
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periods after 2020, a perpetual growth rate of 186 wsed for the "Hydraulic Sector" and of
1.5% for the "Water Jetting Sector", because ofgieater defensibility of this business area.
The forecast cash flows determined in this manreeweduced by a discount factor in order to
take into consideration the risk that the futurangl could prove to be impracticable. WACC,
after tax was measured for the various CGUs as follows:

CGU WACC
Water Jetting Sector 5.04%
Hydraulic Sector 5.66%
Weighted average cost of capital 5.34%

The WACC utilised in 2014 was 5.25%. In additionsemsitivity analysis was carried out in
compliance with the requirements of the joint doeatissued by Banca d'ltalia, Consob, and
ISVAP on 3 March 2010. Reducing the expected chshsfof each CGU by 10% would not
have resulted in the need to write down goodwil] aor would increasing the cost of capital
utilised to actualize the predicted flows by 50i®amints. Moreover, as an additional positive
element supporting the recoverability of goodwilinpterpump Group's stock market
capitalization is far higher than the Group's Shalders' equity throughout 2015.

15. Other intangible assets

Patents
Product trademarks Other
development and industrial intangible
costs rights assets Total
(€/000) (€/000) (€/000) (€/000)
At 31 December 2013
Cost 20,099 33,530 5,446 59,075
Accumulated amortization (12,733) (18,116) (4,471) (35,320)
Net book value 7,366 15,414 975 23,755
Changes in 2014
Opening net book value 7,366 15,414 975 23,755
Exchange rate differences 125 643 34 802
Change in the scope of consolidation 98 2,595 110 2,803
Increases 1,936 170 1,304 3,410
Decreases - - (128) (128)
Reclassified (12) 8 12 8
Write-downs (124) - - (124)
Amortization and depreciation (1,824) 3,401 (652) (5.877)
Closing net book value 7,565 15,429 1,655 24,649
At 31 December 2014
Cost 22,792 37,011 7,372 67,175
Accumulated amortization (15,227) (21,582) (5,717) (42,526)
Net book value 7,565 15,429 1,655 24,649
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Patents

Product trademarks Other
development and industrial intangible
costs rights assets Total
(€/000) (€/000) (€/000) (€/000)
Changes in 2015
Opening net book value 7,565 15,429 1,655 24,649
Exchange rate differences 112 456 33 601
Change in the scope of consolidation 21 11,876 469 12,366
Increases 1,279 771 779 2,829
Decreases (9) (2) (5) (16)
Reclassified (223) (37) 19 (241)
Write-downs - - - -
Amortization and depreciation (1,693) (4,464) (838) (6,995)
Closing net book value 7,052 24,029 2,112 33,193
At 31 December 2015
Cost 24,280 52,873 11,312 88,465
Accumulated amortization (17,228) (28,844) (9,200) (55,272)
Net book value 7,052 24,029 2,112 33,193

The cost of assets in progress, included in théoek values disclosed in the previous table, is
as follows

Patents

Product trademarks Other

development and industrial intangible
costs rights assets Total
€/000 (€/000) (€/000) (€/000)
At 1 January 2013 4,491 2 293 4,786
At 31 December 2014 2,487 8 135 2,630
At 31 December 2015 3,051 10 354 3,415

Amortization was charged in full to general and adstrative costs.
Except for €/000 28, product development costsisbestirely of capitalized internal costs.

16. Other financial assets

This item comprises:
31/12/2015 31/12/2014

(€/000) (€/000)
Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries 389 539
Investments in other companies 55 55
Assets servicing employee benefits 303 -
Loans to non-consolidated subsidiaries 218 340
Other loan receivables 5 5
Other __ 55 55
Total 1,025 994
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The following changes were recorded:

2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)
Opening balance 994 2,072
Exchange rate differences 28 30
Increases for the year 147 302
Change in fair value 11 1
First- time consolidation of investments not coidaiked
line by line in the prior year (269) (1,106)
Change in the scope of consolidation 158 552
Decreases for the year _(44) (857)
Closing balance 1,025 994
Breakdown of the value of investments in non-cadstéd subsidiaries:
% stake % stake
Company 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)
General Pump China 283 100% 270 100%
Hammelmann Bombas e Sistemas - 100% 193 100%
Interpump Hydraulics (UK) Ltd - 100% - 100%
Interpump Hydraulics Peru S.a.c. 106 90% - -
Interpump Hydraulics Middle East FZCO - 100% _76 100%
Total non-consolidated subsidiaries _ 389 539

General Pump China, Interpump Hydraulics (UK) Lidl dnterpump Hydraulics Peru S.a.c. are all
subsidiaries, but they have not been consolidat@®15 in view of their limited size.

Despite their modest size, Hammelmann Bombas erést and Interpump Hydraulics Middle
East FZCO were consolidated line-by-line for thsstftime in 2015, in consideration of their
development plans for the coming years.

Interpump Hydraulics Peru S.a.c., with headquaitedlsma, was formed in 2015 in order to
guarantee a direct Group presence in this impontemnket.

The value of the investment in Interpump Hydraulii§ Ltd, a distribution company based in
Birmingham UK incorporated at the end of 2012 vifite aim of guaranteeing direct presence of
the Group on the important UK market, was reduceddro and a provision for risks was
created in the amount of €/000 633 in accordandk thie losses incurred during the start-up
stage.
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17 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The changes in the year of deferred tax assetiabilities are listed below:

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
2015 2014 2015 2014
(€/000 (€/000 (€/000 (€/000
At 31 December of the previous year 22,035 19,525 33,436 26,458
Exchange rate differences 368 390 1,888 1,767
Change in the scope of consolidation 5,393 2,603 16,063 5,579
Charged to income statement in the year (2,072) (956) (3,603) 49
Reclassified - (18) (18)
Reclassification from (to) liabilities held for gal - - 163 (163)
Charged to net equity (534) 491 151 236
At 31 December 2015 _ 25,190 22,035 48,098 33,436

Deferred tax assets/liabilities recorded directlyequity refer to the measurement of the fair
value of derivative financial instruments recordesing the hedge accounting method, and to
the restatement of defined benefit plans.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities refer to tHevang items of the balance sheet:

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
31/12/2015 31/12/2014 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000) (€/000) (€/000)
Property, plant and equipmi 5,49¢ 5,89¢ 32,86¢ 22,63t
Intangible fixed asse 414 563 13,601 9,94
Investment 39C 42¢ 10 12
Inventorie! 11,118 6,851 - -
Receivable 1,02 69¢€ 10 -
Liabilities for employee benefits 387 765 203 39
Derivative instruments 6 8 - -
Provisions for risks and char 1,501 1,24: 281 -
Losses to be carried forward 1,170 3,289 - -
Other 3,687 2,290 1,122 __ 800
Total 25,190 22,035 48,098 33,436

No deferred tax liabilities were recorded for ressrqualifying for tax relief as they are not
expected to be distributed (see note 21).
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18. Interest-bearing financial payables and bank pgables

The main loans are all subject to the followingafigial covenants, calculated on the
consolidated values:

- Net financial indebtedness / Shareholders' eguity
- Net financial indebtedness / EBITDA;
- EBITDA / Financial charges.

At 31/12/2015 all financial covenants had been grapmplied with.

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)

Current

Payables to banks 5,735 27,770
Bank loans 81,488 62,278
Financial leasing agreements 2,338 1,635
Other 7 385
Total current interest bearing financial payables 3,883 64,298
Non-current

Bank loans 289,229 143,605
Financial leasing agreements 11,320 3,455
Total non-current interest bearing financial pagabl 300,549 147,060

At 31 December 2015, fixed-rate loans amounted@0& 12,158, while the remainder were at

floating rates. Hedge contracts were taken outemersl of the loans for the total amount of
€/000 3,685 (see note 10).

Bank payables and loans include €/000 2,454 ineogies other than the euro, mainly in US
dollars, Indian rupees and Brazilian reals conmkatéth foreign subsidiaries. Amounts in
currencies other than the euro are as follows:

Payables Currentinterest-bearing Non-currentinterest-

(€/000) tobanks  financial payables bearingfinancial Total
payables
US Dollar 580 207 499 1,286
Indian Rupee 561 1 - 562
Brazilian Real - 174 153 327
Canadian Dollar - 157 17 174
UK Pound - 19 23 42
Chilean Pesos - 34 - 34
South African Rand - 7 15 22
Hong Kong Dollar 7 - 7
Total 1,141 606 707 2,454

See note 10 for details of interest rates.
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Finance lease payables at 31 December 2015 ayzadals follows:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Betweer Betweer

one Beyond one Beyond

(€/000) Within  and five five Within  and five five
the year years years Total the year years years Total

Outstanding installments on
finance leasing contracts 2,624 5,921 6,807 15,352 1,875 2,578 1,534 5,987
Interest (286) (589) (819) (1,694) (240) (433) (224) (897)
Present value of
finance lease payables _ 2,338 5,332 5,988 13,658 1,635 2,145 1,310 5,090

At 31 December 2015 the Group held several aciivante leasing contracts for industrial
buildings, plant and machinery, the carrying vahfewhich, totalling €/000 33,868 (€/000
13,327 at 31 December 2014), has been booked &ndperty, plant and equipment (Note 13).

Non-current financial payables have the following dlates:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)

From 1 to 2 years 81,486 41,456
From 2 to 5 years 209,073 98,755
Beyond 5 years 9,990 6,849
Total 300,549 147,060

The Group has the following lines of credit tharevanused at year-end:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)

Export advances and Italian portfolio 129,285 86,329
Current account overdrafts 11,077 17,010
Medium/long-term loans 232,970 153,688
Total 373,332 257,027

19. Other current liabilities

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

(€/000) (€/000)
Payables related to the acquisition of investments 3,560 4,097
Other short-term payables 43,282 33,593
Government grants 977 -
Other 1,021 433
Total 48,840 38,123

Other short-term payables mainly concern amounts tu personnel, directors, statutory
auditors and social security institutions.
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20. Provisions for risks and charges

Changes were as follows:

Product Agents Investme
(€/000) warranti terminatior nt Investment Restructuring
es indemnity  returns risks charges Other Total

Balance at 31/12/2014 3,067 594 119 849 346 1,136 6,111
Exchange rate difference 106 - 13 31 - 61 211
Increase in the year 862 19 30 79 - 917 1,907
Surplus released

to the income statement (598) - - (103) - - (701
Change in the scope

consolidation basis 118 - 150 - - - 268
Reclassified - (2) - - - - Q)
Utilizations in the year (221) (20) (16) - 346) (86) (689)
Balance at 31/12/2015 3,334 592 296 856 - 2,028 7,106

The balance of other provisions at 31/12/2015 sefervarious disputes or estimated liabilities
in group companies.
The closing balance is disclosed as shown belaWvarbalance sheet:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)

Current 4,423 4,162
Non-current 2,683 1,949
Total 7,106 6,111

In addition to the comments provided in Note 1@, plovision for investment risks includes an
additional allocation made in prior years of €/(B, net of €/000 103 released as no longer
necessary during 2015, associated with a potelmiaility connected with an investment in
other companies.

The Parent company and several of its subsidiarneglirectly involved in several lawsuits in
respect of limited amounts. It is however considdlat the settlement of said lawsuits will not
generate any significant liabilities for the Grotlgat cannot be covered by the risk provisions
that have already been created.

As envisaged by IAS 37, no further provisions hdeen recorded in relation to other
contingent liabilities that might crystallize folling tax inspections of certain corporate
transactions carried out in prior years.
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21. Liabilities for employee benefits

Liabilities for defined benefit plans
The following movements were recorded in liabibtie

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Liabilities at 1 January 14,940 11,942

Amount charged to the income statement in the year 232 277

Reclassifications to other current liabilities (68) (28)

Recognition in equity of actuarial results (2,479) 2,642

Change to consolidation basis 5,934 965

Payments (1,295) (858)

Liabilities at 31 December 17,264 14,940

The following items were recognized in the incortaesment:

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Current service cost 203 229

Financial expenses 29 48

Past service cost _- _-

Total recognized in the income statement __ 232 277
Items recognized in the income statement were lwbakdollows:

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Cost of products sold 83 93

Distribution costs 58 47

General and administrative expenses 62 89

Financial expenses 29 48

Total 232 277

Liabilities for defined benefit plans (Severancedmnity - TFR) were established with the
following actuarial assumptions:

Unit of
measurement 2015 2014
Discount rate % 2.37 1.46
Expected increase in rate of remuneration* % 2.78 3.10
Percentage of employees expected to resigmdver)** % 2.11 243
Annual cost-of-living increase % 1.5 1.5
Average period of employment Years 12.60 12.50

* = restricted to companies with less than 50 elygés.
** = gverage annual resignation percentage, alsesauin the first ten years following the assessmen
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22. Other non-current liabilities

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Payables related to the acquisition of investments 19,649 70,515

Other long-term employee benefits 2,281 1,910

Other 87 180

Total 22,017 72,605
The changes in other non-current liabilities weséadlows:

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Liabilities at 1 January 72,605 18,774

Exchange rate difference 44 477

Amount recognized in the income statement in tree ye (31,315) 7,308

Discounting effect - 29

Reclassifications to other current liabilities (332 (20)

Change to consolidation basis 19,462 46,431

Payments (35,506) (394)

Liabilities at 31 December 22,017 72,605

The other non-current liabilities recognized in theome statement during the year mainly
relate to interest charges on put options and adprgs to the long-term element of payables

related to the acquisition of investments.

23. Share capital

The share capital at 31 December 2015 was compufs#d8,879,294 ordinary shares with a

unit par value of €0.52 for a total amount of €3G,232.88. In contrast, share capital recorded
in the financial statements amounted to €/000 56lB&cause the nominal value of purchased
treasury shares, net of divested treasury stocls deducted from the share capital in

compliance with the reference accounting standaktd1 December 2015 Interpump S.p.A.

held 1,125,912 treasury shares in the portfolicegponding to 1.03% of the share capital,

acquired at an average unit cost of € 11.6443.

Changes in treasury stock over the past two years been as follows:

Balance at 31/12/2013

2014 purchases

Sale of shares to finance subsidiaries' purchases
Sale of shares for the exercise of stock options
Balance at 31/12/2014

2015 purchases

Sale of shares to finance subsidiaries' purchases
Sale of shares for the exercise of stock options
Balance at 31/12/2015
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3,103,503
3,819,682
(715,530)

26,550)
5,281,095
2,542,395

(4,925,854)

7701.724)
1,125,912




Taking treasury stock into consideration, the folloy changes were recorded in the number of
shares in circulation:

2015 2014
Number of shares Number of shares
Ordinary shares in existence at 1 January 1088949, 108,879,294
Treasury stock (5,281,095) (3,103,503)
Shares in circulation at 1 January 103,598,199 105,775,791
Treasury stock purchased (2,542,395) (3,819,682)
Treasury stock sold 6,697,578 1,642,090
Total shares in circulation at 31 December 107 383, 103,598,199

The aims identified by the Group in the managenoémapital are the creation of value for all
shareholders and supporting development of thepgrbath through internal means and by
means of targeted acquisitions. The Group therdfdends to maintain an adequate level of
capitalization, which simultaneously makes it pobksito generate a satisfactory economic
return for shareholders and to guarantee the edoabiyneffective access to external sources of
borrowing. The Group constantly monitors the evolutof the debt to equity ratio and the
generation of cash through its industrial operatidn order to attain the aforementioned goals,
the Group constantly monitors the cash flows gdaedréy the business sectors in which it
operates, both through improvement or maintenahpeoditability, and careful management of
working capital and of other expenditure. Capitakconstrued as both the value provided by
Interpump Group shareholders (share capital andespeemium reserve, totalling €/000
194,987 at 31 December 2015 and €/000 155,108 ab&d¥ember 2014), and the value
generated by the Group in terms of the resultspefations (other reserves and legal reserve,
including profit for the year, overall equivalemt €/000 403,027 at 31 December 2015 and
€/000 307,070 at 31 December 2014, excluding thestation provision, the reserve for
restatement of defined benefit plans, and the prawifor fair value measurement of derivative
hedges).

Treasury shares purchased

The amount of treasury stock held by Interpump @risurecorded in an equity reserve. The
Group acquired 2,542,395 treasury shares in 200%/00 32,709, at an average price of
€12.8654 (the Group purchased 3,819,682 treasangsin 2014 for the total amount of €/000
38,299).

Treasury shares sold

In the framework of the execution of stock optidans, a total of 1,771,724 options have been
exercised resulting in the collection of €/000 8,1626,560 options were exercised for €/000
4,626 in 2014). Moreover, 4,925,854 treasury shae® assigned in 2015 to pay for equity
investments (715,530 treasury shares assignedlihiBQpayment for equity investments).

Stock options

The fair value of the 2010/2012 and 2014/2015 stption plans was recorded in the 2015 and
2014 financial statements in compliance with IFRSCBsts of €/000 1,370 (€/000 1,370 in
2014 as well) relating to the stock option plansenerefore recognized in the 2015 income
statement, with a matching entry in the share puentieserve. Said costs represent the portion
for the year of the value of the options assigreedrployees and directors, established at the
allocation date, corresponding to the value ofgbevices rendered by the latter in addition to
normal remuneration.
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Items recognized in the income statement were lwbakdollows:

2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)
Cost of products sold 54 54
Distribution costs 130 130
General and administrative expenses 1,186 1,186
Total 1,370 1,370
Changes in the share premium reserve were as fallow
2015 2014
€/000 €/000
Share premium reserve at 1 January 101,237 125,039
Increase due to income statement recognition
of the fair value of stock options granted 1,370 1,370
Increase for the disposal of treasury stock furtber
payment for acquisitions of subsidiaries 60,891 6,654
Increase for the disposal of treasury stock furtber
the exercise of stock options 8,166 4,144
Utilization to cover purchase of treasury stock (82) (35,970)
Share premium reserve at 31 December 138,955 101,237

The Shareholders' Meeting held on 20 April 2006reped a stock option plarf Z006/2009
stock option plah), which is described in detail in the Board of ézitors' Report. The options
are exercisable as shown in the following table:

Exercise price

No. of options granted Vesting period (€)
Second tranche 69,000 01/05/2011 31/05/2016 5.4047
Third tranche 80,000 01/11/2012- 31/05/2017 3.7524
Fourth tranche 350,000 01/07/2010G-31/12/2017 3.7524
Total 499,000

Changes in options are as follows:

2015 2014
Number of options Number of options
Options assigned at 1 January 1,073,724 1,694,284
Options granted in the year - -
Options exercised in the year (574,724) (620,560)
Total options assigned at 31 December 499,000 1,073,724
Of which:
- vested at 31 December 499,000 1,073,724
- not vested at 31 December - - -
Total options assigned at 31 December 499,00 1,073,724

The Shareholders' Meeting held on 21 April 2010raeyped the adoption of an incentive plan
denominated 2010/2012Interpump Incentive Pldn which is also described in detail in the
Board of Directors' Report accompanying the codsbéid financial statements. The exercise
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price has been set at € 3.75 per share. The optaonde exercised between 30 June 2013 and
31 December 2016. The changes in options during 204l 2014 are indicated below:

2015 2014
Number of options Number of options
Options assigned at 1 January 1,357,000 1,663,000
Options granted in the year - -
Options exercised in the year (1,197,000) (306,000)
Total options assigned at 31 December 160,000 1,357,000
Of which:
- vested at 31 December 160,000 1,357,000
- not vested at 31 December - -
Total options assigned at 31 December 160,00 1,357,000

The Shareholders' Meeting held on 30 April 2013rapgd the adoption of a new incentive plan
denominated'2013/2015 Interpump Incentive PlanThe plan, which is based on the free
assignment of options that grant the beneficiatiesright, on the achievement of specified
objectives, to (i) purchase or subscribe the Comigashares up to the maximum number of
2,000,000 or, (i) at the discretion of the Boarfl @irectors, receive the payment of a
differential equivalent to any increase in the nearkalue of the Compahy ordinary shares.
Beneficiaries of the plan can be employees or thremf the Company and/or its subsidiaries,
identified among the subjects with significant sot& functions. The exercise price has been set
at € 6.00 per share. The options can be exercisteeebn 30 June 2016 and 31 December 20109.
The next meeting of the Board of Directors held36nApril 2013 set a figure of 2,000,000 for
the number of options to be assigned, divided leytthal number of options in each tranche
(500,000 for the first tranche, 700,000 for theosectranche and 800,000 for the third tranche)
and established the terms for the exercise of th#orms, which are connected to the
achievement of specific accounting parameters.sBmee Board of Director's meeting assigned
1,000,000 options to Interpump Group S.p.A. dire€talvio Montipo and 320,000 options to
director Paolo Marinsek, the exercise of which ubject to the fulfilment of the above
conditions. Moreover, the same Board of Directoeeting conferred on the Chairman and the
Deputy Chairman of Interpump Group, separately pineer to specify the beneficiaries of the
further 680,000 options. 550,000 options were asglgo the other beneficiaries on 29 October
2013.
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The fair value of the stock options and the actlassumptions utilized in the binomial

lattice model are as follows:
2006-2009 Plan - Second tranche

Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 827,361
Grant date May 2008
Exercise price € 5.4047
Vesting date 1 May 2011
Fair value per option at the grant date € 1.2431
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 23
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 7 7.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 4
Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of(swap rates at 1g7/04/2008) % From 4.44510 4.496
2006-2009 Plan - Third tranche
Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 275,000
Grant date April/July 2009
Exercise price € 3.7524
Vesting date 1 November 2012
Fair value per option at the grant date € 0.57306
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 837.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 4
Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of(swap rates at 3%/06/2009) % From 3.258 10 3.395
2006-2009 Plan - Fourth tranche
Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 1,100,000
Grant date March 2010
Exercise price 3.7524
Vesting date 1 July 2010
Fair value per option at the grant date € 0.92286
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 757.

Expected dividends (compared with share value)

%

Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of swap rates in 2010)

%
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2010//2012 Plan

First assignment Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 2,320,000
Grant date 21 April 2010
Exercise price 3.7500
Vesting date 1 July 2013
Fair value per option at the grant date € 0.89555
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 666.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 4
Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of(swap rates at 2?[ AprillR) % From 2.63 10 2.83
Second assignment Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 540,000
Grant date 07 July 2010
Exercise price 3.7500
Vesting date 1 July 2013
Fair value per option at the grant date € 1.08964
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 5 6.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 4
Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of(swap rates at 7gJuIy 2010 % From 2.2910 2.49
2013//2015 Plan
First assignment Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 1,320,000
Grant date 30 April 2013
Exercise price 6.0000
Vesting date 1 July 2016
Fair value per option at the grant date € 1.8631
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 66®.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 5 2.

Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of Euro Swap rates at 30iA2013)

%

From 0.91 to 1.06
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2013/2015 Plan

Second assignment Unit of
measurement

Number of shares assigned no. 550,000
Grant date 29 October 2013
Exercise price 6.0000
Vesting date 1 July 2016
Fair value per option at the grant date € 2.8916
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30

utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 166.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 5 2.

Risk free interest rate (calculated using a

0,
linear interpolation of Euro Swap rates at 29dbet 2013) & From 1.38t0 1.57

The expected volatility of the underlying varialflaterpump Group share) is a measure of the
prospect of price fluctuations in a specific peridtie indicator that measures volatility in the

model utilized to evaluate the options is the meguare annualized deviation of compound
returns of the Interpump Group share through time.

24. Reserves

Reserve for valuation of hedging derivatives atvalue
This includes net accumulated changes in the faluev of derivative financial instruments
classified as hedges and recorded using the hedgersting method.

Translation provision

This provision consists of exchange gains generdtgdthe translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries based outsige B and from variations in goodwill
ascribable to these companies, again as a reseficbinge rate fluctuations.

Reserve for the re-measurement of defined berafis p
Includes the actuarial component of defined beipédits (TFR).
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Classification of net equity depending on possibdif utilization

Amount| Possibility of| Available| Tax payable in the Summary of utilizations over
(amounts in €/000) utilization portion| event of distribution the past three years
to cover losses for other
reasons

Share capital 56,617 B - - - -
Nominal value of treasury stock

in portfolio 585
Total share capital 56,032
Capital reserves
From Parent Company's financial
statements:
Legal reserve 6,860 B - - - -
Share premium reserve 65,7P6 A,B,C 65,726 - - 15,742
Total from Parent Company's 72,586 65,726
financial statements
Consolidation entries 36
Total from consolidated financial 72,622
statements
Profit reserves:
From Parent Company's financial
statements:
Legal reserve 4,463 B - - - -
Share premium reserve 72,391 AB,C 71,130 1,687 - 1,592
Extraordinary reserve 61,015 A,B,C 59,478 - - 2,382
Reserve for share capital reduction 585 - - - - -
First Time Adoption Reserve (4%) - - - -
Reserve for the measurement of
hedging derivatives (13) - - - - -

at fair value
Merger surplus

General Technology 863 AB,C 698 - - -

and Interpump Engineering
Reserve for restatement of defined

benefits plans (1,479) - - - - -
Profit for the year 28,520 A,B,C 28,529 - - -
Total from Parent Company's 166,309 159,835
financial statements
Consolidation entries 322,194
Total from consolidated financial 488,503
statements
Reserve for treasury stock held 13,110 - - - - 92,450
Treasury shares (13,11D)
Non-distributable portion* 5,680
Remaining distributable portion 219,881
A: for capital increase B: for coverage of losses C: for distribution to

shareholders

*= represents the non-distributable portion destittecover deferred costs that have not yet beertened.

Utilizations refer to dividends, purchase of tragsstock and reductions of reserves for other
causes and do not include transfers between reselweparticular, with reference to the
changes that occur red in the past three yearsthatdhe drawdowns of the treasury shares
reserve refer to purchases of treasury stock, vardevdowns from the share premium reserve
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refer to the sale of treasury shares at a priaeb#ieir carrying value and the drawdowns from

the extraordinary rese

rve refer to integrationhef 2012 dividend.

On the basis of Italian tax legislation the ressrard profits are freely distributable and do not
attract tax even in the case of distribution, am¢bndition that the reserves and residual profits
exceed the negative components of income ascrikeldsively in the tax return; otherwise,
distributed reserves and profits would be subjediak in the measure in which the residual
reserves and profits were lower than the negatweponents of income that have been ascribed
exclusively to the tax return. At 31 December 20thts condition has been complied with in
full, hence no taxes were payable in the eventistfidution of the parent company's entire
profits for the year and the entirety of availatdserves, beyond the taxes already indicated in

the prior statement.

Breakdown of components recorded directly in equity

201¢ 201«
Amount Amount net Amount Amount net
(amounts in €/000) before of taxation before of taxation
taxatior Taxatior taxatior Taxatior

Accounting for derivatives

hedging interest-rate

risks using the cash flow hedge met - - - 5C (14) 3€
Accounting for derivatives

hedging exchange-rate

risks using the cash

flow hedge methc 8 2) 6 (41) 13 (28)
Profit (Loss) arising

from translation of the financial
statements compani 18,98t - 18,98t 23,27" - 23,27"
Profit (Loss) of companies

carried at carried at equ (16) - (16) 68 - 68
Actuarial Profits (Losses) associated
with

restatement of defined

benefits plar 2,47¢ (683 1,79¢ (2,640 72€ (1,614
Total 21,45¢ (685 20.77. 20,715 125 21,43

25. Minority shareholders' equity
This is the portion of consolidated shareholdegsiitg pertaining to minority shareholders of
the consolidated subsidiaries. The following changere recorded:

(€/000)

Balance at 31/12/2014

Merger effect
Dividends paid
to third parties
Interests acquired
Changes recognized
directly in equity
Exchange rate difference

Profit (loss) of the year
minority interests

Balance at 31/12/2015

Share of
Interpump intragroup
Interpump  Hydraulics profits
Hydraulics International Hydrocontrol — IMM Hammelmann included
Group Group Group Group Sit Pump System inventories Total
4,050 484 862 58 365 447 (411) 5,855
484 (484) - - - - - -
(861) - - - - (64) - (925)
(242) - (38) - - - - (280)
- - - 1 23 - - 24
83 - 29 - - 18 - 130
612 - 267 10 12 126 360 667
4,126 - 1,120 69 400 527 771) 5471
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The subsidiaries with minority interests are natividually or cumulatively significant to the
Interpump Group.

26. Other net revenues

2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)
Reimbursement of expenses 6,064 4,897
Income from the sale of waste and scrap 2,620 2,973
Income from the sale of know-how and technical dinge - 1,500
Capital gains on the sale of equity investmentsliaed of business - 499
Utilization of surplus provisions and allocations 018 343
Capital gains from the sale of property, plant agdipment 410 161
Income from rent/royalties 342 214
Refunds from insurance 340 114
Other 2,556 1,862
Total 13,133 12,563
27. Costs by nature
2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)
Raw materials and components 342,551 257,509
Personnel and temporary staff 224,052 161,870
Services 93,364 72,890
Amortization / depreciation
(notes 13 and 15) 41,693 29,961
Directors' and statutory auditors' remuneration 58.0 7,690
Hire purchase and leasing charges 11,906 10,322
Provisions / impairment of tangible and
intangible fixed assets (notes 13, 15 and 20) 1,669 1,778
Other operating costs 47,871 38,175
Total cost of sales, distribution costs, generdl an
administrative expenses, other operating costsrapairment losses
of tangible and intangible fixed assets 771,165 580,195

In accordance with the requirements of article @id®decies if the Issuers' Regulation as
amended by Consob Resolution no. 15915 of 3 May 2lished in the Official Journal of
the Italian Republic no. 111 of 15 May 2007 (S.0. 1hl5), the remuneration amounts for 2015
are listed below for services rendered to the Gioughe independent auditors and the entities
belonging to the network of said independent aniglitompany:

- assignments for auditing of the parent company@EAX3B;

- assignments for auditing of subsidiaries €/000 701;

The above amounts are included under Other cotitinvgieneral and administrative expenses.
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28. Directors' and statutory auditors' remuneration

The emoluments of the Directors and Statutory Audibf Interpump Group S.p.A., for their
functions performed at the Parent Company and h&erotonsolidated companies, are

summarized below:

Parent Company
Statutory auditors
Total remuneration

2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)
4,070 3,885
167 182
4,237 4,067

The amounts include the emoluments authorized at Shareholders' Meeting and those
established by the Board of Directors for directwith special duties, including bonuses, non-
cash benefits, payments to cover the cost of patsm@turity and the remuneration element of
stock option plans, as represented by the periatiopoof the fair value of the options

calculated at the grant date. The difference wepect to 2014 was due to the recognition in
2015 of a payment totaling €/000 186 to cover thesgnal security costs of the Chairman of the

Board of Directors.

29. Financial income and charges

Financial income

Interest income from liquid funds

Interest income from other assets

Financial income to adjust debt estimate for commaitt
to purchase residual stakes in subsidiaries

Foreign exchange gains

Earnings from valuation of derivative financialtinsnents

Other financial income

Total financial income

Financial expenses

Interest expense on loans

Interest expense on put options

Financial charges to adjust estimated debt for ciomamnt
to purchase residual stakes in subsidiaries

Tobin Tax

Foreign exchange losses

Losses from valuation of derivative financial insirents

Other financial charges

Total financial expenses

Total financial expenses (income), net

2015
€/000

508
70

32,056
9,533
206

43
42,416

5,944
475

390
268
8,286
77
248
15,688

(26,728)

2014
€/000

601
51

742
6,579
146
_ 25
8.144

6,636
3,465

4,693
45
4,326
70
269
19,504
11,360

See the comments on page 17 of the Report on auesdbr information about the financial
income deriving from adjustment of the estimatetility for the purchase of residual interests

in subsidiaries.
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The interest expense on put options relates todlease of the discounting effect on payables
for the purchase of equity investments.

The adjustment of the estimated liability for therghase of residual interests in subsidiaries
may result in financial charges, if the actual parfance of the companies concerned is better
than initially expected, or if the related put opis are exercised later than initially expected.
Conversely, financial income may be recognizechd actual performance of the companies
concerned is worse than initially expected, ohd telated put options are exercised earlier than
initially expected.

30. Income taxes

The effective tax rate for the year was 27.6% (B8i0 2014). This change is explained in the
Report on operations.

Taxes recognized in the income statement can bebrown as follows:

2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)
Current taxes (45,749) (34,483)
Current taxes of prior financial years (838) 121
Deferred taxes 1,531 (1,005)
Total taxes (45,056) (35,367)
Deferred tax recognized in the income statemenbednroken down as follows:
2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)
Deferred tax assets generated in the year 3,258 2,524
Deferred tax liabilities generated in the year 1856 (2,147)
Deferred tax assets transferred to the incomenrséaite (2,823) (3,483)
Deferred tax liabilities recognized in the incon@eament 3,395 2,096
Deferred tax assets resulting from change in rate (1,076) 2
Deferred tax liabilities resulting from change ate 2,723 3
Derecognized deferred tax assets (1,431) -
Deferred taxes not calculated in previous years - -
Total deferred taxes 1,531 (1,005)
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The reconciliation of taxes calculated on the baéihe nominal rates in force in the different

countries and the effective tax burden is a follows

IRES/National tax
Profit before taxes from the income statement
Theoretical taxes at the Italian rate (27.5%)

Effect of different rates applicable to foreign sialiaries
Tax on dividends from consolidated companies
Higher (Lower) taxes resulting from the valuatidrinwestments using the equity method

Higher tax for non-deductible stock option costs

Lower taxes due to IRAP deduction relating to expsrier
employees and similar for the year

Lower taxes due to IRAP deduction on interest expeisthe year

Higher taxes due to not recognizing deferred taet@son current year tax losses
Lower taxes due to not recognizing deferred tartassn prior year tax losses
Deferred taxes derecognized in the year

Taxes relating to previous years (current plusrded

Higher taxes on financial expenses relative toaliating of debts
for the purchase of investments and related adprgs

Effect of scheduled change in the IRES tax ratmf2917
Higher (Lower) taxes for non-taxable revenues amu-aieductible costs
Total IRES/National tax

IRAP/Local income taxes
Profit before taxes from the income statement

Theoretical taxes at the Italian rate (3.9%)

Effect of different rates applicable to foreign sialiaries
Higher taxes for non-deductible payroll costs

Higher taxes for non-deductible directors' emolutsen
Higher taxes due to non-deductible financial expens

Tax on dividends from consolidated companies

Higher taxes due to measuring investments usingyemethod
Taxes relating to previous years (current plusrded

Higher taxes due to change in the tax rate

Higher (Lower) taxes for non-taxable revenues amu-aieductible costs
Total IRAP/Local income taxes

Total income taxes recognized in the income stateme

Interpump Group S.p.A. belongs to a domestic taougrtogether with Teknova S.r.l. and
Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. In addition, IMM S.p.And Hypress S.r.l. are members of a

different domestic tax group.
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2015 2014
(€/000)  (€/000)
163,362 93,109
44,925 25,605
(102)  (292)
1,309 1,211
72 (28)

104 104
(250)  (727)
(101)  (99)
51 -

@71) -
1,431 -
976  (70)
(8,596) 2,008
(1,619) -
__(742) _(394)

37,187 27,318

163,362 93,109
6,371 3,631
1,921 1,854

233 1,928
311 264
(1,187) 358
23 -

(3) (5)

14 (26)

26

__ 160 _ 45
7,869 8,049
45,056 35,367



31. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated on the basiensiotidated profit for the year attributable to
Parent Company shareholders, divided by the waighterage number of ordinary shares as
follows:

2015 2014
Consolidated profit for the period attributable ®arent
company 117,639 56,936
shareholders (€/000)
Average number of shares in circulation 106,854,08D05,257,907
Basic earnings per share (€) 1.101 0.541

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share are calculated on this lod diluted consolidated profit for the year
attributable to the parent company's shareholdiivigled by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in circulation adjusted by the neimi¥ potentially dilutive ordinary shares.

The calculation is as follows:

2015 2014
Consolidated profit for the period attributable tarent
company 117,639 56,936

shareholders (€/000)

Average number of shares in circulation 106,854,06105,257,907
Number of potential shares for stock option plas ( 1,491,735 2,006,055
Average number of shares (diluted) 108,345,80107,263,962
Diluted earnings per share (€) 1.086 0.531
* calculated as the number of shares assigned ftivekmoney stock option plans multiplied by the aati

between the difference of the average value otizge in the year and the exercise price at theerator,
and the average value of the share in the yeaeaténominator.
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32. Information on financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities, broken down bg tategories identified by IAS 39, are
summarized in the following table:

Financial Financial
assets at liabilities at
31/122015 31/12/2015
At the fair value recorded Loans anc  Held for Valued a
(€/000) in the Income Statement receivables sale the amortize Total Fair value
Initially*  1AS 39 cost
Trade receivables - - 178,129 - - 178,129 178,129
Other current assets - - 4,177 - - 4,177 4,177
Other financial assets 303 - 223 499 - 1,025 1,025
Trade payables - - - - (94,022) (94,022) (94,022)
Payables to banks - - - - (4,972) (4,972) (4,972)
Current interest bearing
financial payables - - - - (83,833) (83,833) (83,833)
Derivative instruments
payable - (49) - - - (49) (49)

Other current liabilities - - - (47,819) (47,819) (47,819)
Non-current

interest-bearing

financial payables -

Other non-current

(300,549) (300,549) (300,549)

assets - - - - (22,017) (22,017) (22,017)
Total 30s (49) 182,529 499 (553,212) (369,930) (369,930)
Financial Financial
assets at liabilities at
31/12/201¢ 31/12/2014
At the fair value recorded Loans anc  Held for Valued a
(€/000) in the Income Statement  receivables sale  the amortize Total Fair value
Initially*  1AS 39 cost
Trade receivables - - 135,634 - - 135,634 135,634
Other current assets - - 3,667 - - 3,667 3,667
Other financial assets - - 345 649 - 994 994
Trade payables - - - - (80,273) (80,273) (80,273)
Payables to banks - - - - (27,289) (27,289) (27,289)
Current interest bearing
financial payables - - - - (64,298) (64,298) (64,298)
Derivative instruments
payable - (141) - - - (141) (141)
Other current liabilities - - - - (37,690) (37,690) (37,690)
Non-current
interest-bearing
financial payables - - - - (147,060) (147,060) (147,060)
Other non-current
assets - - - - (72,605) (72,605) (72,605)
Total - 141 139,64 649 (429,215) (289,061) (289,061)

* = designated as such at the time of initiabreling.
** = classified as held for trading according e trequirements of IAS 39.

The carrying amount of financial assets and liibdi is substantially the same as their fair
value.

The 2015 consolidated income statement only regaitssalue earnings of €/000 155 (€/000
113 in 2014, in part offset by €/000 25 of fairualosses) on derivative financial instruments,
which, although arranged for hedging purposesedaid meet all the requirements of IAS 39 in
order to be considered hedges. These financialumsints comprise interest rate swaps and
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interest rate collars. Note 10 gives the methodsdtulation utilized to establish the fair value
of derivative financial instruments and their métudates.

Loans and receivables generated costs and revefhuesevenues comprised exchange gains of
€/000 6,046 (€/000 3,335 in 2014). Costs, on therdband, comprised losses on receivables of
€/000 1,329 (€/000 1,549 in 2014), classified i@ ithcome statement as other operating costs,
and exchange losses of €/000 4,990 (€/000 1,53214).

The financial liabilities measured at amortizedtcalso generated costs and revenues in the
income statement. Revenues refer to exchange aats §/000 2,693 (€/000 1,496 in 2014),
while costs refer to currency exchange losses fod&E 3,162 (€/000 1,037 in 2014) and the
portion of ancillary charges initially incurred tbtain the loans and then distributed on the
basis of the loan duration according to the finaheiethod. In 2015 the value of these expenses
booked to the income statement totalled €/000 £1&0 761 in 2014).

Financial assets and liabilities not designatetaimtvalue through the income statement (all
those indicated in the previous table, with theegtion of those appearing in the first two
columns) generated, respectively, interest incom€/@0 32,160 (€/000 795 in 2014) and
interest expense of €/000 6,551 (€/000 14,033 MRdn addition, general and administrative
expenses include commission amounts and bank chaf@2000 1,344 (€/000 1,006 in 2014).

33. Information on financial risks

The company is exposed to financial risks assatiaith its activities:

« market risk (mainly related to currency exchangesand interest rates) since the Group
does business internationally and is exposed testbbange risk;

+ credit risk connected with business relations withtomers;

» liquidity risk, with special reference to the awdility of financial resources and access to
the lending market and financial instruments inegah

e price risk in relation to metal price fluctuatiotisat constitute a significant portion of the
raw materials purchase price.

The Group is not exposed to significant risk coti@ions.

As described in Note 4 "Financial risks managemehg' Interpump Group constantly monitors
the financial risks to which it is exposed so ttieg potential negative effects can be evaluated
in advance and appropriate actions can be takatitigate them.

The following section provides reference qualitatand quantitative indications concerning the
uncertainty of such risks for the Interpump Group.

The quantitative data given below are not to bestaoed as forecasts; specifically, the
sensitivity analyses concerning market risks amblento reflect the complexity and correlated
relations of markets that may derive from each peoted change.

Exchange risk

The Group is exposed to risks deriving from flutiuas in currency exchange rates that can
impact on the economic result and shareholder#yeealue. Specifically:

« wherever Group companies generate revenues innoigge other than the currencies in
which the respective costs are denominated, exeheatg fluctuations can impact on the
relative companies' operating profit.

In 2015 the total amount of cash flows directly @sgd to exchange risks corresponded to
approximately 10% of Group turnover (approximated$o in 2014).
The main exchange rates to which the Group is egase:
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- Euro/USD in relation to dollar sales of high presspumps, very high pressure
systems, directional controls and valves in Nortimefica through the Group's
distribution companies;

- Euro/USD in relation to dollar sales of various taudic components in the South
American market;

- Euro/GBP in relation to sales in British pound$ofes and fittings in the UK through
one of the Group's distribution companies;

- Euro/AUD in relation to sales in Australian dollask very high pressure systems in
Australia through one of the Group's distributi@ampanies;

- RON/Euro in relation to euro sales of hoses arthdis made in Romania for the
[talian market;

- USD/Euro in relation to euro sales of high pressuenps, directional controls and
valves in North America by the Group's distributmympanies;

- Chilean Peso/USD, in relation to sales in US dsllafrvarious hydraulic components
in South America;

- Renminbi/USD, Renminbi/Euro, Indian rupee/Euro,idmé rupee/USD in relation to
euro and dollar sales of hydraulic componentsctoeal controls and valves in North
America, Korea and ltaly.

The Interpump Group has adopted a policy of hedgommmercial transactions
denominated in foreign currency, in the framewofkvbich the most effective derivative
instruments for the achievement of the preset goal® been identified and the relative
responsibilities, duties and system of delegatiense been defined.

Where macro hedging of foreign currency revenuescasts is not possible, Group policy
is to hedge solely if the exchange rates are dedmée favorable, based on a matrix of
values established beforehand by top managemems, ¢nsuring maintenance of the
favorable condition for a time period of betweemeth and six months. Although the
exchange rate reached and even exceeded the sistabialues considered favorable
during 2015, top management decided not to stalgihg, except for isolated, individual
transactions, in order to benefit from the weakrmdghe euro.

Whenever Group companies sustain costs denomiirafedeign currencies other than the
currencies of denomination of the relative reventlestuations in the exchange rates can
affect the operating profit of the companies insjios.

In 2015 the commercial cash flows directly expose@xchange risks were equivalent to
approximately 21% of Group purchases (11% in 2@h4) mainly related to intercompany
transactions and the USD/Euro, Renminbi/Euro, Rithee, Leu/Euro, Won/Euro and
Renminbi/lUSD exchange rates. The increase in tbielence of currency purchases with
respect to 2014 was partly due (4%) to the decigioimvoice in Renminbi the hydraulic
pumps made in China for the US market, while tmeaiader was due to the consolidation
of the Walvoil Group. Currently the Group policygeeding purchases in foreign currency
is to refrain from systematic hedging and, wheresjide, to establish macro hedges for
currency costs and revenues. This was the caseexample, in 2015 with €11m of
purchases and sales in Euro made in North Amegidad Group's distribution companies.
The decision to refrain from systematic hedginde$ the large number and fragmented
nature of transactions, whose total value has abtgached a level that would enable the
benefits connected with stabilization of the exgearate to offset the costs associated with
arranging the related hedges. However, the Groupitors this phenomenon constantly
both in relation to exchange rate trends and &ls@volution of business.

Again in relation to commercial activities, the @pocompanies can be in a position
wherein they hold commercial receivables or payabnominated in currencies other than
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the account currency of the holding entity. Fluttwas in exchange rates can therefore
result in the realization or assessment of positvenegative exchange differences. As
highlighted earlier, it is Group policy to monitthre need to hedge exposures deriving from
trade payables.

* In relation to financial exposure, wherever the stary outflows/inflows are denominated
in a currency other than the account currencyzetili by the creditor/debtor company,
fluctuation of the exchange rates can impact negigton the net profits of said companies.
In relation to financial exposures, loans of €1\8are collected during 2015 in currencies
other than those utilized by the debtor compani¢s31 December 2015, loans totaling
€4.1m are still outstanding in currencies othenttiese utilized by the debtor companies.
Once again in 2015, the Group decided not to hdudgexposure.

e Several Group subsidiaries are situated in non-Edtuntries, notably the US, Chile,
Australia, China, India, Brazil, Korea, Romania ahd United Arab Emirates. Since the
Group's functional currency is the euro, the incostetements of these companies are
translated into euro at the average exchange fébe gear. Changes in exchange rates can
impact on the corresponding value of revenuess@® economic result in euro.

« The assets and liabilities of consolidated comgamibose account currency is different
from the euro can assume different equivalent exaoies depending on the rates of
exchange. As provided for by the reference accogrgrinciples, the effects of changes in
the exchange rate are recognized directly in equitthe Translation reserve. The Group
monitors the main exposures to translation riskhatdate of the financial statements no
hedges have been arranged in relation to thesesergm

The nature and structure of the exposure to exehaisy and the related hedging policies
adopted by the Group were substantially unchang@@15.

Exchange risk sensitivity analysis

The potential loss deriving from the change in fiie value of financial assets and liabilities

caused by a hypothetical and sudden increase waibe of the euro of 10% with respect to the
main foreign currencies would be approximately €/@B02 (€/000 1,368 in 2014).

The sensitivity analysis did not take account ofres in the receivables and payables in
relation to which the hedge operations were arrdndfeis reasonable to assume that the
fluctuation in exchange rates could produce an sippceconomic effect on the derivative

financial instruments of an amount that is identiwathe change in the underlying hedged
transactions thereby effectively offsetting thecfliation.

Interest rate risk

Group companies use external financial resourcéiseriorm of debt and employ cash on hand
available in bank deposits. Changes in the marketast rate influence the cost and return of
various forms of financing and investment, thus actphg on the Group's level of financial
expenses.

It is company policy to monitor the changes in tage curves, in order to assess the need to
hedge part of the outstanding loans. As more fd#gcribed in note 10, loans for which the
interest risk is hedged total €/000 15,843 at IPAP5, comprising fixed-rate loans of €/000
12,158 and €/000 3,685 relating to derivative unsints taken over from newly-acquired
companies.

At 31 December 2015, liquidity of €5.2m is heldthe form of unrestricted deposits at fixed
interest rates, while the remainder is held attiihgarates, consistent with the Group's financial
payables and bank debt.
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Sensitivity analysis relative to the interest rateisk

The effects on the Group of a hypothetical and soddpswing in interest rates of 50 basis
points would be higher financial expenses, nethef increase in financial income, totalling
€/000 1,220 (€/000 501 in 2014). It is reasonabladsume that a 50 basis points decrease in
interest rates would produce an equivalent efedttpugh this time in terms of lower financial
expenses. The sensitivity analysis did not takewutcof loans in relation to which hedges have
been taken out, those at fixed interest rates igodlity invested at fixed rates. It is reasonable
to assume that the fluctuation in interest rategdccproduce an opposite economic effect on the
derivative financial instruments of an amount tisatdentical to the change in the underlying
hedged transactions thereby effectively offsettimgfluctuation.

Credit risk

The maximum theoretical credit risk exposure of @reup at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is
represented by the carrying value of the finaresalets recorded in the financial statements.

However, historically the Group has never suffesiag significant bad debts (0.1% of sales in
2015 and 0.2% in 2014). This is because Group corapayenerally grant extended payment
terms only to their long-term customers of knowtveoncy and reliability. In contrast, after
having passed an initial credit rating analysisy westomers are required to make payments in
advance or to open a letter of credit for amounts d

Individual write-downs are applied in relation tosgions, if of significant magnitude, in
relation to which an objective condition of uncotigbility is present for all or part of the
outstanding amount. The amount of the write-dowkesaaccount of an estimate of the
recoverable flows and the associated collectior,daid the expenses and costs for future debt
recovery. Collective provisions are allocated itation to receivables that are not subject to
individual write-downs, taking account of the histcexposure and statistical data.

At 31 December 2015 the Loans and Receivables ldoakder financial assets for the purposes
of IFRS 7 totaled €/000 182,529 (€/000 139,646141%2014), and they include €/000 7,455
related to written down receivables (€/000 6,08534t12/2014); on the residual amount
payments overdue by less than three months we@®40,015 (€/000 27,291 at 31/12/2014),
while those overdue beyond three months totale@0EAB,900 (€/000 12,776 at 31/12/2014).
The increases were mainly due to the change instlpe of consolidation. In relation to
receivables overdue by less than three months giggsreceived total €/000 164 (€/000 257 at
31/12/2014), while in relation to receivables owerdby more than three months the guarantees
received totaled €/000 7 (€/000 160 in 2014).

The Group is not exposed to any significant corretions of sales. In fact, in 2015 the top
customer in terms of sales accounted for about fl#dtal sales (1% also in 2014), while the top
10 customers accounted for 7% of total sales (820it¥). The concentration is similar on the
sector level because the top customer in termsalefs saccounts for around 2% in both the
Water Jetting Sector and the Hydraulic Sector, evttie top 10 customers account for 14% of
the Water Jetting Sector and 10% of the Hydraubict&.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk can arise if it becomes impodsilio obtain, at acceptable economic
conditions, the financial resources needed foGrmip's business operations.

The two main factors that define the Group's ligyidituation are the resources generated by or
used in operating and spending activities, andchasacteristics of expiry and renewal of debt
or liquidity of financial investments and the rélatmarket conditions.

The Group has adopted a series of policies ancepses aimed at optimizing the management
of resources in order to reduce the liquidity risk:
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* retention of an appropriate level of cash on hand;

« diversification of the banks with which the Groupeoates;

e access to adequate lines of credit;

e negotiation of covenants at a consolidated level;

* monitoring of the prospective conditions of liquydin relation to the corporate process.

The maturity characteristics of interest bearimficial debts and bank debts are described in
Note 18.

Management considers that the currently availabted$ and lines of credit, in addition to
resources that will be generated by operating amah€ing activities will allow the Group to
meet requirements deriving from investing actigtienanagement of working capital and
repayment of debts at the natural due date, intiaddio ensuring the pursuit of a strategy of
growth also by means of targeted acquisitions #blereate value for shareholders. Cash on
hand at 31 December 2015 totals € 135.1 milliorshGan hand, combined with the significant
cash generation from operations that the Groupbleas able to realize in 2015 and in prior
years, are definitely factors that make it possibleeduce the Group's exposure to liquidity
risk. The decision to maintain a high level of idjty was adopted in order to minimize the
liquidity risk, which is considered important givdhe current state of uncertainty of the
economy, and to pick up on any opportunities fayuégitions that may arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to risks deriving from flutitards in the prices of metals that can impact
on economic results and profit margins. Specificdtie incidence of costs for the purchase of
metals was 29% of total Group purchase costs of materials, semi-finished products and
finished products in 2015 (23% in 2014). The maktats utilized by the Group include brass,
aluminium, copper, steel, stainless steel, cast, iamd, to a lesser extent, copper, sheet metal
and mild steel. With respect to 31 December 20ti¢ep of raw materials used by the Group
did not increase significantly and even fell in sonases. The Group constantly monitors the
trend of the prices of these materials in the gitdmadopt the most effective policies to reduce
the potential exposure to this risk.

The Group sectors feature differing levels of progiy towards the risk of fluctuations in the
prices of metals, notably:

* in the Water Jetting Sector the cost of metals tioiesd approximately 15% of costs for the
purchase of raw materials, semi-finished produat ffnished products in 2015 (13% in
2014). The metals utilized are primarily brasselststainless steel, aluminium and copper.
The policy is to leave the cost of storage of makeito vendors; this means that the risk is
hedged by means of orders for periods and quatiede at fixed price. At 31 December
2015 there were agreements in place covering 86#eoprojected consumption of brass
and 67% of the projected consumption of aluminun2fal5 (in 2014, 27% coverage of the
projected consumption of brass and 14% coveragehef projected consumption of
aluminum in relation to 2014). The percentage cagerof the predicted consumption of
brass and aluminum rises still further, to the eixt# covering the entire requirement for
the coming year, if the stocks of brass and alumiom hand at 31/12/2015 are considered
in addition to the agreements signed;

« the cost of metals in the Hydraulic Sector considuaround 36% of purchase costs for raw
materials, semi-finished products and finished pobtslin 2015 (29% in 2014). The metals
utilized are primarily steel, aluminum, mild steeld iron. The prices of these commodities,
with the exception of aluminum, are not historigadensitive to significant fluctuations.
The Group therefore considers that a strategy aimtextcurate analysis of price trends is
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sufficient to mitigate the price risk. In relatido aluminum, no hedging transactions are
undertaken because of the limited effect of sudratpns on purchase prices.

Generally the selling prices of the various Groompanies are reviewed once a year.

34. Notes to the cash flow statement

Property, plant and equipment

In 2015 the Group purchased buildings, plant andhimary totalling €/000 38,460 (€/000
41,408 in 2014). This investment involved paymeait§/000 38,703, including the purchase of
assets for subsequent rental and considering thandgs of the payables incurred for this
reason (€/000 39,755 in 2014).

Cash and cash equivalents
This item can be broken down as follows:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)

Cash and cash equivalents from the balance sheet 5,138 87,159
Payables to banks (current account overdrafts dvanzes (5,735) (27,770)
subject to collection)

Cash and cash equivalents from the cash flow statem 129,395 59,389

Net financial position and cash-flow statement

For the amount and detail of the main componentiehet financial position and the changes
that occurred in 2015 and 2014 we invite you teréd the "Cash Flow" section of the Report
on operations.

35. Commitments

At 31/12/2015 the group had commitments to purchasematerials totalling €/000 183 (€/000
306 at 31/12/2014).

Furthermore, the Group also has commitments tohages tangible assets totalling €/000 4,217
(€/000 287 at 31/12/2014).

The Group has signed rental and hire purchase mgrgs primarily regarding buildings,
machinery, cars and computers. The total outlagGh5 was €/000 10,566 (€/000 10,518 in
2014). At 31/12/2015, the following commitments eeutstanding:

(€/000)
Due within 1 year 10,371
Due from 1 to 2 years 9,539
Due from 2 to 5 years 19,347
Due beyond 5 years 3,104
Total 42,361
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36. Transactions with related parties

The Group entertains relations with unconsolidatatisidiaries and other related parties at
arm's length conditions considered to be normathin respective reference markets, taking
account of the characteristics of the goods andices rendered. Transactions between
Interpump Group S.p.A. and its consolidated subsels, which are related parties of the
company, were eliminated in the consolidated firgrgtatements and are not described in this
note.

The effects on the Group's consolidated incomestamts for 2015 and 2014 are shown below:

2015
Non- Other Total % incidence
Total consolidated Associates related related on account
(€/000) Total subsidiaries parties parties caption
Net sales 894,928 1,893 - 1,710 3,603 0.4%
Cost of products 577,310 447 - 17,888 18,335 3.2%
sold
Other revenues 13,133 18 - - 18 0.1%
Distribution costs 84,321 38 - 1,284 1,322 1.6%
General and admin.
expenses 105,670 - - 923 923 0.9%
Financial income 42 416 7 - - 7 -
Financial expenses 15,688 - - 2 2 -
2014
Non- Other Total % incidence
Total consolidated Associates related related on account
(€/000) Total subsidiaries parties parties caption
Net sales 671,999 4,702 - 2,657 7,359 1.1%
Cost of products 426,585 403 - 18,103 18,506 4.3%
sold
Other revenues 12,563 3 - 2 5 0.0%
Distribution costs 68,074 210 - 1,429 1,639 2.4%
General and admin.
expenses 80,517 - - 768 768 1.0%
Financial income 8,143 9 - - 9 0.1%
Financial expenses 19,504 - - 8 8 0.0%

The effects on the consolidated statement of filmuposition at 31 December 2015 and 2014
are described below:

31 December 2015

Non-
consolidated Other Total % incidence
(€/000) Total subsidiaries Associates related related  on account
Total parties parties caption
Trade receivables 178,129 1,774 - 429 2,203 1.2%
Other current assets 7,809 4 - - 4 0.1%
Other non-current
financial
assets 1,025 218 - - 218 21.3%
Trade payables 94,022 36 - 1,744 1,780 1.9%
Interest-bearing
financial
financial payables 83,833 - - 7 7 -
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31 December 2014

Non-
consolidated Other Total % incidence
(€/000) Total subsidiaries Associates related related  on account
Total parties parties caption
Trade receivables 135,634 3,915 - 392 4,307 3.2%
Other current assets 6,856 5 - - 5 0.1%
Other non-current
financial
assets 944 340 - - 340 36.0%
Trade payables 80,273 101 - 3,049 3,150 3.9%
Interest-bearing
financial
financial payables 64,298 - 409 409 0.6%
Relations with non-consolidated subsidiaries
Relations with non-consolidated subsidiaries arlk®ys:
(€/000) Receivables Revenues
31/12/2015 31/12/2014 2015 2014
Interpump Hydraulics Middle East* - 2,464 - 3,103
Interpump Hydraulics (UK) 963 780 704 591
Interpump Hydraulics Peru 724 - 730 -
General Pump China Inc. 91 245 477 656
Hammelmann Bombas e Sistemas Ltda* - 431 - 355
Total subsidiaries 1,778 3,920 1,91 4,705
(€/000) Payables Costs
31/12/2015 31/12/2014 2015 2014
General Pump China Inc. 36 44 485 454
Interpump Hydraulics Middle East* - 2 - 2
Hammelmann Bombas e Sistemas Ltda* - 55 - 157
Total subsidiaries 36 101 485 13

* = fully consolidated at 31 December 2015
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(€/000) Loans Financial income

31/12/2015 31/12/2014 2015 2014
Interpump Hydraulics (UK) 218 205 7 7
Interpump Hydraulics Middle East* - 105 - 2
Hammelmann Bombas e Sistemas Ltda* - 30 - -
Total subsidiaries _218 340 7 9

* = fully consolidated at 31 December 2015

Relations with associates
The Group does not hold any associated companies.

Transactions with other related parties

Transactions with other related parties concernl¢lasing of facilities owned by companies
controlled by the current shareholders and dirsctdr Group companies for the amount of
€4,899k (€5,002k in 2014) and consultancy servipesvided by entities connected with
directors and statutory auditors of the Parent @mpfor €140k (€102k in 2014). Costs for
rentals were recorded under the cost of salessimmmount of €3,572k (€3,951k in 2014), under
distribution costs in the amount of €796k (€882R014) and under general and administrative
expenses in the amount of €531k (€169k in 2014)nsGltancy costs were allocated to
distribution costs in the amount of €60k (€60k edited to distribution costs also in 2014) and
to general and administrative expenses in the ahmiu€i80k (€42k in 2014). Revenues from
sales in the year ended 31 December 2015 inclueleshues from sales to companies by Group
shareholders or directors in the amount of €1, {€Qk657k at 31 December 2014). In addition,
the cost of sales includes purchases from subwdidry minority shareholders or Group
company directors in the amount of €13,967k (€18ka4 2014).

Moreover, further to the signing of building rentaintracts with other related parties, at 31
December 2015 the Group has commitments of €16,812k495k at 31 December 2014).

37. Events occurring after the close of the year

As discussed further in the Report on operatiohs, éntire equity interest in Endeavour
(Hydralok brand), based in Bath, England, was aequbn 22 January 2016.
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Attachment 1

Attestation of the consolidated financial statemerst pursuant
to art. 81-(3) of Consob regulation no. 11971 (whicrefers to
art. 154-(2) para. 5 of the Consolidated Finance Arof 14 May
1999 and subsequent amendments

1. The undersigned Paolo Marinsek and Carlo Bancipews/ely Executive

Director and Manager responsible for the draftifgcompany accounting
documents of Interpump Group S.p.A.,, taking actalso of the provisions of
art. 154-(2), subsections 3 and 4 of legislativeree no. 58 of 24 February
1998, attest to:

— adequacy in relation to the characteristics oflrginess and
— effective application

of the administrative and accounting procedures tfg formation of the
consolidated financial statements during 2015.

In addition, it is confirmed that consolidated fiiwéal statements of Interpump
Group S.p.A. and its subsidiaries for the year drigle December 2015, which
show consolidated total assets of €1,270,073 tmuljsansolidated net profit of
€118,306 thousand and consolidated shareholderty e €622,628 thousand:

a) correspond to the results of the company booksaandunting entries;

b) were prepared in compliance with the internatioaetounting standards
approved by the European Commission further teetifercement of Ruling
(CE) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament ardBuropean Council
of 19 July 2002, and the provisions issued in inmaetation of art. 9 of
legislative decree 38/2005 and the contents areldei for providing a
truthful and fair representation of the equity, mmmic and financial
situation of the company and the group of compainielsided in the scope
of consolidation;

c) the Board of Directors' report contains a reliadlalysis of performance
and results and the situation of the issuer anaddingpanies included in the
consolidation together with a description of thammésks and uncertainties
to which they are exposed.

Santllario d Enza (RE), 18 March 2016

. Paolo Marinsek Carlo Banci
Deputy Chairman and Manager responsible for pregar
Chief Executive Officer the company's accountioguiments
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Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors to the Skareholders' Meeting of
Interpump Group S.p.A. on the consolidated financial statements at 31 Deober
2015

Shareholders,

This report relates to the consolidated financiatesnents of Interpump Group S.p.A., which
show a net profit of €/000 118,306, including €/@8Y attributable to minority interests.

We received the consolidated financial statementthe legally prescribed deadline, together

with the report on operations, the separate firdrstiatements for 2015 and the associated
report. They were prepared in compliance with titerhational Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Stadd Board (IASB) and endorsed by the

European Union.

Except as specified below, the work of the Boardtatutory Auditors did not extend to the
consolidated financial statements, as is sped§i@lvisaged by law (ltalian legislative decree
no. 58/1998 and art. 41, para. 3, of Italian |legigé decree 127/1991).

On these grounds, we:

- have verified and monitored, within the scope of mmit, the adequacy of the Company's
organizational structure (with special regard te éxistence of a function responsible for
relations with subsidiaries) and the observancthefprinciples of correct administration,
by means of direct checks and through informatiathered from the persons in charge of
the administrative function and meetings held witpresentatives of the independent
auditors appointed to perform the legal audit af #tcounts, Reconta, Ernst & Young
S.p.A., with the aim of assuring the reciprocalrextye of significant data and information;

- have ascertained the methods adopted to idenkti&y scope of consolidation, the
consolidation principles, and the procedures adbfatethe purpose of consolidation, which
are compliant with IFRS prescriptions;

- have checked compliance with legal provisionsulating the consolidated financial
statements and board of directors' report, andh wfiecial reference to the latter, its
adequacy in representing the financial positionesmhomic performance of the companies
subject to consolidation, the trend of operatingiviies in the year and their foreseeable
evolution, and also consistency of the report whih contents of the consolidated financial
statements;

- have acknowledged that the financial statemefntiseomain subsidiaries, for the purpose of
formation of the consolidated financial statememisye examined by the bodies and/or
parties responsible for the control of individualmpanies, in compliance with their
respective legal systems, and by the independeditoasi in the framework of the
procedures adopted for auditing of the consolidéitethcial statements;

- have examined the independent auditors' repaeddd29 March 2016, which contains no
qualifications or emphasis of matter;

- have examined the attestation given by the Chiefcutive Officer and the Manager
responsible for preparing the company's accourdimguments, pursuant to art. &t-of
Consob Regulation no. 11971/1999 as amended antbd#is of Italian legislative decree



58/1998.

As part of our general supervisory role, we idésdifno significant events requiring disclosure
in this report.

To complete this report you are invited to read comments on the separate financial
statements of Interpump Group S.p.A. for the yealireg 31 December 2015, containing all the
information required by the Italian stock exchanggulatory body.

It is our opinion that the structure of the condaled financial statements is technically correct
and overall in compliance with the specific regoigt framework and that the financial
statements provide an accurate representatioredhterpump Group's economic and financial
situation, as well as its results, in conformityttwthe regulations governing consolidated
financial statements referenced above.

We also deem the board of directors' report on raperations to be an accurate
representation that is consistent with the conatdid financial statements.

* k k kK

S. llario d'Enza, 31 March 2016
for THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pierluigi De Biasi
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Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A. Tel: +39 051 278311
Via Massimo D'Azeglio, 34 Fax: +39 051 236666
40123 Bologna ey.com

Building a better
working world

Independent auditor’s report
in accordance with articles 14 and 16 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated 27 January 2010
(Translation from the original Italian text)

To the Shareholders of Interpump Group S.p.A.

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Interpump Group S.p.A. and its
subsidiaries ("Interpump Group”), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2015, and the
income statement, the comprehensive statement, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors of Interpump Group S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union as well as with the regulations issued to implement art. 9
of Legislative Decree n. 38, dated 28 February 2005.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia)
implemented in accordance with article 11, paragraph 3 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated 27 January
2010. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's professional
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Interpump Group as at December 31, 2015, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the

year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and with article 9 of Legislative Decree n. 38, dated 28 February 2005.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

a C.C.1LA.A. di Roma

iscrizione O numero RE.A. 250904

egalial n. o sullaG.U. Suppl. 13 - IV Serie Speciale del 17/2.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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working world

Opinion on the consistency of the Report on Operations and of specific information of the Report on
Corporate Governance and the Company’s Ownership Structure with the consolidated financial
statements

We have performed the procedures required under audit standard SA Italia n. 720B in order to express
an opinion, as required by law, on the consistency of the Report on Operations and of specific
information of the Report on Corporate Governance and the Company’s Ownership Structure, published
in the section “corporate Governance” of Interpump Group's website, as provided for by article 123-bis,
paragraph 4 of Legislative Decree n. 58, dated 24 February 1998, with the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors of Interpump Group S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of the Report
on Operations and of the Report on Corporate Governance and the Company's Ownership Structure in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. In our opinion the Report on Operations and the
specific information of the Report on Corporate Governance and the Company's Ownership Structure
are consistent with the consolidated financial statements of Interpump Group as at December 31,
2015.

Bologna, March 29, 2016
Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A.
Signed by: Marco Mignani, partner

This report has been translated into the English language solely for the convenience of international readers.
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As in previous years, the operations of Interpumpu@ S.p.A. consisted, in addition to

ordinary industrial activities, in the strategiacdamanagement coordination of the Group, in the
drive to optimize the Group's financial flows, aimdresearch activities and the selection of
equity investments to acquire with the aim of aeding the Group's expansion. The
acquisition of Walvaoil, Inoxihp, Bertoli and Ospeuring 2015 was consistent with this external
growth strategy. A more complete discussion of éhransactions is presented in the 2015
Report on operations accompanying the 2015 CoraelidFinancial Statements.

The company absorbed General Technology S.r.l. latetpump Engineering S.r.l., both
subsidiaries, during the year. The mergers weranged to simplify the organizational
structure, given that General Technology S.r.l.dpoed almost exclusively for Interpump
Group S.p.A., while the R&D activities of Interpungmgineering were principally carried out
for Interpump Group S.p.A. and General Technology.S

Since the intercompany transactions between therladd companies were eliminated at the
time of the merger, comparison with the amountentepl in 2014 is essentially consistent, with
a reclassification of costs from purchases to prtdo costs and general and administrative
expenses. The notes to the financial statemenitsteripump Group S.p.A. report the effect of
the mergers.

Interpump Group S.p.A. has chosen the opt-out reginavided for by art. 70, para. 8, and art.
71, para. 1-bis, of Consob Reg. no. 11971/99 (amnded), thus making use of the consequent
right not to publish the required prospectuseshattime of significant mergers, break-ups,
capital increases by the contribution of asseldgrid, acquisitions and divestments.

1 Profitability

Interpump Group S.p.A. booked net revenues of €7&&¥7.1m in 2014), reflecting growth of
1.1%. The analysis by geographic area of the reaefmom sales and services is given in the
commentary on this item in the notes to the finalsiatements.

The cost of sales accounted for 61.8% of turno®8r206 in 2014). Production costs of €26.7m
(€24.3m in 2014) accounted for 34.2% of sales @1liB 2014). The purchase costs of raw
materials and components sourced on the markdyding changes in inventories, totaled
€21.5m (€24.4m in 2014). The change in the pergenitacidence of purchase costs, down by
4.1 percentage points compared with 2014, was ipaflg due to the effect of the merger by
absorption, which involved the reclassificationpfrchase costs as production costs in 2015
(2.7 points higher than in 2014). To a lesser dxtdre reduction also reflects the lower
incidence of raw material costs due to careful prement management.

Commercial costs were 3.1% higher than in 2014 thiedt incidence on sales rose by 0.1
percentage points.

General and administrative costs were 14.6% higean in 2013 and their incidence on sales
rose by 2.3 percentage points. Here too, the isege@ncidence of general and administrative
expenses was almost entirely due to the mergetdieipy about 2 points of the rise).

Payroll costs totaled €22.5m (€20.2m in 2014) foagerage of 376 employees (362 employees
in 2014). Comparison between the 2015 and 20l4ofayosts is affected by the merger
completed at the end of October 2015, accordinglgraparative pro forma schedule is needed
in order to understand the true dynamics of paymits.



2015 2014

Pro forma Pro forma Change
Total payroll cost 22,494 21,661 +3.8%
Average number of employees 405 397 +8 persons
Cost per capita 55.5 54.6 +1.7%

The 3.8% rise in payroll costs was therefore dua #.7% per capita cost increase, linked to
wage rises and greater recourse to overtime warkang an increase of 8 in the average
headcount.

The reconciliation of the income statement to absaib-totals is shown below:

2015 %on 2014 %on
(€/000) sales (€/000) sales
Ordinary profit before financial charges 34,068 39,101
Dividends (23,117) (27,143)
Impairment losses on investments 340 14
Operating profit (EBIT) 11,291 14.5% 11,972 15.5%
Amortization, depreciation and write-downs 4135 3,940
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 15,426 19.8% 15912 20.6%

EBIT was 11.2 million euro, or 14.5% of sales, canga with 12.0 million euro in 2014
(15.5% of sales), down 5.7%.

EBITDA totaled 15.4 million euro, or 19.8% of sgleesmpared with 15.9 million euro in 2014,
or 20.6% of sales, down 3.1%.

The net profit for the year ended 31 December 2045 28.5 million euro (34.0 million euro in
2014), mainly due to a reduction in the dividendseived from subsidiaries to 23.1 million
euro in 2015 from 27.1 million euro in 2014.

The effective tax rate for the year, net of dividegnimpairment losses on investments and prior-
year taxation, was 34.9% compared with 36.2% inrd420he reduction compared with 2014 is
due to changes in Italian legislation concerning filll deductibility of payroll costs from the
IRAP tax base, which led to a tax saving of 0.4iamileuro. More complete information on the
changes in tax rate between 2015 and 2014 is grdvidNote 27 to the financial statements.
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2 Balance sheet

Below we give the reclassified balance sheet om#sis of cash flows obtained/used:

31/12/2015 % 31/12/2014 %
(€/000) (€/000)
Trade receivables 9,503 12,801
Net inventories 14,283 13,232
Other current assets 11,463 7,298
Trade payables (10,148) (11,191)
Short-term tax payables (6,484) (3,577)
Other short-term liabilities (5,463) (4,844)
Net working capital 13,154 2.4 13,719 3.8
Net intangible and tangible fixed assets 27,940 24,919
Goodwill 32,506 32,506
Investments 337,670 193,955
Other financial fixed assets 142,090 98,800
Other non-current assets 3,144 2,693
Liabilities for employee benefits (4,403) (4,151)
Medium/long-term portion for provisions for risksdacharges (12) (23)
Other medium/long-term liabilities (679) (817)
Total net fixed assets 538,256 97.6 347,882 96.2
Total capital employed 551,410 100.0 361,601 100.0
Financed by:
Total shareholders' equity 294927 535 247,020 68.3
Cash and cash equivalents (46,601) (22,841)
Payables to banks 731 408
Short-term interest-bearing financial payables 27,2 22,896
Total short-term financial payables
(cash on hand) 1,357 0.2 463 0.1
Total medium/long-term financial payables 255,126 46.3 114,118 31.6
Total sources of financing 551,410 100.0 361,601 100.0

The reclassified face of the balance sheet adoptekies it possible to assess the capital
soundness of the company, highlighting its capatitymaintain a condition of financial
equilibrium in the medium/long-term.

3 Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure on tangible fixed assets wagsmndllion euro (3.4 million euro in 2014) and
related to the normal renewal and modernizatioplaft and equipment. The difference with
respect to the expenditure recorded in the cash fitatement is due to the dynamics of
payments.

Increases in intangible fixed assets amounted Qondllion euro (1.6 million euro in 2014),
mostly due to the capitalization of development£os
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4 Loans

Net financial indebtedness as at 31 December 2@5286.5 million euro (114.6 million euro

at 31/12/2014). Changes in the year are listedartable below:

Opening net financial position
Adjustment: Opening net financial position of altmat companies
Adjusted opening net financial position

Cash flow from operatior

Liquidity generated (absorbed) by operating capital

Liquidity generated (absorbed) by other currenéetssand liabilities
Net investment in tangible and intangible fixededss

Financial income colletec

Other

Free cash flow

Proceeds (payments) from the disposal (purchaseyestments
Purchase of treasury she

Proceeds from sales of treasury shares for stoisnsp
Dividends received

Dividends paid

Change in other financial ass

Reimbursement (Disbursement) of loans from (tosgliaries
Cash flow generated (used)

Net financial position at end of year

2015 2014
(€/000)  (€/000)
(114,581) (65,692)
578 -
(114,003) (65,692)
6,24¢  10,87¢
2,441  (4,750)
5675  (149)
(5,680) (3,602)
2,26¢ 2,05(
(428)  (466)
10,525 3,962
(85,137)  (46)
(32,709 (38,299
8,166 4,626
20,141 21,448
(19,321) (18,108)
26 17¢
(53,171) (22,651)
(142,480) (48,889)
(256.483)(114,581)

The net financial position is analyzed as follows:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014 01/01/2014
(€/000) (€/000) (€/000)

Cash and cash equivalents 46,601 22,841 39,879
Payables to banks (731) (408) (143)

Interest-bearing financial payables (current paitio (47,227) (22,896) (25,519)
Interest-bearing financial payables (non-curremtipn) (255,126) (114,118) (79,909)
Total (256.483) (114.581)  (65.692)

At 31 December 2015 all the loan covenants had bewty complied with.
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5 Relations with subsidiaries

The company also operates through subsidiaries whicth it maintains commercial and
financial relations. These relations are detaitethé table below (amounts expressed in €/000):

Receivables Revenues

31/12/2015 31/12/2014 2015 2014
Subsidiaries:
General Pump Inc. 1,546 1,909 18,523 18,696
NLB Corporation Inc. 283 359 2,218 971
Interpump Hydraulics India Ltd 259 522 553 483
Muncie Power Inc. 77 9 526 -
General Pump China Inc. 91 244 400 630
Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. 1,241 1,899 308 32
Hammelmann Bombas e Sistemas Ltda 43 24 105 24
Hammelmann S. L. 2 46 93 108
Inoxihp S.r.l. 14 - 41 -
Bertoli S.r.1. 26 - 37 -
AVI S.r.l. 10 20 33 30
Hydroven S.r.l. 2 2 9 12
Interpump Hydraulics (UK) Ltd - 4 9 4
Contarini Leopoldo S.r.l. 5 5 7 5
Hydrocontrol S.p.A. 32 5 6 5
Interpump Hydraulics Middle East FZCO 1 9 5 9
H.S. Penta Africa Pty Ltd 1 - 5 8
Hammelmann GmbH - 6,059 5 -
Walvoil S.p.A. 56 - 4 -
IMM S.p.A. 6 3 3 4
HS Penta S.p.A. 14 12 3 3
Hydrocar Chile - - 3 -
Unidro Contarini Sarl - 8 1 17
Oleodinamica Panni S.r.l. 2 3 1 3
Teknova S.r.l. (in liquidation) 12 7 - -
General Technology S.r.l.* - 360 - 822
Interpump Engineering S.r.l.* - 26 - 119
Hammelmann Pump System Co. Ltd - - - 10
American Mobile Power Inc. - 1 - -
Total 3,723 11,536 22,89 21,99

*= absorbed by Interpump Group on 1 November 2015

The amounts due from Interpump Hydraulics S.p.Aididcontrol S.p.A., H.S. Penta S.p.A,,
Walvoil S.p.A., Teknova S.r.l. and IMM HydraulicspSA. include, in addition to the trade
receivables component, the uncollected part ofnfifd income, amounting, respectively, to
€/000 636, €/000 24, €/000 14, €/000 12, €/000rkR&000 2. The receivable from Interpump
Hydraulics S.p.A. includes €/000 345 in relationmembership of the Italian domestic tax
group. All other receivables refer to relationsaofommercial nature governed at arm's length
conditions.
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Payables Costs

31/12/2015 31/12/2014 2015 2014
Subsidiaries:
SIT S.p.A. 73 32 306 220
Hammelmann GmbH 14 - 153 165
Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. 449 436 89 65
General Pump Inc. 12 4 57 57
General Pump China Inc. 1 - 50 53
NLB Corporation Inc. - - 30 5
Interpump Hydraulics India Ltd - - 3 8
Hydroven S.r.l. - 2 1
Bertoli S.r.1. 1 - 1 -
Contarini Leopoldo S.r.l. - - 1 -
Interpump Hydraulics Middle East FZCO - - 1 -
Teknova S.r.l. 2 - -
General Technology S.r.l.* - 263 - 5,369
Interpump Engineering S.r.l.* - 510 - 763
Total subsidiaries _552 1,245 693 6,706

*= absorbed by Interpump Group on 1 November 2015

The amount payable to Interpump Hydraulics S.pn&ludes €/000 411 relating to inclusion in
the Italian domestic tax group, as does the amduatto Teknova S.r.l. All other payables refer
to relations of a commercial nature governed atsalength conditions.

Financial relations are as outlined below (amoshtsvn in €/000):

Financing Interest income

31/12/2015 31/12/2014 2015 2014
Subsidiaries:
Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. 122,090 94,090 1,871 1,945
Hydrocontrol 7,500 - 81 -
Walvoil S.p.A. 9,000 - 75 -
Hammelmann GmbH - 4,000 54 105
HS Penta S.p.A. 6,500 - 45 19
IMM Hydraulics S.p.A. 6,000 - 2 -
Contarini Leopoldo S.r.l. 348 - - -
General Technology S.r.L.* - 500 - 18
Teknova S.r.l. (in liquidation) - 210 5 )
Total 151,438 98,800 2,133 2,092

*= absorbed by Interpump Group on 1 November 2015

The intercompany loans outstanding at 31 Decembé&b 2arn interest at Euribor (3 or 6
months) uplifted on average by 158 basis points.
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The following dividends have been credited to theome statement (amounts expressed in
€/000):

2015 2014
Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. 14,000 8,000
Hammelmann GmbH 6,000 12,000
NLB Corporation Inc. - 3,610
General Pump Inc. 3,117 3,032
Interpump Engineering S.r.l. - 500
Total 23,11 27,142

All the dividends declared by subsidiaries had bm#lected by 31 December 2015.

6 Transactions with related parties

These operations are described in note 31 of tlamfial statements.

7 Exposure to risks and uncertainties and Financialisk factors

The company is exposed to the normal risks andrtainges of any business activity. The
markets in which the company operates are worldeninarkets of moderate size and with few
competitors. These market characteristics constigusignificant barrier to the entry of new
competitors, due to significant economy of scaleat$ against the backdrop of somewhat
uncertain economic returns for potential new ensraiihe company retains world leadership
positions that mitigate the risks and uncertaimiethe business activity.

These financial risk factors are described in 8ot the financial statements.

8 Environment

The Interpump Group is engaged exclusively in meiah engineering and components
assembly activities that are not accompanied bgthission of pollutants into the environment.
The production process is performed in complianite statutory legislation.

9 Further information

Following the absorption of Interpump Engineering.ISby Interpump Group S.p.A., the
Research and Design Center established in 1998, avitiew to centralizing the design and
development of new products, is once again an liatggart of the Company's activities. The
four new projects completed during 2015 relatedn&w versions of pumps for various
applications and to new valves; in addition, wooknenenced on 7 new projects. It is company
policy to continue to invest heavily in researcld @evelopment in future years in order to add
further impetus to organic growth. Product develeptcosts totaling €/000 774 were
capitalized in 2015, since they will benefit futurears, while an amount of €/000 1,464 was
charged to the income statement.
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On 10 November 2015 a resolution was adopted tg@enBertoli S.r.l. in Interpump Group
S.p.A., with the intention of exploiting all theqatuction and commercial synergies identified
between the two companies. This merger will becoperational during the first half of 2016.

At 31 December 2015 the Company held 1,125,91X%utrgashares, representing 1.03% of
capital, acquired at an average unit cost of €44136

With regard to stock option plans and the shareth@fcompany and of subsidiaries held by
directors, statutory auditors, and general managetsare invited to consult the 2015 Board of
Directors' Report, which is attached to the cowsiéid financial statements.

In 2013 the company renewed its adherence to ttienafitax consolidation which, in addition
to Interpump Group S.p.A., includes Teknova Santd Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A.

The company is not subject to management and cwirdn activities; Gruppo IPG Holding
S.r.l., with registered office in Milan, is the cpany that drafts the consolidated financial
statements that include data of Interpump GroupASgnd its subsidiaries. The consolidated
financial statements are available from the Milasibess register.

10 Events occurring after the end of the year andhie business outlook

Considering the short time since 31 December 2848 ,in the light of the short period of time
historically covered by the order portfolio, we dot yet have enough information to make a
reliable forecast of expected trends in the cursear. No other events occurred such as to
deserve mention in this report, and the compamsiiss proceeded smoothly.

11 Proposal to the Shareholders' Meeting
In relation to the profit for the year of € 28,5288, we propose:

- assigning a dividend of € 0.19 for each of thareh in circulation including the right as per
art. 2357-(3) subsection 2 of the Italian Civil @pd

- booking the remaining amount to the extraordirraserve, since the legal reserve now stands
at one fifth of the share capital.

Sant'llario d’Enza (RE), 18 March 2016

For the Board of Directors

Fulvio Montipo

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Balance sheet

Euro

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Dividends receivable
Inventories

Tax receivables

Derivative financial instruments
Current financial assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Other financial assets

Tax receivables

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

12¢

Notes 31/12/201 31/12/201
4 46,601,136 22,841,455
5,21 9,502,692 12,800,896
- 6,000,000
6 14,282,723 13,232,294
1,721,442 518,322
7 1,906 -
13.21 9,348,227 -
8, 21 391,750 780,123
81,849,876 56,173,090
9 22,259,980 20,046,74
10 32,505,900 32,505,900
11 5,679,684 4,871,975
12 337,669,904  193,%834,9
13,21 142,090,340 98,800,340
1,047,946 1,047,939
14 2,082,247 1,635,351
14,176 10,089
543,350,177 352,873,290
625,200,053 409,046,38




Euro

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Interest-bearing financial payables
(current portion)

Derivative financial instruments

Tax payables

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing financial payables
Liabilities for employee benefits
Deferred tax liabilities

Provisions for risks and charges
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital
Legal reserve
Share premium reserve

Reserve for restatement of defined benefit plans

Reserve for the measurement of hedging derivatives

at fair value
Other reserves
Total shareholders' equity
Total shareholders' equity and liabilities

Notes 31/12/201 31/12/201.
5,21 10,148,321 11,191,941
15,21 47,958,151 23,304,303
7 28,204 27,742
6,484,152 3,576,766
16, 21 5,433,662 4,816,498
70,052,490 42,917,250
15,21 255,126,135 114,117,678
18 4,402,768 4,498
14 679,315 817,045
17 12,248 22,968
260,220,466  119,1096D
330,272,956 162,026,419
19 56,031,759 53,871,063
20 11,323,447 11,323,447
19 138,117,148 100,399,959
13,467) (1,592,193)
20 (1,479,330) (18,254)
20 90,947,530 83,035,939
294,927,097 247,019,961
6252053  409,046,38




Income statement

Euro

Net sales
Cost of products sold
Gross industrial margin

Other net revenues
Distribution costs

General and administrative expenses
Impairment losses on assets

Other operating costs
Dividends

Ordinary profit before financial expenses

Financial income
Financial expenses

Profit for the period before taxes

Income taxes
Net profit for the year

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
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Notes 2015 2014
23 77,971,593 77,090,216
25 48,211,471 (48,738,883)
29,760,122 28,351,333

24 1,126,658 1,365,026
25 (4,734,530) (4,594,133)
2514,858,853) (12,963,974)
11,12 (340,000) (153,876)
25 (2,202) (45,882)
23,117,485 27,142,599
34,068,680 39,101,093

26 2,791,461 4,902,842
26 (4,015,951) (5,054,329)
32,844,190 38,949,606

27 (4,314,812) (4,994,616)
28,529,378 33,954,990

28 0.267 0.323

28 0.263 0.317




Comprehensive income statements
(€/000)
Net profit (A)

Other comprehensive profit (loss) that will be subsquently
reclassified in profit for the yeai

Accounting for interest rate hedging derivatives
using the cash flow hedge method:

- Profit (Loss) on derivatives in the year

- Minus: Adjustment for reclassification of profii®sses) to the

income statement

- Minus: Adjustment for recognition of fair value teserves in the

prior period
Total

Accounting for exchange risk hedging derivatives
using the cash flow hedge method:
- Profit (Loss) on derivatives in the year

- Minus: Adjustment for reclassification of profii@sses) to the

income statement

- Minus: Adjustment for recognition of fair value teserves in the

prior period
Total

Related taxes

Total other profit (loss) that will be subsequently
reclassified in profit for the year,
net of the tax effect (B)

Other profit (loss) that will not be subsequently
reclassified in profit for the year

Profit (Loss) deriving from the restatement of defi benefit
plans

Related taxes

Total other profit (loss) that will not be subsequatly
reclassified in profit for the year,
net of tax effect (C)

Comprehensive net profit (A) + (B) + (C)
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2015 2014
28,529 33,955
- 37

- 37
(19) (26)

26 -

7 (26)

(2) (2)

5 9
638 (700)
(175) 192
463 (508)
28,997 33,456




Cash flow statement
(€/000)

Cash flow from operating activities
Pre-tax profit

Profit before taxes of merged companies
prior to absorption

Adjustments for non-cash items:

Capital gains from the sale of fixed assets

Loss on adjustment of investment disposal price

Amortization and depreciation of tangible and igite fixed assets

Costs ascribed to the income statement relatigoitk options,
that do not involve monetary outflows for the Gpo

Impairment losses (write-back of impairment lossesassets

Net change in risk funds and allocations
to provisions for employee benefits

Dividends ascribed in the income statement
Net financial charges

(Increase) decrease in trade receivables and atinemt assets
(Increase) decrease in inventories

Increase (decrease) in trade payables and othemtiabilities
Taxes paid

Interest paid

Currency exchange gains realized

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for the purchase of equity investments

Payment on capital account to Interpump Hydrawit¢ransfer
of treasury stock to support acquisition of thestanding interest
in indirect subsidiaries

Outlays for purchase of treasury stock

Proceeds from sales of treasury stock for stocloogt

Disposal of treasury stock in relation to the asifigin of investments
Capital expenditure in property, plant and equipimen

Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets

Increase in intangible fixed assets

Received financial income

Other

Net liquidity generated (used) by investing activies
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2015 2014

32,844 38,950

(90) -

(4) (1)
- 46
4133 3,936

991 992
340 14
(272) (111)
(23,117)(27,143)
1,224 151

16,049 16,834

1,685 (2,486)
697 (4,470)
5,734 2,057
(6,845) (3,656)
(3,233) (2,820)

278 521
14,365 5,980
4,813) -

(11,365)  (1,581)
(32,709)  (38,299)
8,166 4,626
60,891 7,026
(4,542) (2,261)

13 1
(1,151) (1,342)
2,268 2,050
26 133

(112,717)  (29,647)




(€/000)

Cash flows of financing activity

Dividends received from subsidiaries

Dividends paid

(Disbursal) Repayment of intra-group loans
Disbursals (repayments) of loans

Net liquidity generated (used by) financing activites

Net increase (decrease) of cash
and cash equivalents

Opening cash and cash equivalents of merged coagpani
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofdéhe y
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For reconciliation of cash on hand refer to note 29
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2015 2014

29,141 21,448
(19,321)  (18,108)

(53,520) (28,096)
164,911 31,120

121,211 6,364

22,859  (17,303)

578 -
22,433 39,736

45,870 22,433




VET

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity

Balances at 1 January 2014
Distribution of the dividend

Recognition in the income statement of the faiueadf stock options
granted to and exercisable employees of Interp@nopip S.p.A.

Fair value measurement of the stock options gratatethid exercisable by employees
of subsidiaries

Purchase of treasury stock

Sale of treasury stock to the beneficiaries oflstaations
Sale of treasury stock for the acquisition of egjinivestments
Comprehensive net profit for the year

Balances at 31 December 2014

Distribution of the dividend

Recognition in the income statement of the faiueadf stock options
granted to and exercisable employees of Interp@nopip S.p.A.

Fair value measurement of the stock options gratatethid exercisable by employees
of subsidiaries

Effect of absorbing General Technology and InterpuEngineering
Purchase of treasury stock

Sale of treasury stock to the beneficiaries oflstaations

Sale of treasury stock for the acquisition of egjinivestments
Comprehensive net profit for the year

Balances at 31 December 2015

Reserve for
restatement of hedging

Reserve for

valuation

Share of defined derivatives Total

Share Legal premium benefit plans at fair Other shareholde
capital reserve reserve value reserves rs' equity
55,003 11,323 124,202 (1,084) (27) 67,532 256,949
- - - - - (18,108) (18,108)

- - 992 - - - 992

- - 378 - - - 378
(1,986) - (35,970) - - (343)  (38,299)
482 - 4,144 - - - 4,626
372 - 6,654 - - - 7,026

- - - (508) 9 33,955 33,456
53,871 11,323 100,400 (1,592) (18) 83,036 247,020
- - - - - (19,321) (19,321)

- - 991 - - - 991

- - 379 - - - 379

- - - (350) - 863 513
(1322) - (32,710) - - 1,323  (32,709)
921 - 8,166 - - (921) 8,166
2,562 - 60,891 - - (2,562) 60,891
- - - 463 5 28,529 28,997
56,032 11,323 138,117 (1,479) (13) 90,947 294,927




Notes to the financial statements of Interpump Grop S.p.A.

1. General information

Interpump Group S.p.A. is a company incorporatedeuritalian law with registered offices in
Sant'llario d'Enza (RE), listed on the Milan Stéotichange.

The company manufactures and markets high andhigty pressure plunger pumps, and has
controlling interests in 54 companies. Interpump@r S.p.A. has production facilities in
Sant'llario d'Enza (RE). For more specific inforimaton the group's operations, refer to the
Board of Directors' Report provided with the congatied financial statements.

The financial statements at 31 December 2015, atfafin the basis of the going concern
assumption, were approved by the Board of Diredgtotke meeting held on this day (18 March
2016).

2. Accounting standards adopted
2.1 Reference accounting standards

The consolidated financial statements at 31 Dece@®&5 have been prepared in compliance
with the International Financial Reporting StandailiFRS’) issued by the International
Accounting Standards BoardIASB”) and endorsed by the European UnibHRS’ also
means the International Accounting StandarA”) currently in force and all the
interpretative documents issued by the IFRS In&tgtions Committee, previously
denominated International Financial Reporting Iptetations Committee” (FRIC”) and still
earlier known as the Standing Interpretations Cdies(‘SIC").

The figures of Balance sheet and Income statenmerghewn in euro, while the other schedules
and notes are shown in thousands of euro. Thediabstatements are drafted according to the
cost method, with the exception of financial instants, which are carried at fair value.

Preparation of a report in compliance with IFRS€inational Financial Reporting Standards)
calls for judgments, estimates, and assumptionseffect assets, liabilities, costs and revenues.
The final results may differ from the results ob&d using estimates of this type. The captions
of the financial statements that call for more euatiye appraisal by the directors when
preparing estimates and for which a change in thediions underlying the assumptions
utilized could have a significant effect on theafiiwial statements are: goodwill, amortization
and depreciation of fixed assets, deferred taxtagsel liabilities, the allowance for doubtful
accounts and the allowance for inventories, prowmsifor risks and charges, defined benefit
plans for employees.

The company's income statement is prepared byifunadtareas (or cost of sales), this form
being considered more representative than pregamtay type of sales, this information being

specified in the notes to the financial statement®e chosen form, in fact, complies with the

internal reporting and business management metlkadsa more comprehensive analysis of the
Group's economic results, we invite you to refethi® Board of Director's Report submitted

together with the 2015 Consolidated Financial $tetss.

The cash flow statement was prepared with theéstlimethod.

13¢



2.1.1 Accounting standards, amendments and interptations in force as from 1 January

2015

As from 2015 the Group has applied the followingvreeccounting standards, amendments

and

interpretations revised by the IASB:

On 12 December 2012, the IASB issued a collectibraroendments to IAS/IFRS
standards“(Annual Improvements to the 262013 Cycl&). The amendments resulted
in changes: (i) to IFRS 3, specifying that the dtad is not applicable to measure the
accounting effects related to the formation of gatjowenture or joint operation (as
defined by IFRS 11) in the financial statementshef joint venture or joint operation;
(if) to IFRS 13, explaining that the provision &1RS 13 on the basis of which the fair
value of a group of financial assets and liab#itan be measured on a net basis, is
applicable to all contracts (including non-finani@antracts) falling within the scope of
IAS 39 or IFRS 9; (iii) to IAS 40, explaining th&d establish when the acquisition of a
property constitutes a business combination, ret@renust be made to the provisions
of IFRS 3.

2.1.2 Accounting standards, amendments and interptations taking effect as from 1

January 2015 but not relevant for the company

IFRIC 21 Levies- On 20 May 2013 IASB published the interpretationquestion.
IFRIC 21 states that an entity shall recognizeability for levies no earlier than the
time of occurrence of the event to which the paynnetinked, in compliance with the
applicable law. For payments that become due onhenwva specified minimum
threshold is exceeded, the liability is booked omlyen said minimum threshold is
reached. Retrospective application is requiredABIC 21.

2.1.3 Accounting standards and amendments not yepplicable and not adopted early

by the company

IFRS 9— Financial instrumentsOn 12 November 2009 IASB published the following
standard, which was subsequently amended on 2&&c2®10 in a further amendment
in mid-December 2011. The new standard, which @iegble from 1 January 2018,
constitutes the first part of a process in stageed at replacing IAS 39 and introduces
new criteria for the classification and measurenw@ntinancial assets and liabilities,
and for the derecognition of financial assets ftbmfinancial statements. Specifically,
the new standard uses a single approach to finaass®ts based on the methods of
management of financial instruments and on theadtearistics of the contractual cash
flows of financial assets in order to establish theasurement criterion, replacing the
various rules contained in IAS 39. In contrast, fioancial liabilities the main change
concerns the accounting treatment for changeserfain value of a financial liability
designated as a financial liability measured atValue in profit and loss, in the event
wherein such changes are due to changes in thdt cegthg of the liabilities in
question. In accordance with the new standard, shalmges must be recorded in the
comprehensive income statement and cannot therdsdtelerecognised in profit and
loss.

On 30 January 2014, the IASB published IFRR&gulatory Deferral Accountahich

is an interim standard related to tRate-regulated activitieproject. IFRS 14 allows
exclusively first-time adopters of IFRS to contimeeognizing amounts associated with
rate regulation in compliance with the accountigigies previously adopted. In order
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to improve comparability with entities that areealdy applying the IFRS standards and
that do not therefore disclose these amounts, tHrelard requires the rate regulation
effect to be presented separately from other cagtio

On 12 December 2012, the IASB issued a collectibrarnendments to IAS/IFRS
standardsAnnual Improvements to IFRSs 262012 CycleThe amendments resulted
in changes: (i) to IFRS 2, clarifying the definitioof “vesting conditioh and
introducing the definitions of the service and parfance conditions; (ii) to IFRS 3,
clarifying that the obligations to pay a contingesgnsideration other than those
included in the definition of equity instrumentean be measured at fair value at each
reporting date, with the changes recognized initlkeme statement; (iii) to IFRS 8,
requiring an entity to disclose the judgments mhgemanagement in applying the
aggregation criteria to the operating segments;ritisg the segments that have been
aggregated and the economic indicators that wesesasd to determine that the
aggregated segments have similar economic chastig®r (iv) to IAS 16 and IAS 38,
clarifying the method of determining the carryinmaunt of assets, in the case of
revaluation further to the application of the resmdion model; (v) to IAS 24,
establishing the information to be supplied wheare¢his a third-party entity that
supplies services related to the administratiorkef management personnel of the
reporting entity. These amendments will be effectior reporting periods starting after
1 February 2015. Early adoption is however peruhitte

Amendments to IAS 9Employee benefit©On 21 November 2013 IASB published an
amendment to IAS 19 limited to contributions toidefl benefit plans for employees.
The changes are aimed at simplifying the accourdfrpntributions that are unrelated
to years of seniority, such as contributions ca@d on the basis of a fixed percentage
of salary. This amendment will be effective for agg periods starting after 1
February 2015. Early adoption is however permitted.

IFRS 15— Recognition of revenue from contracts with cust@m@n 28 May 2014
IASB and FASB jointly issued IFRS 15 designed tpriave the disclosure of revenues
and the global comparability of financial statensert order to harmonize the
recognition of economically similar transactiondieTstandard is effective for IFRS
users from reporting periods starting after 1 Jan@@17 (early adoption is permitted).

Amendment to IFRS 150n 11 September 2015, the IASB released an amendmen
whereby the application of the standard is defemgdne year, i.e. to 1 January 2018.
Early adoption is however permitted.

Amendment of IFRS 27Separate financial statement®n 12 August 2014, the IASB
published an amendment to the standard that wolvagntities to use the equity method
to recognize investments in subsidiaries, jointtwms and associates in separate
financial statements. The amendment is effectiomnft January 2016.

Annual improvements to IFRS 262214 cycle- On 15 December 2015, the European
Union issued regulation 2015/2343 adopting the ahmaprovements to IFRS 2012-
2014 cycle, which was issued by the IASB on 25 &mper 2014 and relates to a
number of amendments to the IAS/IFRS. The aim efdhnual improvements is to
address necessary matters related to inconsissefiociad in IFRSs or for clarifications
of terminology, which are not of an urgent natuue Wwhich reflect issues discussed by
the IASB during the project cycle. Among the amehsandards, IFRS 5, in relation to
which a clarification has been introduced concerniases in which the method of
disposal of an asset is changed from held fortsaheld for distribution; IFRS 7, with a
clarification to establish if and when a residualalvement in a transferred financial
asset exists in the presence of an associatedcsecointract, thus determining the
required level of disclosure; IAS 19, which clagithat the currency of securities used
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as a benchmark to estimate the discount rate, beuste same as the currency in which
the benefits will be paid; and IAS 34 in which tmeaning of "elsewhere" is clarified
for the inclusion of information by cross-reference

< Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS-2Bvestment entities: applying the
consolidation exceptiordn 18 December 2014, the IASB published the amentkyin
question concerning the problems deriving from igatibn of the consolidation
exception granted to investment entities. The argtlication date introduced by IASB
is for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Japu2016. Early application is
permitted.

* Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: sale or contdbuif assets between an investor
and its associate or joint ventureOn 11 September 2014, the IASB published the
amendments in question, which are designed to rentbe conflict between the
requirements of IAS 28 and those of IFRS 10 andifgléhat in a transaction that
involves an associate or a joint venture the extemthich it is possible to recognize a
profit or a loss depends on whether the assetduigjesale or contribution is a business.
In December 2015 the IASB issued an amendmentdigfars the entry into force of
these amendments for an indefinite period.

* Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41: agriculture - &eplants—On 23 November 2015
the European Union issued regulation 2015/2113 tawpghese amendments. The
amendments, which do not concern the Interpump Gl be applicable to financial
periods starting on or after 1 January 2016.

«  Amendments to IFRS 11: accounting for acquisitioheterests in joint operations
On 24 November 2015 the European Union issued atgnl2015/2173 adopting these
amendments, which provide guidance on the accayifdinacquisitions of interests in
joint operations that comprise a business activitye amendments apply to financial
periods starting on or after 1 January 2016.

« Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: property, pladteaquipment and intangible assets
— On 2 December 2015 the European Union issued regul2a015/2231 specifying
that a method of depreciation based on the revemgeserated by the asset is
inappropriate because it reflects solely the reediaw generated by the asset and does
not reflect the methods of consumption of the pectipe future economic benefits
embodied in the asset. The amendments apply, #tdet, to financial periods starting
on or after 1 January 2016. It is deemed that amopif the standard will have no
significant effects on the Group's financial stateis.

* Amendments to IAS 1: presentation of financialestants - disclosure initiative On
18 December 2015 the European Union issued reguol@015/2406 adopting these
amendments that seek to improve the effectivendésdiszlosures and encourage
companies to use professional judgment when detérgnithe information to be
reported in the financial statements pursuant t8 1A The amendments apply, at the
latest, to financial periods starting on or aftelahuary 2016.

At today's date the competent bodies of the Eurmpémion have completed the approval

process related to the new standards and amendrapplgable to financial statements

starting as from 1 January 2016, while the apprpuwatess required for adoption of the other
standards and amendments is still under way. Obdhis of analysis currently in progress no
significant impacts are predicted from the 2016ptidm of the applicable new standards and
amendments.
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2.2 Sector information

The business sectors in which the Group operategletermined on the basis of the reporting
utilized by Group top management to make decisiansl they have been identified as the
Water Sector, which basically includes high andysyegh pressure pumps and very high
pressure systems, and the Oil Sector, which inslym®ver take-offs, gear pumps, hydraulic
cylinders, directional controls, valves, hoses dittithgs, and other hydraulic components.
Interpump Group S.p.A. operates entirely in the &Vaetting Sector so it was not considered
necessary to present the associated sector informat

With the aim of providing more comprehensive disake, information is provided for the
geographical areas in which the company operatesely Italy, the Rest of Europe (including
non-EU European countries) and the Rest of the &Vorl

2.3 Treatment of foreign currency transactions

(i) Foreign currency transactions

The functional and presentation currency adoptednibgrpump Group S.p.A. is the euro.
Foreign exchange transactions are translated urtman the basis of the exchange rates in force
on the date that the related transactions wereedaaut. Monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at the exchange rate in force on thanbeal sheet reference date. Foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation are re@ephin the income statement. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities measured at historical aosttranslated at the exchange rates in force on
the date of the related transactions. Monetarytassed liabilities stated at fair value are
translated to euro at the exchange rate in forctherate in respect of which the relative fair
value was determined.

2.4. Non-current assets held for sale and discontied operations

Non-current assets held for sale and any asset$iadmidies pertaining to lines of business or
consolidated investments held for sale, are medsirthe lower of their book value at the time
of classification of said captions as "held foileSahnd their fair value, net of the costs of sale.

Any impairments recorded in application of saichpiple are recorded in the income statement,
both in the event of write-downs for adaptatiorttte fair value and also in the case of profits
and losses deriving from future changes of theviaiue.

Investments that fit the definition of discontinuegerations are classified as discontinued
operations at the time of their disposal or whaayftfit the description of assets held for sale, if
said requirements existed previously.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

(i) Own assets

Property, plant and equipment are valued at theriiscost and disclosed net of accumulated
depreciation (see next point) and impairment losses (see section 2.8). The @ogpods
produced internally includes the cost of raw maitsridirectly related labor costs, and a portion
of indirect production costs. The cost of assetBetihver purchased externally or produced
internally, includes the ancillary costs that airedtly attributable and necessary for use of the



asset and, when they are significant and in thegmee of contractual obligations, the current
value of the cost estimated for the dismantling mmdoval of the related assets.

Financial charges relative to loans utilized far urchase of tangible fixed assets are recorded
in the income statement on an accruals basisyfdhe not specifically allocated to the purchase
or construction of the asset, otherwise they apitale&ed.

Assets held for sale are valued at the lower offéivevalue net of ancillary charges to the sale
and their book value at the time of classificatddrsaid captions as held for sale.

(i) Subsequent costs

The replacement costs of certain parts of assetsapitalized when it is expected that said
costs will result in future economic benefits ahdyt can be measured in a reliable manner. All
other costs, including maintenance and repair castsascribed to the income statement when
they arise.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statementa atraight-line basis in relation to the
estimated residual useful life of the associatesbtad and is not depreciated. The estimated
useful life of assets is as follows:

- Buildings 25 years

- Plant and machinery 12.5 years

- Industrial and commercial equipment 4 gear

- Other assets 4-8 years

The estimated useful life of the assets is revieaedn annual basis, and any changes in the
rates of depreciation are applied where necessaifyture depreciation charges.

For assets purchased and/or that became operatiothe year, depreciation is calculated
utilizing annual rates reduced by 50%. Historicaltitis method of calculation has been
representative of the effective use of the assafsiestion.

2.6 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the portions of the mergerditefiaid under this name and originating in
the merger operations of previous years and abact this item on the basis of an independent
survey.

Goodwill is recorded at cost, net of impairmentsks Goodwill is allocated to a single cash
generating unit and is no longer amortized as ftobanuary 2004. The book value is measured
in order to assess the absence of impairment é&tiers 2.8).

2.7 Other intangible assets

(i) Research and development costs
Research costs for the acquisition of new techrkeaw-how are ascribed to the income
statement when they arise.

Development costs relating to the creation of newdpcts/accessories or new production

processes are capitalized if the company can prove:

- the technical feasibility and intention of comptetithe intangible asset in such a way that it
is available for use or for sale;

- their ability to use or sell the asset;
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- the forecast volumes and realization values inditiat the costs incurred for development
activities will generate future economic benefits;

- said costs are measurable in a reliable manner;

- and the resources exist to complete the developpmejgct.

The development of new products, carried out bgrpump Engineering S.r.l. through 2014, is
now performed by the Company following the absaorptbf this subsidiary at the end of
October 2015. The capitalized costs relate to dgweént projects that meet the requirements
for deferral. Capitalized development costs aree@lat cost, net of accumulated amortization,
(see next point) and impairment (see section 2.8).

(i) Loan ancillary costs
Loan ancillary costs are deducted from the nomamabunt of the loan and handled as outlined
in section 2.14.

(i) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets, all having a defined udd&y are valued at cost and recorded net of
accumulated amortization (see next pejrind impairment (see section 2.8).

Software licenses are amortized over their perfagibzation (5 years).

The costs incurred internally for the creation rafdemarks or goodwill are recognized in the
income statement when they are incurred.

(iv) Subsequent costs

Costs incurred subsequently relative to intangibted assets are capitalized only if they
increase the future economic benefits of the speca#pitalized asset, otherwise they are entered
in the income statement when they are sustained.

(v) Amortization/depreciation

Amortization amounts are recorded in the incomdestant on a straight-line basis in
accordance with the estimated useful life of thpitaelized assets to which they refer. The
estimated useful life of assets is as follows:

Patents and trade marks 3 years
Development costs 5 years
Granting of software licenses 5 years

The useful life is reviewed on an annual basis amg changes in the rates are made, where
necessary, for future amounts.

2.8 Impairment of assets

The book values of assets, with the exception aéniories (see section 2.12), financial assets
regulated by IAS 39, deferred tax assets (seeose2til6), and non-current assets held for sale
regulated by IFRS 5, are subject to measuremethedbalance sheet reference date in order to
identify the existence of possible indicators opaitment. If the valuation process identifies the

presence of such indicators, the presumed recdeevalue of the asset is calculated using the
methods indicated in the following poin}.(

The presumed recovery value of goodwill and intblegassets that have not yet been used is
estimated at intervals of no longer than once & geanore frequently if specific events occur
that point to the possible existence of impairm#rhe estimated recoverable value of the asset
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or its cash generating ung lower than its net book value, the asset to khicrefers is
consequently adjusted for impairment loss withyeimtto the income statement.

Goodwill is systematically measured (impairment)eddeast once a year or more as prescribed
by IAS 36.

(i) Calculation of presumed impairment loss

The presumed recovery value of securities held aurity and financial receivables recorded
with the criterion of the amortized cost is equérdlto the discounted value of estimated future
cash flows; the discounted rate is equivalent ¢oititerest rate envisaged at the time of issue of
the security or the emergence of the receivablertdarm receivables are not discounted to
current value.

The presumed recovery value of other assets isl éguhe higher of their net sale price and
their value in use. The value in use is equivalerthe projected future cash flows, discounted
to a rate, including taxes, that takes accounh@fmarket value of interest rates and the specific
risks of the asset to which the presumed realizatadue refers. For assets that do not give rise
to independent cash flows the presumed realizatidme is determined with reference to the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

(i) Reinstatement of impairment losses

An impairment relative to securities held to matuand financial assets recorded with the
criterion of the amortized cost, is reinstated wiiea subsequent increase in the presumed
recovery value can be objectively related to ameteat occurred in a period following the
period in which the impairment loss was recorded.

An impairment relative to other assets is reinst#ta change has occurred in the estimate used
to determine the presumed recovery value.

Impairment is reinstated to the extent of the agpomding book value that would have been
determined, net of depreciation/amortization, ifimpairment loss had ever been recognized.

Impairment relative to goodwill can never be reatsdl.

2.9 Investments

Investments in subsidiaries and associates areumsebat cost.

Should any impairment of value arise at the balastmet reference date in comparison to the
value determined according to the above methodjrhestment in question will be written
down.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, drhpost office deposits, and securities
having original maturity date of less than threenths. Current account overdrafts and
advances with recourse are deducted from cash famlythe purposes of the cash-flow
statement.
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2.11 Current financial assets, Receivables and Otheurrent assets

Current financial assets, trade receivables aneroturrent assets (excluding derivative
financial instruments) are recorded, at the tim¢hefr initial entry, on the basis of the purchase
cost inclusive of ancillary costs (fair value foetinitial entry).

Subsequently, financial assets available for sadeaasessed at their fair value. Gains or losses
deriving from the valuation are recognized in eguip to the moment in which the financial
asset is sold, at which time the gains or lossesr@zorded in the income statement. If the
market value of the financial assets cannot bebblidetermined, they are entered at their
purchase cost.

Accounts receivable, with due date within normainotercial terms or that accrue interest at
market rates, are not discounted to current vahaeage entered at amortized cost net of a bad
debt provision booked as a direct deduction from tlceivables in question to bring the
valuation to the presumed realizable value (settoge2.8). Accounts receivable with due dates
beyond normal commercial terms are initially endeaé their fair value and subsequently at the
amortized cost using the method of the effectivieergst rate, net of the relative value
impairments.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of purchase and the presumed realization value. The
cost is determined with the criterion of the averagighted cost and it includes all the costs
incurred to purchase the materials and transfoemtht the conditions in force on the date of
the balance sheet. The cost of semi-finished gaodsfinished products includes a portion of

indirect costs determined on the basis of normadipction capacity. Write down provisions are

calculated for materials, semi-finished goods anglied products considered to be obsolete or
slow moving, taking account of their expected fatusefulness and their realization value. The
net realization value is estimated taking accotimth@ market price during the course of normal

business activities, from which the costs of comipfe and costs of sale are subsequently
deducted.

2.13Share capital and Treasury stock

In the case of purchase of treasury stock, theegraid, inclusive of any directly attributable
ancillary costs, is deducted from share capitaltfier portion concerning the nominal value of
shares and from shareholders' equity for the ssirptution. When treasury shares are sold or
reissued, the price collected, net of any direattyibutable ancillary charges and the associated
tax effect, is recorded as share capital for theigoo concerning the nominal value of shares
and as shareholders' equity for the surplus.

2.14 Interest-bearing financial payables

Interest-bearing financial payables are initialgcarded at their fair value, net of ancillary
charges. After the original entry, interest-bearifigancial payables are valued with the
amortized cost criterion; the difference between ibsulting value and the discharge value is
entered in the income statement during the terrthefloan on the basis of the amortization
plan.
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2.15 Liabilities for employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

The company patrticipates in defined pension plaitis public administration or private plans
on a compulsory, contractual or voluntary basise Tfayment of contributions fulfills the
company's obligations towards its employees. Tméritutions therefore constitute costs of the
period in which they are due.

(ii) Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans for employees - disbursedhattime of termination of the period of
employment with the company or thereafter - thatude severance indemnity, are calculated
separately for each plan, estimating the amounheffuture benefit that the employees have
accrued during the year and in previous years bgns@f actuarial techniques. The resulting
benefit is discounted to present value and recordddf the fair value of any relative assets.
The discount rate at the balance sheet referernteeisiaalculated as required by IAS 19 with
reference to the market yield of high quality cagie bonds. Exclusively the securities released
by corporate issuers included in rating class "/ considered, in the assumption that this
class identifies a high rating level in the framekvof a group of "Investment Grade" securities
and thereby excluding higher risk securities. GCaeisng that IAS 19 makes no explicit
reference to a specific product sector, we optedifoomposite market curve that summarizes
the market conditions existing at the date of vidmaof the securities issued by companies
operating in various sectors including utilitieglecommunications, finance, banking and
industrial. At 31 December 2015, the above rateetor “AA” securities has shifted upwards
with respect to the same curve at 31 December 20ith was used for the previous actuarial
valuation. This was due to an increase in marké&tiity caused by the Greek crisis and the
instability of the Chinese market. The calculatisnperformed on an annual basis by an
independent actuary using the projected unit cradihod.

In the event increases in the benefits of the plam,portion of the increase pertaining to the
previous period of employment is entered in th@ine statement on a straight line basis in the
period in which the relative rights will be acquirdf the rights are acquired immediately, the
increase is immediately recorded in the incomesstant.

Actuarial profits and losses are recognized indicdged equity reserve on an accrual basis.

Until 31 December 2006 the severance indemnity iprav (TFR) of Italian companies was
considered to be a defined benefits plan. The rgte®rning the provision were amended by
Law no. 296 of 27 December 20062007 Finance A&) and by subsequent Decrees and
Regulations enacted in the initial months of 2068%he light of these changes, and in particular
with reference to companies with at least 50 eng#gy as is the case of Interpump Group
S.p.A., the TFR severance indemnity provision sthawdw be classified as a defined benefits
plan exclusively for the portions accrued priorltdanuary 2007 (and not yet paid out at the
date of the financial statements), while after tthatte TFR should be considered as a defined
contributions plan.

(i) Stock options

On the basis of the stock option plan currentlgxistence, certain employees and directors are
entitled to purchase the treasury shares of InteppGroup S.p.A. The options are measured at
their fair value, which is entered in the incomataient and increased by the cost of personnel
and directors with a matching entry in the shamrum reserve. The fair value is measured at
the grant date of the option and recorded in therre statement in the period that runs between
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said date and the date on which the options beemeisable (vesting period). The fair value
of the option is determined using the applicabléoms measurement method (specifically, the
binomial lattice model), taking account the ternm&l aonditions at which the options were
granted.

The remuneration component deriving from stock aptplans with Interpump Group S.p.A.
shares as the underlying, in accordance with thitensaenvisaged by interpretation IFRIC 11,
IS recognized as a capital grant disbursed to disves wherein the beneficiaries of the stock
option plans are employees and consequently red@sl@n increase of the relative value of the
shareholdings, with a matching entry recorded tiréic equity.

2.16 Income tax

Income taxes disclosed in the income statemenudiecicurrent and deferred taxes. Income
taxes are generally disclosed in the income statem&cept when they refer to types of items
that are recorded directly under shareholders'tgqlii this case, the income taxes are also
recognized directly in equity.

Current taxes are taxes that are expected to hecdlomilated by applying to the taxable income
the tax rate in force at the balance sheet referelate and the adjustments to taxes of prior
years.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liabiligthod on the temporary differences between
the amount of assets and liabilities in the finahstatements and the corresponding values
recognized for tax purposes. Deferred taxes areuledéd in accordance with the envisaged
method of transfer of timing differences, using tie rate in force at the reference date of years
in which the timing differences arose.

Deferred tax assets are recognized exclusivelgeretent that it is probable that in future years
sufficient taxable incomes will be generated f@ thalization of said deferred taxes.

2.17 Provisions for risks and charges

In cases wherein the company has a legal or suladtahligation resulting from a past event,
and when it is probable that the loss of economitelfits must be sustained in order to fulfill
such an obligation, a specific provision for risksl charges is created. If the temporal factor of
the envisaged loss of benefits is significant,ahmunt of the future cash outflows is discounted
to present values at a rate, gross of taxes, dkastaccount of the market interest rates and the
specific risk of the liability referred to.

2.18 Current financial liabilities, Trade payablesand Other debts

Trade payables and other debts, the relative dtee afawhich is within normal commercial
terms, are not discounted to present value andraezed at the amortized cost representative of
their discharge value.

Current financial liabilities include the shortrieportions of financial debts, inclusive of debts
for cash advances and other financial liabiliti€gancial liabilities are measured at their
amortized cost according to the effective interesthod. Financial assets hedged by derivative
financial instruments taken out to hedge the isterate risk are valued at their current value in
accordance with the methods specified for hedgewating.
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2.19 Revenues

(i) Revenues from the sale of goods and services

Revenues from the sale of goods are entered imtene statement when the risks and benefits
connected to the ownership of the goods are sufstanransferred to the purchaser. Revenues
for services rendered are recorded in the incomrsent on the basis of the percentage of
completion at the balance sheet reference date.

(i) Dividends

Dividends are recognized in the income statementhendate they became payable, and are
classified under ordinary earnings before inter@stl tax because they are considered to
represent the ordinary holding activities perforrbgdhe company.

2.20 Costs

() Rental and leasing installments
Rental and operating leasing installments are dsxbin the income statement on an accrual
basis.

(i) Financial income and charges

Financial income and charges are recorded on awaldgasis in accordance with the interest
matured on the net value of the relative finaneisbets and liabilities, using the effective
interest rate. Financial income and charges incfadegn exchange gains and losses and gains
and losses on derivative instruments booked tanit@me statement (see section 3.2).

3. Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The business of the company is exposed to varioasdial risks: market risk (including the
exchange rate risk and interest rate risk), cradk and liquidity risk. The financial risks
management programme is based on the unpredityaifilfinancial markets and it is aimed at
minimizing any negative impact on the company'saticial performance. Interpump Group
S.p.A. uses derivative financial instruments todeedgainst exchange and interest rate risks.
The company does not hold derivative financial rinsients of a speculative nature, in
compliance with the rulings established by the pduce approved by the Board of Directors.

(a) Market risks
() Exchange rate risk
The company does business internationally and @sed to the exchange risk
related to business conducted in US dollars. Is tontext, the company invoices
its US subsidiaries and a major US customer inadallGroup policy is to hedge
these exposures, when deemed appropriate in gartictavorable circumstances.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk derives from medium/long-termane granted at floating rates.
Current company policy is to monitor the gradieftttte interest-rate curves, in
order to assess possible hedging opportunities.

(b) Credit risk
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The company does not have any significant concéorisaof receivables. It is company
policy to make sales to customers following a adraésessment of their credit rating and
therefore within preset credit limits. Historicalthe company has not had to support any
significant losses on receivables.

(c) Liquidity risk
Prudent management of liquidity risk involves tledention of an appropriate level of
cash on hand and sufficient access to lines ofitci@elcause of the dynamic nature of the
company's business, which results also in freqtengeted acquisitions, it is company
policy to ensure access to revolving stand-by liokesredit that can be utilized at short
notice.

(d) Price and cash flow risk
The company is subject to constant changes in rpatas, especially brass, aluminium,
copper and steel. It is company policy to hedge tisk where possible by way of
medium-term commitments with suppliers or stockgjlpolicies when prices are at the
low point of their cycle.
The company invests a significant part of its alae liquidity in restricted bank deposits
and deposit accounts, in order to optimize findmo@nagement. Despite the high level of
cash investment carried out by the company, themass and cash flows of the
company's operating activities are only marginafiffuenced by changes in interest
generating assets.

Further quantitative information on the financiaks to which the company is exposed is given
on Note 22 "Information on financial risks".

3.2 Accounting methods for derivative financial inf'uments and hedged transactions

As already pointed out, the company avoids subsgyitspeculative derivative financial

instruments; however, when derivative financiaktrmsents fail to meet the requirements for

hedge accounting set down in IAS 39, changes iridinezalue of such instruments are booked

to the income statement as financial charges antzome.

Derivative financial instruments are brought to@ett using hedge accounting methods when:

- formal designation and documentation of the heddgation is present at the start of the
hedge;

- the hedge is expected to be highly effective;

- effectiveness can be reliably measured and theehisdgighly effective during the periods
of designation.

The methods used to recognize derivative finanosttuments depend on whether or not the
conditions and requirements of IAS 39 have bediiléal. Specifically:

(i) Cash flow hedges

In the case of a derivative financial instrumentyidgnich formal documentation is provided of

the hedging relation of the variations in cash Boaviginating from an asset or liability of a

future transaction (underlying hedged variablehsidered to be highly probable and that could
impact on the income statement, the effective hgagton deriving from the adaptation of the

derivative financial instrument to fair value iscognized directly in equity. When the

underlying hedged item is delivered or settled, télative provision is derecognized from

equity and attributed at the recording value ofuhderlying element. The ineffective portion, if

present, of the change in value of the hedgingunstnt is immediately ascribed to the income
statement under financial expenses and/or incomeerWa hedging financial instrument

expires, is sold, terminated, or exercised, ordbmpany changes the relationship with the
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underlying variable, and the forecast transactias hot yet occurred although it is still
considered likely, the relative gains or lossesivitey from adjustment of the financial
instrument to fair value are still retained in dguand are recognized in the income statement
when the transaction takes place in accordance thghsituation described above. If the
forecast transaction related to the underlying iisko longer expected to occur, the relative
gains or losses of the derivative contract, orifyndeferred in equity, must be taken to the
income statement immediately.

(i) Hedges of monetary assets and liabilities (Railue hedges)

When a derivative financial instrument is usedédde changes in value of a monetary asset or
liability already recorded in the financial staterteethat can impact on the income statement,
the gains and losses relative to the changes ifaihevalue of the derivative instrument are
taken to the income statement immediately. Likewibe gains and losses relative to the
hedged item modify the book value of said item aredrecognized in the income statement.

4. Cash and cash equivalents

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)

Cash flow 9 7
Bank deposits 46,592 22,834
Total 46,601 22,841

Bank accounts include €/000 3,296 held in US del{&/000 3,588). Currency liquidity totaling
€/000 589 ($/000 641) has been hedged againsisthefrexchange rate fluctuations.

The reduction in deposit interest rates, that bég&®14, continued during 2015. Accordingly,
the Company has preferred to keep its liquidity edmtely available, rather than invest it at
modest yields that would have limited access to it.

5. Trade receivables

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)

Trade receivables, gross 9,969 13,176
Bad debt provision (466) (375)
Trade receivables, net 9,503 12,801

Changes in the bad debt provision were as follows:

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Opening balances 375 316
Provisions in the year 58 64
Merger effect 155 -
Utilizations in the year due to losses (122) (5
Closing balance 466 375

Provisions in the year are booked under other ¢ipgraosts.
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Receivables denominated in US dollars total €/0@80D7 ($/000 1,749). No receivables at 31
December 2015 are hedged against the risk of egehiate fluctuations.

No trade receivables or payables are due afteyeae

6. Inventories

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)

Raw materials and components 5,667 5,198
Semi-finished products 6,204 5,630
Finished products 2,412 2,404
Total inventories 14,283 13,232

Inventories are stated net of an allowance fornbtwges totalling €/000 1,804 (€/000 1,146 at
31/12/2014) allocated to cover materials considacethe obsolete and slow moving stock.
Changes in the inventories allowance were as faliow

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Opening balances 1,146 946
Provisions in the year 295 200
Merger effect 363 -
Utilizations in the year due to losses - -
Closing balance 1,804 1,146
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7. Derivative financial instruments

Interest rate hedging

The company adopts a procedure, approved by thedBwfaDirectors, which identifies the
derivative financial instruments to be used to leedgainst the risk of interest rate fluctuations.
These instruments are as follows: Interest RatepSWIRS), Forward Rate Agreements (FRA)
and options on interest rates (Caps & Floors).

Company policy is currently to assess the oppdiambffered by the market in relation to the
possibility to take out Interest Rate Swaps at enuoally advantageous conditions.

At 31/12/2015 there are no interest rate hedgimiyakives.

Exchange rate risk hedging
The company is subject to exposure to the US dfutesales in the US

— of high pressure pumps to General Pump;
— of a mechanical component to NLB;
— of high pressure pumps to customers outside tleegnip Group.

The hedges arranged solely related to the salégbf gressure pumps to third parties and all
took the form of plain vanilla forward contracts

The fair values of exchange rate risk derivativddas at the close of the year were as follows:

31/12/201531/12/2015 31/12/201431/12/2014
31/12/201t Positive Negative 31/12/201« Positive Negative
Notional fair value fair value Notional fair value fair value

($/000)  (€/000)  (€/000)  ($/000)  (€/000)  (€/000)

Plain vanilla forwards hedging
sales of high pressure

pumps 1,483 2 28 696 - 28
Total derivative financial instruments

to hedge against the USD exchange rate
risk 1483 2 28 696 - 28

The plain vanilla forwards used to hedge exchaageisks were all recognized using the cash
flow hedge methodAt the time of drafting of the financial statememts situations of
overhedging were identified.

Cash flow hedges
The net effects recognized in the income statermatide the loss of €/000 4 deriving from

management of the exchange-rate risk.

The company exchange risk management policy ingdlve hedging of future commercial cash
flows when deemed appropriate. The maximum time $pavhich it is predicted that the cash
flows will originate is 6 months. It is thereforeasonable to assume that the related hedge
effect deferred to the fair value reserve will lmeagnized in the income statement in the
following year.

During 2015 the Group released previously defepredits from equity to the income statement
totaling €/000 19, net of the theoretical tax effddis amount was booked as an increase in net
sales of €/000 26 and as an adjustment to defearadion of €/000 7.
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The ineffectiveness deriving from cash flow hedgtransactions in 2015 and in 2014 was
negligible.

Fair value hedges

The profits and losses deriving from the measurémémerivative financial instruments in
compliance fair value hedge rules and the profit lasses ascribable to the associated hedged
elements are shown in the following table:

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Net profit (loss) on derivative instruments utilizéo hedge against a7 -
exchange risks

Change in the fair value of the other underlyirgnents _(2 -

Profit (loss), net (19) -

The main methods and assumptions made in the eistintd fair value are outlined below.

Derivatives

The fair value of derivative financial instrumerg<alculated considering market parameters at
the date of these financial statements and usingsarement models widely adopted in the
financial sector. Specifically:

- the fair value of plain vanilla forwards is caldeld considering the exchange rate and
interest rates of the two currencies at 31 Decerflastr available trading day);

- the fair value of the interest rate swaps is caked utilizing the discounted cash flow
model: the input data used by this model comptisesnterest rate curves at 31 December
and the current interest rate fixings;

In application of IFRS 13, the fair value measuret@ the instruments is performed taking
account of the counterparty risk and, in particular calculating a credit value adjustment
(CVA) in the case of derivatives with positive faalue, or a debit value adjustment (DVA) in
the case of derivatives with negative fair value.

Interest-bearing financial payables
The fair value is based on the projected cash flowthe principal amount and the interest.

Receivables/Payables

For receivables and payables due within twelve hmttie carrying value is assumed as the fair
value. The fair value of other receivables and pbagis the discounted nominal value if the
temporal factor and notional value are significant.
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Interest rates utilized to obtain the fair value
To establish the fair value, the company usesrttezdst rate curve plus an appropriate spread.
The interest rates utilized are as follows:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
% %
Derivative financial instruments (euro) -0,13/1,59 0,14/1,52
Derivative financial instruments (USD) 0,27/2,63 0,08/2,71
Interest bearing financial payables in euro Eurib®r70/1.20 Euribor +1.10/2.00
Financial leasing agreements N/a N/a
Financial assets 1.1 1.9

At 31 December 2015 all liquid assets were helffoating interest rates, as were all financial
payables and bank debts.

In relation to financial instruments recorded iiir faalue in the balance sheet, international
accounting principles require that said valueslbaesified on the basis of a hierarchy of levels
that reflects the significance of the inputs uéitizto establish the fair value and subdivided on
the basis of the recurrence in their measuremetgrnational accounting standards identify the
following levels:

- Levell guotations recorded on an active marketagsets and liabilities subject to
measurement;

- Level2 inputs other than the price quotations meed in the above point, which are
directly (prices) or indirectly (price derivativeshservable in the market;

- Level3 inputs that are not based on empirical eiadkta.

The following table shows the financial instrumemeasured at fair value at 31 December
2015, broken down by level:

(€/000) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Active derivatives:

- Plain vanilla forwards - 2 - 2
Total assets - 2 - 2
Derivatives payable:

- Plain vanilla forwards - 28 - 28
Total liabilities - 28 - 28

No transfers between levels were carried out irb201

All fair value measurements shown in the aboveetak to be considered as recurrent; the
company did not perform any non-recurring fair eameasurements in 2015.
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8. Other current assets

This item comprises:

Accessory charges for the acquisition of investiment

not yet completed
Other receivables

Accrued income and prepayments

Total

9. Property, plant and equipment

At 1 January 2014

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Changes in 2014
Opening net book value
Increases

Disposals

Depreciation

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2014
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Changes in 2015
Opening net book value
Increases

Merger effect

Disposals

Reclassified
Depreciation capitalized
Depreciation

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2015
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Allowance for impairment
Net book value

The cost of assets under construction, includetiémet book values disclosed in the previous

table, is as follows:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014

(€/000) (€/000)
- 397
258 247
134 136
392 780

Land and Plant and Other
buildings machinery Equipment assets  Total
(€/000 (€/000 (€/000 (€/000 (€/000
10,138 29,088 13,226 2,704 55,156
(3,633) (19,324) (11,054) (2,190) (36,201)
6,505 9,764 2,172 514 18,955
6,505 9,764 2,172 514 18,955
13 2,440 888 58 3,399
(119) (1,212) (824) (152) (2,307)
6,399 10,992 2,236 420 20,047
10,151 31,514 14,114 2,734 58,513
(3,752) (20,522) (11,878) (2,314) (38,466)
6,399 10,992 2,236 420 20,047
6,399 10,992 2,236 420 20,047
319 3,529 335 173 4,356
- 200 75 85 360
- (6) (1) (2) )
2 49 - (51) -
- (8) - - (8)
(122) (1,361) (829) (174) (2,486)
6,598 13,395 1,816 451 22,260
10,888 35,732 16,186 3,108 65,914
(4,290) (22,337) (14,224) (2,657) (43,508)
- - (146) _ - (146)
6,598 13,395 1,816 451 22,260
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Land and Plant and Other
buildings machinery Equipment assets Total
(€/000 (€/000 (€/000 (€/000 (€/000

At 1 January 2014 - 444 397 - 841
At 31 December 2014 - 1,686 499 - 2,185
At 31 December 2015 287 3,330 347 - 3,964

There are no finance leasing contracts in existence

Depreciation of €/000 2,224 was charged to the abshles (€/000 2,065 in 2014) and €/000
262 for general and administrative expenses (€23@0in 2014).

At 31 December 2015 the company had contractuahdtoments for the purchase of tangible
assets equal to €/000 2,417 (€/000 100 at 31/12)j201

10. Goodwill
Goodwill consists of the merger surplus, as deedrih section 2.6.

The impairment test was conducted using the Dideoli€ash Flow method (DCF) net of
taxation. The projected cash flows used in the B@&IEulation were determined on the basis of
a 5-year business plan that takes account of theugareference scenarios and on the basis of
growth forecasts in the various markets. A perpajuawth rate of 1.5% was used for periods
after 2020. The forecast cash flows determinedii;jmrhanner were reduced by a discount factor
in order to take into consideration the risk theg future plans could prove to be impracticable.
WACC, after tax was measured at 5.04%. At 31/12/2014 the WACC482%. In addition, a
sensitivity analysis was carried out in compliamgth the requirements of the joint document
issued by Banca d'ltalia, Consob, and ISVAP on 3ckl&010. Even reducing the projected
cash flows of the CGU by 10% would not have leany impairment, and nor would an 0.5%
increase in the cost of capital used to actualieeprojected cash flows. For a complete and
more detailed analysis of goodwill, refer to Nofeid the Consolidated Financial Statements at
31/12/2015.

11. Other intangible assets
Patents

Product trademarks
development and industrial Other intangible

expenses rights assets Total
(€/000) (€/000) (€/000)  (€/000)
At 1 January 2014
Cost 14,256 - 1,000 15,256
Accumulated amortization (9,788) - (560) (10,348)
Net book value _4,468 - 440 4,908
Changes in 2014
Opening net book value 4,468 - 440 4,908
Increases 1,251 - 342 1,593
Impairment losses (140) - - (140)
Amortization (1,317) - (172) (1,489)
Closing net book value _ 4,262 - 610 4,872
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Patents

Product trademarks Other
development and industrial intangible
expenses rights assets Total
(€/000) (€/000) (€/000)  (€/000)
At 31 December 2014
Cost 15,507 - 1,342 16,849
Accumulated amortization (11,245) - (732) (11,977
Net book value _4,262 - 610 4,872
Changes in 2015
Opening net book value 4,262 - 610 4,872
Increases 774 - 134 908
Merger effect 1,528 19 - 1,547
Reclassifications (19) 19 -
Amortization (1,449) - (198) (1,647)
Closing net book value _ 5,115 - 565 5,680
At 31 December 2015
Cost 19,621 137 1,675 21,433
Accumulated amortization (14,506) 137 (1,110) (15,753)
Net book value _5,115 - 565 5,680

Through 2014, product development expenses congptigeinvoices received from Interpump
Engineering S.r.l. for the development of new pasguSubsequently, following the absorption
of Interpump Engineering S.r.l. in 2015, they coisg@rthe internal costs that have been
capitalized in compliance with the criteria speswifin IAS 38. The Company writes down any
capitalized project costs that are no longer decimée recoverable.

The other intangible assets mainly relate to thst ad developing the new management
information software.

The cost of assets under construction, includetiémet book values disclosed in the previous
table, is as follows:

Product
development Other intangible
expenses assets Total
(€/000 (€/000 (€/000
At 1 January 2014 2,183 289 2,472
At 31 December 2014 1,028 - 1,028
At 31 December 2015 2,059 - 2,059

Amortization of €/000 1,647 (€/000 1,489 in 2014aswbooked entirely to general and
administrative costs.
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12. Investments in subsidiaries

(€/000) Balance at Increases due Balance at
31 to assignment Impairm 31
December of stock Merger ent December
2014 options Increases effect Reclassified losses 2015
Subsidiaries:
Walvoil S.p.A. - - 117,775 - 397 - 118,172
Walvoil Fluid Power
India Pvt.Ltd. - - 14 - - - 14
NLB Corporation Inc. 62,048 - - - - - 62,048
General Pump Companies Inc. 8,903 - - - - - 8,903
Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. 92,893 - 11,365 - - - 104,258
Hammelmann GmbH 26,032 - - - - - 26,032
Bertoli S.r.l. - - 7,424 - - 7,424
Inoxihp S.r.l. - - 8,704 - - - 8,704
Interpump Engineering S.r.l. 138 - - (138) - - -
General Technology S.r.l. 2,095 - - (2,095) - - -
Teknova S.r.l. (in liquidation) - - - - 367 (340) 27
SIT S.p.A. 814 - - - - - 814
Hammelmann Bombas
e Sistemas Ltda 13 - - - - - 13
Fair value of the stock options of
the employees of subsidiaries 1,018 379 - 136 - - 1,261
Total subsidiaries 193,954 379 145,282 (2,369 764 (340) 337,670

All the equity investments held by Interpump Gro8m.A., with the exception of the
investment in Sit S.p.A., are considered, starting) the date of acquisition, as financial assets
since they correspond to financial instrumentslalsée for sale.

The increases relate to the companies acquiredib,2except for that relating to Interpump
Hydraulics S.p.A., regarding the payment on catalount represented by the assignment of
treasury shares for the acquisition of the outstandhterest in Hydrocontrol S.p.A., and to
Teknova S.r.l., regarding the transformation of ltfen granted into a reserve for future capital
increases.

As required by IFRIC 11, which came into force ondnuary 2010, share-based payment
agreements (stock option plans) were recordedsubgect of which is equity instruments of the
parent company in favour of the employees of itssiliaries. The fair value of the stock
options assigned to and exercisable by employesslisfidiaries of €/000 379 was added to the
value of the investments, with the increase insti@re premium reserve as a matching entry.

The impairment of Teknova S.r.l. (in liquidatior§ due to adaptation to the book value of
shareholders' equity, following losses for the year

13. Other financial assets
The only item included under other financial asselgtes to loans to subsidiaries, a breakdown

of which is given in Note 5 of the "2015 Board ofréxtors’ Report of Parent Company
Interpump Group S.p.A.".
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14. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The changes in the year of deferred tax assetiabilities are listed below:

Deferred taxes Deferred taxes
assets liabilities

2015 2014 2015 2014
(€/000°  (€/000 (€/000) (€/000
At 1 January 1,635 1,355 817 805
Charged to income statement in the year 378 171 (146) 93
Merger effect 240 - 2 -
Charged to net equity _ (a7 109 6 (81)
At 31 December 2,082 1,635 679 817

Deferred tax assets and liabilities can be booketd following items of the balance sheet:

31/12/201531/12/2014 31/12/201531/12/2014
Deferred Deferred
Deferred Deferred tax tax
tax assets tax assets liabilities liabilities
(€/000 (€/000 (€/000 (€/000

Property, plant and equipment 142 195 631 708
Intangible fixed assets 101 154 - -
Inventories 517 360 - -
Receivables 32 28 - 83
Investments 318 365 10 12
Liabilities for employee benefits - (12) 599 -

Shareholders' equity

- derivative financial instruments 6 8 - -
- liabilities for employee benefits - 110 (561) -
Other _ 966 _426 _- 14
Total 2,082 1,635 679 817

Deferred tax assets/liabilities recorded directlyequity refer to the measurement of the fair
value of derivative financial instruments recordesing the hedge accounting method, and to
the remeasurement of the liability for employeedfigs in relation to the actuarial component.

No deferred tax liabilities were recorded for reesrqualifying for tax relief as they are not
expected to be distributed (see note 20).

15. Interest-bearing financial payables and bank pgables

The main loans are all subject to the followingaficial covenants, calculated on the
consolidated values:

. Net financial indebtedness / Shareholders' equity;

. Net financial indebtedness / EBITDA;

. EBITDA / Financial charges.

At 31/12/2015 all financial covenants had been gmgdpected.
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Non-current financial payables have the following dlates:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)

From 1 to 2 years 64,085 30,968
From 2 to 5 years 191,041 83,150
Beyond 5 years - -
Total 255,126 114,118

The average interest rate on loans in 2015 wasajppately 1.19% (2.2% in 2014).
At 31/12/2015 all loans were at floating-rates.

The company has the following lines of credit whieére unused at year-end:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)

Current account overdrafts and export advances 45%9,0 14,045
Medium/long-term loans 211,500 147,375
Total 230,545 161,420

16. Other current liabilities

This item comprises:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€/000) (€/000)

Payables to personnel 2,102 2,285
Payables to social security institutions 1,642 1,170
Customer advances 541 291
Customer credit balances 236 192
Customers for credit notes to issue 59 85
Payables for remuneration of directors/auditors 789 779
Accrued expenses and deferred income 14 -
Other _ 51 14
Total 5,434 4,816

Customer advances include €/000 379 denominatg&idollars ($/000 413).

17. Provisions for risks and charges

The provisions for risks and charges, €/000 12ateelentirely to the agents' termination
indemnity provision, which was increased by €/00ih 2015. The provision for investment
risks (€/000 13 in 2014) was deducted from the /afithe investment following the increase
in the quota capital of Teknova S.r.I. The balaot€/000 12 (€/000 23 in 2014) is classified
entirely in the non-current part of the statemdriinrancial position.

As envisaged by IAS 37, no further provisions hdeen recorded in relation to other
contingent liabilities that might crystallize folling tax inspections of certain corporate
transactions carried out in prior years.
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18. Liabilities for employee benefits
Liabilities for defined benefit plans

The following movements were recorded in liabibtie

2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)
Liabilities at 1 January 4,152 3,566
Amount charged to the income statement in the year 7 14
Recognition in equity of actuarial results (638) 700
Reclassified (29) -
Merger effect 1,185 -
Payments (274) 128
Liabilities at 31 December 4,403 4,152
The following items were recognized in the incortaesment:
2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Current service cost -
Financial expenses 7 14
Past service cost _- -
Total recognized in the income statement _ 7 14

Refer to the "Board of Directors' Report" in chaipte Profitability” for a breakdown of labor
costs.

The average number of employees broken down bygagtés as follows:

2015 2014
Executives 9 8
Middle management 8 7
White collar 65 63
Blue collar 270 272
Fixed-contract personnel 24 12
Total 376 362

The increase in the average number of employeesneatly due to the greater recourse made
to personnel on fixed-term contracts and, to a lsmeent, to the absorption of General
Technology S.r.l. and Interpump Engineering Swhijch only influenced the last two months

of 2015.



Liabilities for defined benefit plans (Severanceamnity - TFR) were established with the
following actuarial assumptions:

Unit of

measurement 2015 2014
Discount rate % 2.37 1.46
Expected increase rate of remuneration % n.a. n.a.
Percentage_ of employees expected to resign % 2 64 3.00

before retirement agéufnover)*

Annual cost-of-living increase % 1.5 1.5
Average period of employment Years 15.79 15.61

* = average annual resignation percentage, allesaus the first ten years following the assessment
19. Share capital

The share capital at 31 December 2015 was compufs#d8,879,294 ordinary shares with a
unit par value of €0.52 for a total amount of €3G,232.88. In contrast, share capital recorded
in the financial statements amounted to €/000 6/B&ause the nominal value of purchased
treasury shares, net of divested treasury stocls deducted from the share capital in
compliance with the reference accounting standaktd1 December 2015 Interpump S.p.A.
held 1,125,912 treasury shares in the portfolicegponding to 1.03% of the share capital,
acquired at an average unit cost of € 11.6443.

Changes in treasury stock over the past two years been as follows:

Number
Balance at 31/12/2013 3,103,503
2014 purchases 3,819,682
Sale of shares to finance subsidiaries' purchases (715,530)
Sale of shares for the exercise of stock options 26,6860)
Balance at 31/12/2014 5,281,095
2015 purchases 2,542,395
Sale of shares to finance subsidiaries' purchases (4,925,854)
Sale of shares for the exercise of stock options J70,724)
Balance at 31/12/2015 1,125,912

Taking treasury stock into consideration, the fellly changes were recorded in the number of
shares in circulation:

2015 2014
Number of shares Number of shares
Ordinary shares in existence at 1 January 1088949, 108,879,294
Treasury stock (5,281,095) (3,103,503)
Shares in circulation at 1 January 103,598,199 105,775,791
Treasury stock purchased (2,542,395) (3,819,682)
Treasury stock sold 6,697,578 1,642,090
Total shares in circulation at 31 December 107 383, 103,598,199

The aims identified by the company in the managéroénapital are the creation of value for
all shareholders and supporting development ofytbep, both through internal means and by
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means of targeted acquisitions. The company therafitends to maintain an adequate level of
capitalization, which simultaneously makes it pblsito generate a satisfactory economic
return for shareholders and to guarantee the edoatiyneffective access to external sources of
borrowing. The company constantly monitors the etoh of the level of debt in relation to
shareholders' equity and the generation of cagbugfr its industrial operations. In order to
attain the aforementioned goals, the company cotigtanonitors the cash flows generated,
both through improvement or maintenance of proailitgband through careful management of
working capital and investment. Capital is congiras both the value provided by Interpump
Group shareholders (share capital and share preméserve, totalling €/000 194,149 at 31
December 2015 and €/000 154,271 at 31 December)2@hd the value generated by the
company in terms of the results of operations (oteserves and legal reserve, including profit
for the year, overall equivalent to €/000 102,2¥ Bl December 2015 and €/000 94,359 at 31
December 2014, excluding the reserve for restateofatefined benefit plans and the provision
for fair value measurement of derivative hedges).

Treasury stock purchased

The amount of treasury stock held by Interpump @risurecorded in an equity provision. The
Group acquired 2,542,395 treasury shares in 200¥/00 32,709, at an average price of
€12.8654 (the Group purchased 3,819,682 treasangsiin 2014 for the total amount of €/000
38,299).

Treasury stock sold

In the framework of the execution of stock optidans a total of 1,771,724 options were
exercised resulting in a receipt of €/000 8,166(580 options were exercised for €/000 4,626
in 2014). Moreover, 4,925,854 treasury shares vamsigned in 2015 to pay for equity

investments (715,530 treasury shares assignedlihiBQpayment for equity investments).

Stock options

The fair value of the 2010/2012 and 2014/2015 stption plans was recorded in the 2015 and
2013 financial statements in compliance with IFREa8sts of €/000 991 (€/000 992 in 2014)
relating to the stock option plans were therefe®ognized in the 2015 income statement, with
a matching entry in the share premium reserve. &asts represent the portion for the year of
the value of the options assigned to employeesdamdtors, established at the allocation date,
corresponding to the value of the services renddrgdthe latter in addition to normal
remuneration.

Items recognized in the income statement were lbakdollows:

2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)

Cost of products sold -
87

Distribution costs 86
General and administrative expenses 905 905
Total 991 992
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Changes in the share premium reserve were as fallow

2015 2014
€/000 €/000

Share premium reserve at 1 January 100,400 124,202

Increase due to income statement recognition

of the fair value of stock options granted 991 992
Increase due to the recognition in equity

of the fair value of stock options assigned to eyeés

of subsidiaries 379 378
Increase for the disposal of treasury stock furtber

payment for acquisitions of subsidiaries 60,891 6,654
Increase for the disposal of treasury stock furtber

the exercise of stock options 8,166 4,144
Utilization to cover purchase of treasury stock ,(3D) (35,970)

Share premium reserve at 31 December 138,117 100,400

The Shareholders' Meeting held on 20 April 2006rapged a stock option plarf Z006/2009
stock option plah), which is described in detail in the Board of dditors’ Report. The options
are exercisable as shown in the following table:

Exercise price

No. of options granted Vesting period (€)
Second tranche 69,000 01/05/2011-31/05/2016 5.4047
Third tranche 80,000 01/11/2012-31/05/2017 3.7524
Fourth tranche 350,000 01/07/20106-31/12/2017 3.7524
Total 499,000
Changes in options are as follows:
2015 2014
Number of options Number of options
Options assigned at 1 January 1,073,724 1,694,284
Options granted in the year - -
Options exercised in the year (574,724) (620,560)
Total options assigned at 31 December 499,000 1,073,724
Of which:
- vested at 31 December 499,000 1,073,724
- not vested at 31 December - -
Total options assigned at 31 December 499,000 1,073,724
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The Shareholders' Meeting held on 21 April 2010raeped the adoption of an incentive plan
denominated 2010/2012Interpump Incentive Pldn which is also described in detail in the
Board of Directors' Report accompanying the codsbéid financial statements. The exercise
price has been set at € 3.75 per share. The optaonde exercised between 30 June 2013 and
31 December 2016. The changes in options during 2041 2013 are indicated below:

2015 2014
Number of options Number of options
Options assigned at 1 January 1,357,000 1,663,000
Options granted in the year - -
Options exercised in the year (1,197,000) (306,000)
Total options assigned at 31 December 160,000 1,357,000
Of which:
- vested at 31 December 160,000 1,357,000
- not vested at 31 December - -
Total options assigned at 31 December 160,000 1,357,000

The Shareholders' Meeting held on 30 April 2013apgd the adoption of a new incentive plan
denominated‘2013/2015 Interpump Incentive PlanThe plan, which is based on the free
assignment of options that grant the beneficiattesright, on the achievement of specified
objectives, to (i) purchase or subscribe the Comigashares up to the maximum number of
2,000,000 or, (i) at the discretion of the Boarfl @irectors, receive the payment of a
differential equivalent to any increase in the nearkalue of the Compahy ordinary shares.
Beneficiaries of the plan can be employees or thremf the Company and/or its subsidiaries,
identified among the subjects with significant sot& functions. The exercise price has been set
at € 6.00 per share. The options can be exercisteeebn 30 June 2016 and 31 December 20109.
The next meeting of the Board of Directors held30nApril 2013 set a figure of 2,000,000 for
the number of options to be assigned, divided leytthal number of options in each tranche
(500,000 for the first tranche, 700,000 for theosectranche and 800,000 for the third tranche)
and established the terms for the exercise of th#orms, which are connected to the
achievement of specific accounting parameters.sEmee Board of Director's meeting assigned
1,000,000 options to Interpump Group S.p.A. dire€olvio Montipo and 320,000 options to
director Paolo Marinsek, the exercise of which ubject to the fulfilment of the above
conditions. Moreover, the same Board of Directoeetimg conferred on the Chairman and the
Deputy Chairman of Interpump Group, separately pineer to specify the beneficiaries of the
further 680,000 options. 550,000 options were asslgo the other beneficiaries on 29 October
2013.
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The fair value of the stock options and the actlassumptions utilized in the binomial

lattice model are as follows:
2006-2009 Plan - Second tranche

Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 827,361
Grant date May 2008
Exercise price € 5.4047
Vesting date 1 May 2011
Fair value per option at the grant date € 1.2431
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 23
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 7 7.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 4
Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of(swap rates at 1g7/04/2008) % From 4.44510 4.496
2006-2009 Plan - Third tranche
Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 275,000
Grant date April/July 2009
Exercise price € 3.7524
Vesting date 1 November 2012
Fair value per option at the grant date € 0.57306
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 837.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 4
Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of(swap rates at 3%/06/2009) % From 3.258 10 3.395
2006-2009 Plan - Fourth tranche
Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 1,100,000
Grant date March 2010
Exercise price 3.7524
Vesting date 1 July 2010
Fair value per option at the grant date € 0.92286
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 757.

Expected dividends (compared with share value)

%

Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of swap rates in 2010)

%
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2010/2012 Plan

First assignment Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 2,320,000
Grant date 21 April 2010
Exercise price 3.7500
Vesting date 1 July 2013
Fair value per option at the grant date € 0.89555
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 66®.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 4
Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of(swap rates at 2%][ AprillR) % From 2.63 10 2.83
Second assignment Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 540,000
Grant date 07 July 2010
Exercise price 3.7500
Vesting date 1 July 2013
Fair value per option at the grant date € 1.08964
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 5 6.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 4
Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of(swap rates at 7gJuIy 2010 % From 2.2910 2.49
2013//2015 Plan
First assignment Unit of
measurement
Number of shares assigned no. 1,320,000
Grant date 30 April 2013
Exercise price 6.0000
Vesting date 1 July 2016
Fair value per option at the grant date € 1.8631
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30
utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 666.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 50 2.

Risk free interest rate (calculated using a
linear interpolation of Euro Swap rates at 30iA2013)

%

From 0.91 to 1.06
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Second assignment Unit of
measurement

Number of shares assigned no. 550,000
Grant date 29 October 2013
Exercise price 6.0000
Vesting date 1 July 2016
Fair value per option at the grant date € 2.8916
Expected volatility (expressed as the weightedayeof the
volatility values % 30

utilized to build the binomial lattice model)
Expected average duration of the plan life years 166.
Expected dividends (compared with share value) % 50 2.
Risk free interest rate (calculated using a % From 1.38 to 1.57

linear interpolation of Euro Swap rates at 29dDet 2013)

The expected volatility of the underlying varialfleterpump Group share) is a measure of the
prospect of price fluctuations in a specific peridtie indicator that measures volatility in the
model utilized to evaluate the options is the meguare annualized deviation of compound

returns of the Interpump Group share through time.

20. Reserves

Reserve for valuation of hedging derivatives atValue

This includes net accumulated changes in the faluev of derivative financial instruments
classified as hedges and recorded using the hedgerating method.

Reserve for restatement of defined benefit plans

Includes the actuarial component of defined bemddis (TFR).
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Classification of net equity depending on possibdif utilization

(amounts in €/000)

Share capital

Subscribed and fully paid-up share
capital

Nominal value of treasury stock
in portfolio

Total share capital

Capital reserves

Legal reserve

Share premium reserve
Total capital reserves

Profit reserves:

Legal reserve

Share premium reserve
Extraordinary reserve
Reserve for share capital reduction
First Time Adoption Reserve

Reserve for the measurement of
hedging derivatives
at fair value

Merger surplus
General Technology S.r.l. and
Interpump Engineering S.r.l.

Reserve for restatement of defined
benefit plans

Profit for the year
Total profit reserves

Reserve for treasury stock held
Treasury shares

Non-distributable portion*

Remaining distributable portion

Amount| Possibility| Available| Tax payable in the Summary of utilizations over
of portion| event of distributior] the past three years
utilization
to cover losses for other
reasons
56,617 B - - - -
585 - - - - -
56,032
6,86D B - - - -
65,726 AB,C 65,726 - - 15,742
72,586 65,726
4,468 B - - - -
72,391 AB,C 71,130 1,687 - 1,592
61,015 AB,C 59,478 - - 2,382
585 - - - - -
(45) - - - - -
(13) - - - - -
863 AB,C 698
(1,479)
28,529 A,B,C 28,529 - - -
166,309 159,835
13,110 - - - - 92,450
(13,11D) - - - - -
(5,680)
219,881

A: for capital increase

B: for coverage of losses

C: for distribution to
shareholders

*= represents the non-distributable portion destittecover deferred costs that have not yet beentared.

We draw your attention to the fact that €/000 12,868the share premium reserve qualifies for
tax relief in that it was fiscally formed from tlevaluation reserve, Law 342/2000 and Law

266/2005.

Utilizations refer to dividends, purchase of tragsstock and reductions of reserves for other

causes and do not include transfers between reselveparticular, with reference to the

changes that occur red in the past three yearsthatdhe drawdowns of the treasury shares
reserve refer to purchases of treasury stock, vardevdowns from the share premium reserve
refer to the sale of treasury shares at a pria@b#ieir carrying value and the drawdowns from

the extraordinary reserve refer to integrationhef 2012 dividend.
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On the basis of tax legislation the reserves anfitprare freely distributable and do not attract
tax even in the case of distribution, on the coadithat the reserves and residual profits exceed
the negative components of income ascribed exd@lyste the tax return; otherwise, distributed
reserves and profits are subject to tax in the areas which the residual reserves and profits
are lower than the negative components of incomthhive been ascribed exclusively to the tax
return. At 31 December 2015, this condition hasnbeemplied with in full, hence no taxes
were payable in the event of distribution of theep& company's entire profits for the year and
the entirety of available reserves, beyond thesakeady indicated in the prior statement.

Breakdown of components recorded directly in equity

2015 2014

Pre-tax Amount net Pre-tax Amount net
(€/000) amount of taxes amount of taxes
Taxation Taxation

Accounting for derivatives

hedging interest-rate

risks using the cash

flow hedge method - - - 37 (20) 27
Accounting for derivatives

hedging exchange-rate

risks using the cash

flow hedge method 7 (2) 5 (26) 8 (18)
Restatement of defined benefit

plans 638 175 463 700 192 508
Total 645 (17D 468 689 190 (499)

21. Information on financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities, broken down bg tategories identified by IAS 39, are
summarized in the following tables:

Financial asset Financial
at liabilities at
31/12/201¢ 31/12/2015
At the fair value recorded in Valued a
(€/000) the Income Statement Loans anc the amortized cost Total Fair value
Initially*  1AS 39 receivables
Trade receivables - - 9,503 - 9,503 9,503
Other current assets - - 258 - 258 258
Other current financial
assets - 9,348 - 9,348 9,348
Other financial assets
assets - - 142,090 - 142,090 142,090
Trade payables - - - (10,148) (10,148) (10,148)
Current interest bearing
financial payables - - - (47,958)  (47,958) (47,958)
Derivative instruments - - - - - - -
Payables
Other current liabilities - - - (5,420) (5,420) (5,420)

Non-current
interest-bearing
financial payables

Total -
* = designated as such at the time of initigbreing.

** = classified as held for trading according e trequirements of IAS 39.

- (255,126) (255,126) (255,126)
(318,652) (157.453) (157.453)

e 1
=
(o}
=
=
©
©
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Financial asset Financial

at liabilities at
31/12/201+« 31/12/2014
At the fair value recorded in Valued a
(€/000) the Income Statement Loans ant the amortized cost Total Fair value
Initially*  1AS 39 receivables
Trade receivables - 12,801 - 12,801 12,801
Dividends receivable - - 6,000 - 6,000 6,000
Other current assets - - 644 - 644 644
Other financial assets
98,800 98,800

assets - 98,800
Trade payables - - -
Current interest-bearing

financial payables - - - (23,304) (23,304) (23,304)
Other current liabilities - - - (4,816) (4,816) (4,816)
Non-current

interest-bearing

(11,192-) (11,192)  (11,192)

financial payables - - - (114,118) (114,118) (114,118)
Total - - 118,245 (153,430) (35,185) (35,185)

* = designated as such at the time of ini?iabreling.
** = classified as held for trading according I trequirements of IAS 39.

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabgiis substantially the same as their fair
value.

The Company has not recognized any fair value gaindosses on derivative financial
instruments in the 2015 income statement sinckoadth arranged for hedging purposes, they
did meet all the requirements specified in IAS 89 fecognition as hedges (in 2014, the
Company recognized fair value gains of €/000 65 faidvalue losses of €/000 25). Note 7
gives the methods for calculation utilized to elshbthe fair value of derivative financial
instruments.

Loans and receivables generated revenues and Bestsnues refer to exchange rate gains for
€/000 531 (€/000 832 in 2014). In contrast, thascosfer to exchange losses in the amount of
€/000 271 (€/000 49 in 2014), to bad debts for @€/68 (€/000 64 in 2015) classified under
other operating costs.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized costehgenerated costs relating to the portion of
ancillary charges initially incurred to obtain th@ans and subsequently expensed over the
duration of the loan in accordance with the finahoiethod. In 2015 the value of these charges
booked to the income statement totaled €/000 4T®QE720 in 2014).

Financial assets and liabilities that are not desied at fair value recorded in the Income
Statement (in the case of Interpump Group S.p.A.thase indicated in the above tables)
generated interest receivable for €/000 2,133 E/M®092 in 2014) and interest payable for
€/000 3,173 (€/000 2,552 in 2014); in addition, eyah and administrative expenses include
commissions and bank charges for €/000 92 (€/006 2614).

22. Information on financial risks

The company is exposed to financial risks assatiaith its activities:

« market risks (mainly related to currency exchangtes and interest rates) since the
company does business internationally and is exptséhe exchange risk deriving from
exposure to the US dollar;

+ credit risk connected with business relations withtomers;



» liquidity risk, with special reference to the awedility of financial resources and access to
the lending market and financial instruments inegah

* price risk in relation to metal price fluctuatiotisat constitute a significant portion of the
raw materials purchase price.

The company is not exposed to significant concéotra of risk.

As described in Note 3 "Management of financiaksisthe company constantly monitors the
financial risks to which it is exposed in such aywss to make an advance assessment of
potential negative effects and take appropriat®asto mitigate them.

The following section contains reference quali@tand quantitative indications regarding the
uncertainty of these risks for Interpump Group &.p.

The quantitative data given below are not to bestoed as forecasts; specifically, the
sensitivity analyses concerning market risks ar@lento reflect the complexity and correlated
relations of markets that may derive from each peoted change.

Exchange risk

The company is exposed to risks arising from flatians in currency exchange rates, which
may affect economic results. Specifically:

« for revenues denominated in currencies other thanctirrencies in which the respective
costs are denominated, exchange rate fluctuatiansrapact on the company's operating
profit.

In 2015 the total amount of cash flow exposed tlydo exchange risks was approximately
27% of company sales (approximately 26% in 2014).

The exchange rates to which the company is expasee@&UR/USD, in relation to sales in
dollars of high pressure pumps in North Americatigh General Pump Inc., which is sited
in this important market, and in direct relationaio important US customer. Moreover, in
recent years the company has also begun billingSb to its other US subsidiary, NLB
Inc., even though the amounts are as yet modest.

The Interpump Group has adopted a policy of hedgommmercial transactions
denominated in foreign currency, in the framewofkvbich the most effective derivative
instruments for the achievement of the preset goal® been identified and the relative
responsibilities, duties and system of delegatiang been defined.

In relation to the dollar exposure generated bgssalade in the North American market to
General Pump Inc., Company policy is to arrangegbsdonly when the exchange rate
reached certain levels deemed to be favorable, #mssiring the continuation of this
condition for between three and six months. AltHotige exchange rate reached and even
exceeded the established values considered fagodabing 2015, top management decided
not to start hedging in order to benefit from theakness of the euro.

In relation to exposures in dollars for sales anAlmerican market to subsidiary NLB Inc.,
the company has decided for the present not toehdtgm because it considers that they
have not yet reached a level such as to allow ¢inefits associated with the stabilization of
the exchange rates to cover the costs connectbdsetiing up the associated hedges.

In relation to the dollar exposure generated bgssalade in the North American market to
customers external to the Interpump Group, Compaolicy is to arrange hedges only
when the exchange rates are deemed to be favorable.

e Again in relation to commercial activities, the queny may be in a position wherein it
holds commercial receivables denominated in curesnother than the account currency.
Fluctuations in exchange rates can therefore rdsuthe realization or assessment of
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positive or negative exchange differences. It imgany policy, as previously specified, to
hedge exposure deriving from trade receivables.

« In relation to financial exposure, wherever the etary outflows are denominated in a
currency other than the account currency, fluotuatf the exchange rates can impact the
net profits of the company negatively. At 31 DecemB015 and 31 December 2014 the
company had no financial exposures in foreign auaye

The nature and structure of the exposure to exeéherk and the related hedging policies were
substantially unchanged in 2015 and 2014.

Exchange risk sensitivity analysis

The potential profit deriving from the change i thair value of financial assets and liabilities
caused by a hypothetical and immediate increatieinalue of the euro of 10% with respect to
the US dollar would be in the order of approximat&000 412 (potential profit of €/000 225 in
2014).

The sensitivity analysis did not take account o&rades in the receivables and payables in
relation to which the hedge operations were arrdndfeis reasonable to assume that the
fluctuation in exchange rates could produce an sippceconomic effect on the derivative
financial instruments of an amount that is idertimathe change in the underlying hedged
transactions thereby effectively offsetting thecfliation.

Interest rate risk

It is company policy to monitor the changes in tage curves, in order to assess the need to
hedge part of the outstanding loans. Currentiyoaas are hedged against interest-rate risk. At
31 December 2015 all the group's cash on hand wigsd to floating interest rates, as were all
financial and bank debts. In addition, in 2015 angrior years the Company granted loans to
subsidiaries totaling €151.4 million (€98.8 milliah31/12/2014), mainly to finance the Group's
process of expansion through acquisitions. As destrin Note 5 of the Board of directors'
report attached to the financial statements, allthhins were granted at floating rates.

Sensitivity analysis relative to the interest rateisk

The effects of a hypothetical and instantaneousangwariation in interest rates of 50 basis
points would provide Interpump Group S.p.A. withglér financial expenses, net of the
increase in financial income of €/000 524 (higheamcial expenses of €/000 130 in 2014). It is
reasonable to assume that a 50 basis points decieaimterest rates would produce an
equivalent effect, although this time in termsafér financial expenses.

Credit risk

The maximum theoretical credit risk exposure ofdgbmpany at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is
represented by the accounting value of the findiasisets recorded in the financial statements.

Historically the company has not suffered any digaint losses on receivables. This is because
the company generally allows extended payments tmljts long-term customers, whose
solubility and economic stability is known. In coagt, after having passed an initial credit
rating analysis, new customers are required to rpalenents in advance or to open a letter of
credit for amounts due.

Individual write-downs are applied in relation tosgions, if of significant magnitude, in
relation to which an objective condition of uncotigbility is present for all or part of the
outstanding amount. The amount of the write-dowkedaaccount of an estimate of the
recoverable flows and the associated collectior,daid the expenses and costs for future debt
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recovery. Collective provisions are allocated ifatien to receivables that are not subject to
individual write-downs, taking account of the hidtcexposure and statistical data.

At 31 December 2015, Loans and Receivables fromnfital activities total €/000 161,119

(€/000 118,245 at 31/12/2014), and include €/00® 68 written down receivables (€/000 375
at 31/12/2014); amounts overdue by less than thmeeths are €/000 1,729 (€/000 2,233 at
31/12/2014), while those overdue beyond three nsoritital €/000 306 (€/000 544 at

31/12/2014).

The Company is not exposed to any significant cotmagons of sales. In fact, the top customer
in terms of sales is part of the Interpump Groug aocounted for about 24% of total sales in
2015 (24% also in 2014). The top customer outsideGroup accounted for approximately 5%
of sales (4% in 2014) while, in total, the top 1&tomers after the first intercompany customer
accounted for 22% of sales (19% in 2014).

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk can arise if it becomes impodsilio obtain, at acceptable economic
conditions, the financial resources needed forctiiapany's business operations. The two main
factors that define the company's liquidity sitaatiare the resources generated by or used in
business activities and investment, and the cheriatits of expiry and renewal of debt or
liquidity of financial investments and the relativerket conditions.

The company has adopted a series of policies andepses aimed at optimizing the
management of resources in order to reduce thiiiguisk:

e retention of an appropriate level of cash on hand;

« diversification of the banks with which the compaperates;

e access to adequate lines of credit;

* negotiation of covenants at a consolidated level;

« monitoring of the prospective conditions of liquydin relation to the corporate process.

The characteristics of maturity of interest beafiimgncial debts and bank debts are described
in note 15.

Management considers that the currently availabted$ and lines of credit, in addition to
resources generated by operating and financinyi@es, will allow the company to meet
requirements deriving from investing activities,magement of working capital and repayment
of debts at their natural due dates, in additioerieuring the pursuit of a strategy of growth,
also by means of targeted acquisitions capableeaitiog value for shareholders. Cash on hand
at 31 December 2015 totals € 46.6 million. Cashhand and the cash generated by the
company in 2015 are both factors that serve toaedine company's exposure to the liquidity
risk. The decision to maintain a high level of casas adopted in order to minimize the
liquidity risk, which is considered important givehe current state of uncertainty of the
economy, and to pick up on any acquisition oppatigsthat may arise.

Price risk

Interpump Group S.p.A. is exposed to risks deriviirgn price fluctuations of metals, which

may affect economic results and profitability. Speally, the purchase cost of metals

accounted for 31% of the company purchase costwfmaterials, semi-finished products and
finished products (18% in 2014). The main metaitizatl by the company include brass,
aluminium, steel and stainless steel.
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Company policy is to transfer the cost of stockimgterials to suppliers; in this scenario the risk
is hedged by means of orders for specific periagdbs gquantities agreed at a fixed price; at 31
December 2015 signed commitments were in placercayall expected brass consumption
and aluminum consumption in 2016 (34% coverageooédast brass consumption and 18%
coverage of forecast aluminum consumption at 32014), 23% of steel consumption (34% at
31/12/2014) and 38% of the stainless steel consompiredicted for next year (51% at

31/12/2014). In addition, at 31 December 2015 stootvered about 11% of forecast brass
consumption of (16% at 31/12/2014), 23% of alumincomsumption (41% at 31/12/2014),

54% of steel consumption (22% at 31/12/2014) anddb%tainless steel consumption (2% at
31/12/2014).

Generally speaking the company reviews sellingggron a once-yearly basis.
23. Net sales

The following table gives a breakdown of sales eggraphical area:

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

ltaly 13,736 14,884

Rest of Europe 22,008 20,324

Rest of the World 42,228 41,882

Total 77,972 77,090
Details of net sales in each invoicing currencymmvided below:

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Euro 56,724 57,309

uSD 21,239 19,778

GBP 9 3

Total 77,972 77,090

Sales in USD refer primarily to invoices issuedtie US subsidiaries General Pump Inc. and
NLB Corporation Inc.

24. Other net revenues

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Capital gains on the sale of tangible assets 6 1
Revenues from consultancy - 44
Income from rent/royalties 16 -
Sale of scrap 140 178
Other 401 656
Reimbursement of expenses 563 486
Total 1,126 1,365
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25. Costs by nature

2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)
Raw materials and components 21,538 24,436
Personnel and temporary staff 22,888 20,459
Services 10,573 10,396
Amortization / depreciation
(notes 9 and 11) 4,133 3,796
Directors' and statutory auditors' remuneration 44,1 3,650
Hire purchase and leasing charges 591 237
Provisions / impairment of tangible and
intangible fixed assets (notes 9, 11 and 17) 2 143
Other operating costs 3,938 3,366

Total cost of sales, distribution costs, generdl an
administrative expenses, other operating costs igpairment

losses 67,807 66,483
of tangible and intangible fixed assets

The emoluments of the Directors and Statutory Auditof Interpump Group S.p.A. in 2015
were, respectively, €/000 3,967 and €/000 105 anllided the remuneration authorized at the
Shareholders' Meeting, the remuneration establislyethe Board of Directors for directors
assigned special duties, including bonuses, antethanerative component deriving from stock
option plans, represented by the current-yeargouf the fair value of the options calculated at
the grant date (excluding however the emolumentthefdirectors and statutory auditors of
General Technology S.r.| and Interpump Enginee@ingd., totaling €/000 72).

26. Financial income and charges

2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)

Financial income

Interest income from liquid funds 26 163
Interest income from financial assets (intercompaays) 2,133 2,092
Other financial income 2 -
Foreign exchange gains 580 2,580
Earnings from valuation of derivative financialtinsnents ) 68
Total 2,792 4,903
Interest expenses 3,651 3,272
Other financial charges 17 14
Foreign exchange losses 271 1,734
Losses from valuation of derivative financial instrents 77 34
Total 4,016 5,054
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27. Income taxes

The reconciliation of taxes calculated on the baGihe nominal rates in force and the effective
tax burden is a follows:

2015 2014
(€/000) (€/000)

IRES
Profit before taxes from the income statement 32,844 38,950
Theoretical taxes at nominal rate (27.5%) 9,032 10,711
Lower taxes for non-taxable dividends (5,890) (6,841)
Higher taxes due to non-deductible write-downsweéstments 94 4
Lower taxes due to IRAP deduction relating to exsgsrfor employees and similar (83) (153)
Lower taxes due to IRAP deduction on interest egpen (23) (28)
Higher taxes on absorption of difference betweeersace indemnities

under IFRS and those determined using fiscadriait 6 82
Taxes for prior financial years 337 3
Effect of scheduled change in the IRES tax ratenf2®17 91 -
Other 27 116
Total IRES 3,591 3,894
IRAP/Local income taxes
Profit before taxes from the income statement 32,844 38,950
Theoretical taxes at nominal rate (4.65%) 1,527 1,519
Lower taxes for non-taxable dividends (1,074) (1,058)
Higher taxes for non-deductible payroll costs 74 485
Higher taxes for non-deductible directors' emoluteen 179 130
Higher taxes due to non-deductible financial expens 1 7
Taxes for prior financial years - -
Effect of change in tax rate @) -
Other 24 18
Total IRAP (Local income taxes) 724 1,101
Total income taxes recognized in the income stateme 4,315 4,995

Note that together with Teknova S.r.I. and Interpubtydraulics S.p.A., the company has
chosen to form a domestic tax group.

Taxes recognized in the income statement can bebrown as follows:

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Current taxes (4,372) (5,070)
Current taxes of prior financial years (467) 3)
Deferred taxes 524 78
Total taxes (4,315) (4,995)
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Deferred tax recognized in the income statemenbeaoroken down as follows:

2015 2014

(€/000) (€/000)

Deferred tax assets generated in the year 975 526
Deferred tax liabilities generated in the year (32) (97)
Deferred tax assets transferred to the incomenséate (569) (355)
Deferred tax liabilities recognized in the incon@ament 104 4
Deferred tax assets due to changes in the tax rate (158) -
Deferred tax liabilities due to changes in thertte 74 -
Deferred tax assets not calculated in previoussyear 130 -
Total deferred taxes 524 78

28. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Earnings per share are calculated on the basisofit for the year divided by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares during the ye&ollows:

2015 2014
Profit for the year attributable to shareholder9@9) 28,529 33,955
Average number of shares in circulation 106,854,0805,257,907
Basic earnings per share for the year 0.267 0.323

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share are calculated on thes lod diluted profit of the year attributable to

the parent company's shareholders, divided by #ighted average number of ordinary shares
in circulation adjusted by the number of potenyialilutive ordinary shares. The calculation is
as follows:

2015 2014
Profit for the year attributable to shareholder9@9) 28,529 33,955
Average number of shares in circulation 106,854,08605,257,907
Number of potential shares for stock option plas ( 1,491,735 _ 2,006,055
Average number of shares (diluted) 108,345,80Q07,263,962
Earnings per diluted share at 31 December (€) __0.263 0.317
* calculated as the number of shares assigned ftreimoney stock option plans multiplied by the adbetween the

difference of the average value of the share irytze and the exercise price at the numeratortfendverage value of the
share in the year at the denominator.

29. Notes to the cash flow statement

Property, plant and equipment

In 2015 the company purchased property, plant audpenent totalling €/000 4,356 (€/000
3,399 in 2014). This expenditure involved the payhwd €/000 4,542, inclusive of the payment
of past debts for the same purpose and net of [es/aleferred to the following year (€/000

2,261 in 2014).
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Cash and cash equivalents
This item can be broken down as follows:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014 01/01/2014
(€/000) (€/000) (€/000)

Cash and cash equivalents from the balance sheet 60146, 22,841 39,879

Payables to banks (for current account overdraftisaalvances subject

to collection (731) (408) 143
and accrued expenses for interest payable)

Cash and cash equivalents from the cash flow staiteme 45,870 22,433 39,736

Net financial position and cash-flow statement

For the amount and details of the main componeritseonet financial position and the changes
that occurred in 2015 and 2014 we invite you temréd the "Loans" section of the Board of
Directors' Report.

30. Commitments

The company has commitments to purchase tangisktsatotalling €/000 2,417 (€/000 100 at
31/12/2014).

Interpump Group S.p.A. has signed rental and hirelpase agreements mainly for warehouses,
offices, and cars. The total outlay in 2015 wa$€/026 (€/000 343 in 2014). At 31/12/2015,
the following commitments were outstanding:

€/000
Due within 1 year 787
Due from 1 to 2 years 770
Due from 2 to 5 years 2,125
Due beyond 5 years N
Total 3,689

31. Transactions with related parties

Transactions involving top management

Transactions with related parties concern the mgasif facilities owned by companies
controlled by the current shareholders and directdérthe Parent company for €/000 665 (no
transactions in 2014), deriving from the merger plated during the year, and consultancy
services provided by entities connected with diectand statutory auditors of the Parent
company for €/000 68 (no transactions in 2014). [Elasing costs are classified among the cost
of sales, €/000 577, and general and administrakpenses €/000 88. The consultancy costs
were charged in full to general and administraéi¥xpenses.

After taking over the lease contracts signed wétlated parties, the Company has commitments
totaling €/000 3,325 at 31 December 2015.

With regard to transactions with Group companiesinvite you to refer to chapter 5 of the

Board of Directors' Report.
The transactions mentioned above were carriedt@rhas length conditions.
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32. Events occurring after the close of the year

With regard to Interpump Group S.p.A., no furtheemts occurred after 31 December 2015
such that require mention in this report, while iméte you to refer to the "Board of Directors'
Report" of the consolidated financial statement8katDecember 2015 with regard to events
after the close of the hear concerning the Group.
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Attachment 1

Attestation of the annual financial statements purgant to art. 81-(3) of
Consob regulation no. 11971 of 14 May 1999 and swmpient
amendments and integrations

1. The undersigned Paolo Marinsek and Carlo Bancipews/ely Executive

Director and Manager responsible for the draftifgcompany accounting
documents of Interpump Group S.p.A.,, taking actalso of the provisions of
art. 154-(2), subsections 3 and 4 of legislativeree no. 58 of 24 February
1998, attest to:

- adequacy in relation to the characteristics eflibisiness and
- effective application,

of the administrative and accounting proceduresfdomation of the financial
statements during 2015.

In addition, it is confirmed that the annual finabcstatements of Interpump
Group S.p.A for the year ended 31 December 2016wisly total assets of
€625,200 thousand, net profit of €28,529 thousardl shareholders' equity of
€294,927 thousand:

a) correspond to the results of the company booksaandunting entries;

b) were prepared in compliance with the internatioaetounting standards
approved by the European Commission further teetifercement of Ruling
(CE) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament aedBuropean Council
of 19 July 2002, and the provisions issued in inmaetation of art. 9 of
legislative decree 38/2005 and the contents ar@ldeai for providing a
truthful and fair representation of the equity, mmmic and financial
situation of the company;

c) the Board of Directors' report contains a reliahi@lysis of performance
and results and the situation of the issuer togethih a description of the
main risks and uncertainties to which it is exposed

Santllario d Enza (RE), 18 March 2016

. Paolo Marinsek Carlo Banci
Deputy Chairman and Manager responsible for pregar
Chief Executive Officer the company's accountioguiments
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Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors to the Stareholders’ Meeting of Interpump
Group S.p.A. on the financial statements at 31 Denwer 2015, pursuant to art. 2429,
subsection 2, of the Italian civil code and art. 1% of Italian legislative decree 58/1998
(Consolidated Finance Act).

Shareholders,

We have performed the supervisory activities regguivy art. 2429, subsection 2 of the Italian
Civil Code of the Italian civil code and art. 158 ltalian legislative decree 58/1998, taking
account also of the principles of conduct presdibg the "Consigli Nazionali dei Dottori
Commercialisti e degli Esperti Contabili" (natiomaluncils of certified public accountants) and
the CONSOB communication of 6 April 2001, as amendédroughout 2015 we performed the
duties prescribed by art. 149 of Italian legislatidecree 58/1998 and we are therefore in a
position to disclose the following matters.

Pursuant to the law, the Company is required tegareconsolidated financial statements.

The separate financial statements at 31 Decemlddy @@re prepared in compliance with the
IAS/IFRS approved by the International Accountingrtlards Board and endorsed by the
European Union.

The explanatory notes describe in detail the adomgipolicies adopted for the preparation of
the financial statements.

1. We attended the meetings of the board of directwgng which we were informed by the

directors of the activities performed and the opena of the greatest economic and financial
significance under discussion and executed by tmapany and/or by its subsidiaries, in

compliance with art. 150 of Italian legislative dee 58/1998.

The principal economic and financial transactioasried out by the Company during 2015
were reported in press releases and describeé iRéport on operations. In particular:

a) the purchase via Interpump Hydraulics S.p.A. ofrthigority interests in Hydrocontrol
S.p.A. and IMM Hydraulics S.p.A.; in particularetlemaining 16% of Hydrocontrol
S.p.A. was purchased in April 2015 and the remgidi0% of IMM Hydraulics S.p.A.
was acquired on 4 June 2015;

b) the acquisition on 28 August 2015 of Osper, a Beazicompany that produced and
sold power take-offs and hydraulic cylinders (Hydi@ Sector) and the subsequent
amalgamation in Brazil, already operational, ofrfoampanies: Interpump Hydraulics
do Brasil, Takarada Industria e Comercio, WalvdilidF Power do Brasil and Osper.
The new company, post merger, is known as Interpidygraulics Brasil;

c) the consolidation of the Walvoil Group (Hydrauliec$or), acquired on 15 January
2015, Inoxihp S.r.l. (Water Jetting Sector), acgdion 17 March 2015, Bertoli S.r.l.
(Water Jetting Sector), acquired on 22 May 2015 emakolidated for eight months,
and Osper (Hydraulic Sector), acquired on 28 Au@@dt5 and consolidated for four
months.

2. We have ascertained that the foregoing operati@re in compliance with the law and the
Bylaws, that they did not conflict with the resaduts adopted at Shareholders' Meetings and
that they were consistent with the principles afgar administration.

3. During 2015 and subsequent to year end, we didaggive information from the Board of
Directors or the Auditing Firm about any atypicatifor unusual transactions with third parties,
related parties or group companies.
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4. With regard to intercompany transactions and edlagarty transactions, the directors have
provided specifications and precise informatiomhi@ board of directors' report and in the notes
to the 2015 separate financial statements, spagifyie following matters in particular:

a) the Company carried out transactions on armigtheterms with other Group companies and
with top management, as described in section Beobbard of directors' report and in note 31 to
the separate financial statements;

b) the Company has a number of stock option plresmost recent of which approved at the
shareholders' meeting on 30 April 2013, designegrtivide incentives to and increase the
loyalty of management. These stock option plansdascribed in detail in note 19 to the
separate financial statements.

The Company has issued a specific report contaitiiagemuneration disclosures required by
statutory legislation.

5. With regard to intercompany transactions, the ¢badrdirectors' report - to which reference
is made - describes the characteristics of comiaearid financial relations entertained with
subsidiaries and associates; we consider thatntiogigts in question are congruous and that the
transactions carried out were in line with theliests of the company.

6. The Independent auditing firm Reconta Ernst & Y@p@p.A. issued its report on 29 March
2016 in compliance with the requirements of articlel and 16 of Italian legislative decree
39/2010, wherein it attests that the annual firglngtiatements provide a clear and fair view of
the financial position, results and cash flowshaf tompany in the year under examination.

The independent auditors also judged the informagigen in the board of directors' report on
operations and in the corporate governance repottet in compliance with the financial
statements, as required by the amendments intrddwc#alian legislative decree 173/2008.

7. We have received no complaints pursuant to a@8 24 the Italian civil code.

8. Neither Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A. nor otheritierst associated with that firm were
engaged to perform any professional work other tharaudit and certification of the financial
statements.

9. We have expressed our opinions in relation tartbentive plans (including the stock option
plans) and the remuneration amounts as per ar, 288 3, of the Italian civil code, and their
consistency with the general remunerations poladgp, pursuant to the requirements of art.
3.C.5 of the code of corporate governance, we ldnezked the correct application of the
verification criteria and procedures utilized byettboard of directors to evaluate the
independence of its members.

10. The board of statutory auditors met 9 times duthrgyear and attended 8 meetings of the
board of directors; we also attended 6 meetingh@internal control and risks committee and
the shareholders’ meeting.

11. Within the scope of our remit we have verified andnitored observance of the principles
of correct administration by means of direct cheakd through information gathered from the
persons in charge of the various company functam$ meetings with representatives of the
independent auditors held in order to allow theipmecal exchange of relevant data and
information. No anomalies or matters to be subumhitte your attention have emerged in this
context.
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12. Within the scope of our remit we have also vedifeend monitored the adequacy of the
company's organizational structure, which we fotmdbe commensurate with the size of the
company. This has allowed, partly via meetings wtle persons in charge of company
functions and representatives of the independeditaas, the comprehensive collection of
information concerning compliance with the prinefplof diligent and correct administrative
conduct.

13. We evaluated the adequacy of the company's cdagpgmvernance and administrative and
accounting system and the reliability of the latteproviding a true and faithful representation
of all aspects of the company's operations, by mse#n(i) examination of reports of the
manager responsible for preparing company accaymtotuments on the administrative and
accountancy structure and on the corporate goveenagstem and the financial reporting
process;(ii) information gathered from the managers of thetedlacompany functiong(ii)
relations with the administrative bodies of sulmidis pursuant to subsections 1 and 2 of art.
151 of Italian legislative decree 58/199R:) participation in the work of the control and risks
committee (in compliance with the code of corpogdgernance). No anomalies and/or issues
have emerged from the activities performed thatdcbe construed as indicators of inadequacy
of the corporate governance system.

14.0n the basis of the provisions contained in &toflltalian legislative decree no. 39 of 27
January 2010, the board of statutory auditorsntitied by said provisions as the audit
committee - has also supervised:

- the financial reporting process;

- the legal audit of the annual accounts and tmsaaated financial statements;
- the independence of the auditing firm.

There were no elements and/or qualified remarksin@g mention in this report.

15. The board of statutory auditors considers thaatheinistrative-accounting system is
capable of assuring correct representation of pleeating events for preparation of the
company's accounting documents.

16. The company has issued its subsidiaries withrthuctions necessary to comply with the
disclosure obligations prescribed in art. 114, sabien 2, of Italian legislative decree 58/1998.

Said instructions appear to be adequate in relatigtatutory legal requirements.

17. We have verified, through direct checks and bylyamag information obtained from the
independent auditors, the full observance of legaliirements concerning the formation of the
separate financial statements and the attachedd bafadirectors' report. Specifically, we
checked to ensure that no exceptions were madeignirso art. 2423, subsection 4, of the
Italian civil code.

18. With reference to corporate governance and thgilténimplementation of the rules set
down by the code of corporate governance issueldoga Italiana, the company's methods of
compliance are described in the corporate govemaeport, with whose contents we are in
agreement.

19. Our supervision and control activities did notrtiy any major facts requiring notification
to the supervisory bodies or disclosure in thiorep
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20. In acknowledging that the separate financialestants at 31 December 2015, which we
received within the legally prescribed terms, tbgetwith the board of directors' report, show a
net profit for the year of €28,529,378, in consadien of the matters illustrated above and
taking account of the report issued by the indepahduditors, we express our agreement with
the proposal made by the board of directors, bdth vegard to the approval of the separate
financial statements and also with regard to tlop@sal for distribution of profit for the year.

* k k * %

S. llario dEnza, 31 March 2016
for THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pierluigi De Biasi
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Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A. Tel: +39 051 278311
Via Massimo D'Azeglio, 34 Fax: +39 051 236666
40123 Bologna ey.com

Building a better
working world

Independent auditor’s report
in accordance with articles 14 and 16 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated 27 January 2010
(Translation from the original Italian text)

To the Shareholders of Interpump Group S.p.A.

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Interpump Group S.p.A., which comprise the
balance sheet as at December 31, 2015, and the income statement, the comprehensive income
statement, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Directors of Interpump Group S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union as well as with the regulations issued to implement art. 9 of
Legislative Decree n. 38, dated 28 February 2005.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia) implemented in
accordance with article 11, paragraph 3 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated 27 January 2010. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's professional judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Interpump
Group S.p.A. as at December 31, 2015, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union and with article 9 of Legislative Decree n. 38, dated 28 February 2005.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on the consistency of the Report on Operations and of specific information of the Report on
Corporate Governance and the Company’s Ownership Structure with the financial statements

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We have performed the procedures required under audit standard SA ltalia n. 720B in order to express
an opinion, as required by law, on the consistency of the Report on Operations and of specific
information of the Report on Corporate Governance and the Company's Ownership Structure, published
in the section "Corporate Governance” of the Interpump Group S.p.A.'s website, as provided for by
article 123-bis, paragraph 4 of Legislative Decree n. 58, dated 24 February 1998, with the financial
statements. The Directors of Interpump Group S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of the Report
on Operations and of the Report on Corporate Governance and the Company'’s Ownership Structure in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. In our opinion the Report on Operations and the
specific information of the Report on Corporate Governance and the Company’s Ownership Structure
are consistent with the financial statements of Interpump Group S.p.A. as at December 31, 2015.

Bologna, March 29, 2016
Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A.
Signed by: Marco Mignani, partner

This report has been translated into the English language solely for the convenience of international readers.
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